
           

REGULAR MEETING OF THE
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

TUESDAY, AUGUST 16, 2022

ADDISON TREEHOUSE
14681 MIDWAY ROAD, SUITE 200, ADDISON, TX 75001

6:00 PM REGULAR MEETING

The Planning and Zoning Commission meeting and public hearing will be held at the Addison
TreeHouse, 14681 Midway Road, Suite 200, Addison, Texas 75001 on Tuesday, August 16, 2022 at

6 pm. Seating for the public will be available using CDC recommended social distancing
measures. Telephonic or videoconferencing capabilities will be utilized to allow individuals to

address the Commission. For more information on the meeting location and ways to view and/or
present comments, please contact Lesley Nyp prior to 3:00 pm on the day of the meeting at

972-450-2823 or by emailing  zoninginput@addisontx.gov. Members of the public are entitled to
participate remotely via Dial-in Number: 346.248.7799; Meeting ID: 319 628 1637; Participant ID: #.
For more detailed instructions on how to participate in this meeting, visit our Agenda Page. The

meeting will be live streamed on Addison's website at www.addisontexas.net.
           
Call Meeting to Order
 

Pledge of Allegiance
 

Consent Agenda:  All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the Planning
and Zoning Commission and will be enacted by one motion with no individual consideration. If individual
consideration of an item is requested, it will be pulled from the Consent Agenda and discussed separately.
 

1. Consider Action on the Minutes from the July 19, 2022 Planning and
Zoning Commission Meeting.

 

Regular Agenda:
 

2. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Site Plan for 6.054 acres

 
Page 1 

 

  

mailto:zoninginput@addisontx.gov
http://www.addisontexas.net/
http://www.addisontexas.net/


2. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Site Plan for 6.054 acres
within the William Lomax Survey, Abstract No. 792, all Located on the
Addison Airport, for Six Airport Hangars, Located on the North Side
of the Westernmost Segment of Claire Chennault Drive. Case
SP2022-05/4505 Claire Chennault Drive (Sky Harbour Hangars).

 

3. Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a 
Recommendation regarding an Ordinance Rezoning a 2.034 Acre
Property Located at 3820 Belt Line Road from the Planned
Development District (PD) with Modified Belt Line District (BL)
Standards to a New Planned Development District (PD) with Modified
Local Retail District (LR) Standards and a Special Use Permit (SUP)
to Allow the Development of a Drive-Thru Only Restaurant.  Case
1850-Z/3820 Belt Line Road (Salad & Go).

 

4. Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a 
Recommendation regarding an Ordinance Approving a Special Use
Permit (SUP) for Property Located at 4580 Belt Line Road that is
currently zoned Local Retail (LR), to allow a Restaurant with the Sale
of Alcoholic Beverages for On-Premises Consumption. Case
1853-SUP/4580 Belt Line Road (Toasted Yolk Cafe).

 

5. Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a 
Recommendation regarding an Ordinance Approving a Special Use
Permit (SUP) for Property Located at 3855 Belt Line Road that is
currently zoned Planned Development (PD), Ordinance No. 094-037,
to allow a Restaurant. Case 1854-SUP/3855 Belt Line Road (La Pasha).

 

Adjourn Meeting
 

NOTE: The Planning & Zoning Commission reserves the right to meet in
Executive Session closed to the public at any time in the course of this
meeting to discuss matters listed on the agenda, as authorized by the Texas
Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, including
§551.071 (private consultation with the attorney for the City). Any decision
held on such matters will be taken or conducted in Open Session following
the conclusion of the Executive Session.
 

THE TOWN OF ADDISON IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH

 
Page 2 

 

  



THE TOWN OF ADDISON IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH
DISABILITIES.  PLEASE CALL (972) 450-7017 AT LEAST 48 HOURS IN

ADVANCE IF YOU NEED ASSISTANCE.

POSTED BY:     ________________________________
                           Lesley Nyp, Planning & Development Manager
DATE POSTED: ________________________________
TIME POSTED:  ________________________________
DATE REMOVED FROM BULLETIN BOARD:  ______________________
REMOVED BY:  ________________________________

 
Page 3 

 

  



   
Planning & Zoning Commission 2.           
Meeting Date: 08/16/2022  

Agenda Caption:
Consider Action on the Minutes from the July 19, 2022 Planning and Zoning
Commission Meeting.

Staff Report:
The minutes from the July 19, 2022 Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting
have been prepared for consideration. 

Recommendation:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Minutes of the July 19, 2022 Planning and Zonign Commission Meeting 



���������
����	�
��
	�����������
�������
��
������
����������	����������

�

���������� ���
!"  �#$%$�&�'(()*+,�-.//0+�*/
�1!2��%)(34��5+4(��6�)7/��  
8

#./*/,7"�904).�-+:�6+�/.*;�<)=/�904).�90.)*�>/?.4,=)*=+;�9+::)**)+,/.����)�@.4,*+,;
9+::)**)+,/.�5+A/.7�9474�4,);�9+::)**)+,/.�B4,=��9.4)C;�9+::)**)+,/.�>/,)*/
?4,*�/.;�9+::)**)+,/.��+0,�%/�/D��

8

88 8888 88

94���%//7),C�7+�E.(/.

8

8 904).�6+�/.*�=4��/(�70/�://7),C�7+�+.(/.$
8

#�/(C/�+F�'��/C)4,=/

8

8 904).�6+�/.*��/(�70/�#�/(C/�+F�'��/C)4,=/$
8

9+,*/,7�'C/,(4"��GHHIJKLMNIHJNKLOIPQOLRIKSLITUQNLQKIGVLQOWIWRLIXUQNJOLRLOIRUPKJQLIYZIKSLI[HWQQJQV
WQOI\UQJQVITUMMJNNJUQIWQOI]JHHIYLILQWXKLOIYZIUQLIMUKJUQI]JKSIQUIJQOĴJOPWHIXUQNJOLRWKJUQ_ÌaIJQOĴJOPWH
XUQNJOLRWKJUQIUaIWQIJKLMIJNIRLbPLNKLOcIJKI]JHHIYLIdPHHLOIaRUMIKSLITUQNLQKIGVLQOWIWQOIOJNXPNNLOINLdWRWKLHZ_

8

�$ 9+,*)(/.�'=7)+,�+,�70/��efghij�klmn�hoi�pgfi�qrs�qtqq��uvffefw
vfx��mfefw�	mnnejjemf��iihefwy

88

8

�$ 9+,*)(/.�'=7)+,�+,�4�zi{uvh�mk��mh�rzs�|um}~�r�mk�hoi��liifoeuu
�}ommu�
xxehemfs�}mn{lejefw��qy��q�
}lij�jehgvhix�ef�hoi�omnvj
�y�	oifm�iho��gl�i�s�
�jhlv}h��my�q��s�vfx�um}vhix�vh�hoi
fmlho�ijh�}mlfil�mk��ex�v��zmvx�vfx��{lefw��vuui��zmvxy�94*/
5� ��& ���.//,0)���6=0++��'(()7)+,��1�1��6�.),C�<4��/��5+4(�$

88

8

8 %+7)+,"�5/=+::/,(�4��.+�4��+F�70/�9+,*/,7�'C/,(4�4*��./*/,7/($�
8

8 %+�/(�A��9+::)**)+,/.�B4,=��9.4)C��6/=+,(/(�A��9+::)**)+,/.

E??�9��E?�-���9�-��6�95�-'5� ���������� ��

��



� ���������	�

�������������	�����������������	�

�������
�����������

� �����	�������
��������������	�����	����� �!��������
	�

�������������"������	�

��������#����$�	�$�����
	�

�������������	������	�

�������� �����!������
	�

�������������������

%������

�

#�������������

�

&' (������%������(�������%����$�� �����������	���������$�����$���
)*+,-./012.)3456*0.784*.)91:;<.*.=>?@AB*?@4.C0*??6?@.C>065;
D16:6?@.E19184.F4G40>3+4?9.*?:.9H4.C8>G6-6>?.>I.J?I8*-98159184
*?:.)>56*0.7+4?6964-.K69H6?.*.LMNOA.7584.784*.P>1?:4:.2;.P409
=6?4.B>*:.9>.9H4.Q>89H<.R>8?49.B>*:.9>.9H4.)>19H<.S6:K*;.B>*:.9>
9H4.T*-9<.*?:.4U6-96?@.84-6:4?96*0.?46@H2>8H>>:-.9>.9H4.V4-9W.

��

�

� X�����
��$�� ����$����Y� �����Z
�$�����������Z����$���$�����
[�
	�����Z������������$���'

�����	����� �!���������$�$���$��$�����ZZ�����$���$���\���$�����\
������Z���$����$���'�(��������$��$��$�������
Z��$�$�������Y��������
���$�����Z��$�\��������$�������������$�����'�(���]����$���$������
������Z����YY�������$���
��$�Z���$�Z����Y�����������$�Y���'�(�
$������$�����$��$�\�����Z��$��Y�$���Z������'

	�

��������	�$�������

�$���$��$�$�����\��������$��Y�Z��Z��
Y��
�$�����

��$��$��$��Z�$�����$��Y�$�
������YY��$�$������$��$���
�$���'�(���
Z����̂���$��$�$����$��������$�Z��Y��$����$����������$
$����$��$����������Z�����������

���$�������$����$��$�
��
�����'�����Z������������������Z��$��$�Z�����������
�$��
���������
�����'

	�

��������	������������$�YY��Y�$������������$����$��%��$�
#�������(���$�#����\������
�����Y��
�$�����Z��$��\������$�
���
$����$�����$���������\���������$�����\���Y��
�$����$�$��Y�$�����Z��$'
��'����
��$����Z�����$��$�$����$����Y��$����\�������������$
��
�$�
���$����$�$��Y�����������������$���������YY����$�$�����$�Y�'����
�$�$��Y�$����$�������������������\�$�����\�$���$�$������Z���
��Z��$�������$���������\�������$�������$����$�����������������
$��$��\�����$��������������$�����$Y���������������\���$���

���������Y���$�����

��$�'

_!!̀	��_!��(��	̀�����	#���#� �����&a��bcbb

��

3.



���������������	�
���	�����	�����������������	�
�	
��	����������
������������������	����	������������	��	�
�������������	�������	�����
�	���	�
�	
��������	����	�������������	��	������������������
������������������	�������������������	�����	���	�������������������	
�������	���
����������������������������	��	����������������	����
	���������������������	������	���������������
	�����������	����������
��	��

�	������������	�����	��������������	�
�����������������������������
�������������	���������������������������
�����	��������������������������
�����������������	������������������������������	����	����������
������������������������������������	���	���������
����������������
����������������������������������������������	����	���������	��
�����	���
�	�����

������	��������������
������������	�
���

�	����������������������������	���
���������� �

!��������	���
"
�	������������	�����	�������������
���������	�������������������	��
��������������������������������������������������	�"

#��"�$���

%�"�$���

&
	����"
'��
���	�(	����	�� )*+�!	���!�	����&���������,�)*--.
/	���������� )+0��	�	��������1������&���������,�)*--.
1������	�	���2.-*�3�����������&���������,�)*--.
/�������(	��	���.2440�(	�������������&���������,�)*--.
3��	���(	��	���.2440�(	�������������&���������,�)*--.
5����5���	������ 6+2�(	��������1������&���������,�)*--.

�����������
���������	��������������
������������	���
�

#��"
!	���(	������.26-4�7��8�	����1������&���������,�)*--.����	�����	�
���	������	�����������������&��	�����������������	����	����������
�������������.--9�������������	���������������	��������
��9�	����
���
����������������������

&
	����"
1	�������������.2446�(	�������������&���������,�)*--.�����������
�	��	���������������������������������������	��������	��������
�
�	��&�������	������
�����	�������	�	������������������������	���

%##��:�%#���:����;��:�3:�&3; <����.0��+-++

��



������������	
��	��������	���	��������	�	���������
��������
���������������	��	�����������	�����	��������������	������
�������	�����������	������������������������	��
����������	������� 
����!�����������"��������������������������	
�����
	�	���������#�����������"������������������������	�	������
��
�������������������������!��������������!�������	������	�����
$����	��	�������������	��	�	��������	���	��������	������������
��%������������	������� �����!�	��	�������	�	������������	�������	�
����$�����	������	�����&���������%�����	���������� ������������'
 �������������������$�����
����	���������
������	����	�����
���&���������
��������#������������������������$�������	
��	��������	�	����������

(�)
#	�����*�������'�+����,���	���-��
�'�.�����'�$/��0���'���	��������
���������	�������1��������������	������	���������������!�����	����
����������������	���	��������	��������������!��*�������
	�������������������������!'�����	��������������������	%�����

�����������������������	������	�����	���2������������!'����
��!���	����
����������	�������������	����	������������������
�������	�������	�����������������	�����	��������	����������	�%	����
���������	����	����������	 ���	�������	%��
���������������
	�������������$�	�����	���������	������	�����������������������������	�
����� �����������������������������	���	���������	����#���	!
�	��	���������3������4	���	!��.������	��!'����������	�+���0
����	����	�����	�����	�	��������$���������.������	���5	�#��	�	
��������������#���	!�.��������$������������������!�	�������� ��
������������	����������	����	�������1��'�������������	������	��	����
 �����'������	����$���5	��'�����
�������
	�!�

5�1�(����	��'��+����#	����5	��'�.�����'�$/��0���'���	������	������
���	����&�	������	����	�������	�����������������������$����������	���
��	�������	���"���������������������
	�������
������'�������'�	��
����������!�	���	��	�� 	����#���(����	�����	�����������	��	�	������
���������	����	�� ������
�������.������������!�	��������	�������	�
������������� !������� ��	����������������	�������������� ����!��
������	������$�����������
�����	�	�������������������
�������	 �!����������	�����������"������������	������	���������
�����������!�
	��������	��������"����!���������	���!�	���������
��	���!��$�����������������	��������������	���	
�����	��	�������
����$������	"� 	���	������!���������� ���	����������!�

��	�����������	�������������������	�����������������	��
	�����������!������ ���	���	
	��	 ���������$������� �����

(66��7�(6�$�7���$8��7��7$.�8 ,��!��9'�����

��



���������	
������
�	�
��
�����������	����	�����������������

��
������������	�������������	�
�������
�	�
�����
������������
�	���
�
������
�
����
�
����
����
�	����������������������	���
���������
���

�����
���
����
�����������
��
�����	�
�	���������

������������������	�
����������������������
�����

��
�� �!������	��������������
�������������
�	�
"

" ����	����#������������������$�������������	�	���������������
!����
���
�����

" %&' �������(�����������#������������������$��������
������������)�����������������������!����
���
�����
������������*�����������������������������$������
������������)����������

+����	�

"

,� -��	���+������-�������+����
������������	�����	���%�
�������
./0122/345671389/:59473:8538;9473530/8./<1373:858=>?@ABCD
E09/8F91G/96H8I1056/481386J/8K/L68M74/81N8O74P5H8.154Q
EGG91R7256/SH8=QTTT8U//68M1V6J81N8W/S6P5H8X97Y/85348Z22/4756/SH
[196J81N86J/8./4473:8\957S8X1:8F59]Q8N9128FS533/48X/Y/S1G2/36
X7L697068̂FX_8618583/P8FS533/48X/Y/S1G2/368X7L697068̂FX_8618ESS1P
N1986J/8X/Y/S1G2/3681N8̀Ta8OVS67N527SH8XP/SS73:8b376L8P76J
F/92766/48c91V348US1198./657SQ8./L65V9536Q8;NN70/Q8d1DK19]73:Q
5348I7Y/CK19]8bL/LQ8>T8\1P3J12/8U//8M72GS/8I16LQ8=̀
\1P3J12/8./365S8XP/SS73:8b376LQ85348ELL10756/48FVeS708534
F97Y56/8;G/38MG50/85348d122138E9/5LQ8\J91V:J86J/8EGG91Y5S81N
X/Y/S1G2/368FS53L85348M6534594L?������fghfijk%�l����	�����

""

"

" m�������	
�������
���������������
����������������
�	�
����
���
�����
������
���n���

�����������������������	����
�����	���
������������
��
������

��
������������������
�����
���������	����!��	�

���������	
�������	�
��
�
���������������	�	���
�	����
�
��������
��	����!��	�������
����	�
��������(���(�%�	����
��
�	�
��

��
����	��	����
����	�
���������������	�������
�����
�����
��
(��������������������	�
����	���
������	�����(���(�%�	�	��	�
�����
��	�����	�	���
�	����
��	�����
�
���������o�
���
�����
��
�������

	��������

����
����	����!��	�

p$$��'�p$�(-'���(&��'�!'(%!& )����fq��,r,,

��

4.



�������������	
������
������
��������
������������������������
���������������������������
�����������������������������������
��������������������������
��������
�����������

���������������
�����
������������������ ������!""#���������
�����
��������������������
��������������������� ����������������$�����%
�������%�����
���������
���&����
������������������������

���������������
�����
����������
�����
��������
�����!""#
��������
����������������������������������
������������������
'�
�����%����������������
��������(������

���������������
�������
�����
���������
�
����������������
�����������
������)�������
���������������������������
���
������������������
�����
�������������������
��
�����������������
���
�������������
��������
������������
�����������������
��������
�����������
������)�������
�������������
���������������
�����
�
��
�������������������������%�
�����������������������������
�%
�������������*������������������
������������
����������
�����

��������������
�
�
��������������
�%������
�������
�������
�+�
���������������������%�������������
�������
���������������
�+�
�������������
������������
��������������
���
���������
������
������������
��
�
���������
������
�,--(������������

.������
���#�	�
�������
�������������������
�����������
��)�

��������
��������������������
������������
���
���
������������
����������
��
�
������������������������������%�����������
�����
��������������
����������
������������������

.������
���#�	�
�������
���������������
�����������������������
������������������������������������������

.������
���#�	�
�������
�����������!""#���������
�����������
�����������������������
�����%�����
�����
�������������������
��
�����������
���������

.������
���#�	�
�������
�����������
�����
���������������������������
��
��������
����������������������������
�������������
���

�����������/-���
��������������

.������
���#�	�
�������
�����������
�����
������������������
���������������������������
��������������������������
�������������
���������
���
������������
�������
�����������������

0		*�"�0	��1"��*�2��"�)"��)2 3����,4%�/-//

��



�����������	�
������������������������������������������
��������������������������������������������������������������
�����������������������������������������������������������
����������������������������������� ���������������!����������
���������������������������������������������!���������
�������"�������������� ��������"�����������!���������#$��
������������������������������������������� ���������� ��
���������������������%���������������

�����������	�
���������������������!���������������������������
��������������� �������������������������������������������
��� �������"����������������� ��&��� �

�����������	�
��������������������������������"���������
���� ����������������������������������������������������������������
�������'������� �����������������"����(���������������������������"����
���� ������������������������� �������������������� �����������

�������������������������������������������� �����������������'
������������������������������������� ������������������� � ��� �
������������������ ������������������������������������������!��
����������� ��������������������� �����������������

��������������������������������������������������������������"�����"�����
�������"����!��������� ������������������ ���������������
���� ���������������������������������� ����������������������
������������ �����������"������������������� �������������������
!��������� �����������������������"����������������������������
��������������������������

�������������������������������������������������������� �������
������ ��������������������������"����� ����������������������������
������������� ����������!���������������"������������������ ���
���������������� �����������������#$�����������������������
���������������������������� ���������"������������������������������
������������������ ���������

�����������
�������������������������������"���������� �����������
����� �����������������)�����!������'�	���������*��������
+��������'�������������������������,������������"���������� 
����������������������� ���������

���������������������������������������������������������������
����������������������������������������������������
�������������������$����������-����������'�������������������������

�

$�.��
�!�.��$!/��.�+.!�+/ )����01'�2322

��



������������	��
���������������	�	����������������������������������
����������������������������
�
�������	��������������������������������������������������������
������������������ ����������������
����������

�������	����������������������� �����!�������������������
�������������������
��������	�����������	��������������������
����	��
��������	������������	����"���������������������	�������

��	����������������������������������������������������������

 ����������������������������������������������������������
��������������������
�������������������������������������������
�����������
��������
�������������������������������
����������
���������#���������$���������������%�������������
�������������������%��������������������������������&���!�������
'������!����������������������������������������������������������
����������������������	�	������������������������������������
������������	���������������

�������	�������������������	�����������������������������������
�������������	��������������������������������������������(�����
�������"��������������������	�����������������������������
������	������ �������������������������������������������������
����������	���������������	����������������������	����������������
���������	�����������������	�����������	��	����������������������
�����������������������������������������������������������

���	���������
������������������������������

)����������*���������������������������������������������
����#�����������������	����������	������ ���������������������
������������������������'	����+�������������	����������
���	��������"������������������������������������������������
�����������	�������������������%�������������������������������
�����������������	����
��������
���������������,	�����������������
����#����,	��������

���������������������������
�������������������������
������
���-���������������	���������������

 ���������������������������	�������������������������	����������
���
����������������������������������������������������
�������������������������#����	����	���������������	��������
���������������������������������������	�������������	������"�
�����������������������	������������������������	��������������	��

.**��$�.*��"$����/��$�!$��!/ 0	���12
�3433

��



������������������	
��	�����������
�
���������������	������
�����
��������	�	���

���	�����������
�����������	������	
�������������

��������	��
��������������
�����	��
������ !��"��������
�
�����
���#$#%�&���������	
��'�������	���(#$�����	�
���)�%#$$*�
������������
���	�
��
�����+�����	�����	�����������		�
�

���	�����������������������������	
��	
�	�	������������	,���������
���	����	�	�
���������������������	��
����	��������,-

.��-
&�����	
��!	�	���*�/(#�!��0��
���"�	�������	�
���)�%#$$*
"�
�!	�	���*�/(#�!��0��
���"�	�������	�
���)�%#$$*
1�
������	�����*#(#$�2������"�	�������	�
���)�%#$$*
'���	��.���������*#(#$�2������"�	�������	�
���)�%#$$*

3
-
�������1��,	
���*#4����
��0���
��	���������	�
���)�%#$$*
!	5�3�	���
���*�%$$� ����!�
������	�
���)�%#$$*

���	
�-
�	,�6	�!�	���*(4�7����
�8�������	�
���)�%#$$*
"������������*$#�'����	���������	�
���)�%#$$*
9	��	
	��8����
���:%#(����,�����������	�
���)�%#$$*
&����� ������:%(;���������������"�	�������	�
���)�%#$$*
��	�	�� ���
����$$:�'	���!�
������	�
���)�%#$$*
!����� �,�����*$;�!����	��������������	�
���)�%#$$*
"��	������	
��*�44/�8��	�������������	�
���)�%#$$*
&�	�	
�8��������*�44;�8��	�������������	�
���)�%#$$*
'�
����8��������*�44;�8��	�������������	�
���)�%#$$*
�
����������	
��	
�	�	�������,�����	
����������	������	
��

.��-
'�
�8�	���������*$$�!����	��������������	�
���)�%#$$*����������
	�	
����������������<����� ���8�	��������	���������
��������=
���������������	������
�����	������������������
������
�	��������	
������������	
	�
������������	�����	���������������������������
��	
+�����	������
����������
���������	�
�	��
�����
������
	����
�
�����
��	����������	������
�������	�������
����	��
�	��
���������
���1�������������������������������	�
�0����
���+���>������������	����+�����������������+��������	
���
	�	�����
����
�	����������� ���8�	���������������	���������������

3..��7�3.��17����6��7�'7��'6 ?����*;��($((

��



�������������	�
��������	�������
�������
������������������
��

������������������������������������ ��������!"�#$����
	�%%��
���
��
������&��
�������������
��
��������'�������
�	

(��'���(����'����������������'��
��������������������(��'��
)�����!����������%��
�
��
�������������'�������
�	
�
�������
�������

����������
������%����(�����������
�
���
��
�
����������
����
���
���*�	
�����
�����
��
�	������
��������
�����+��������
��
� (�,�����
-��'��.���
�
������������*��
���
������*�	
������������
��
	�%%���
�/����.���
��

����0
���������1$���(	2������3������������������!"�#$4�$���
�
��
���������
��'������5�	�����
������-��+��	�%%��
���
��
�
����������
��	�����	������	��������������	�����������������������������
�
���
��
���+��	�%%��
���
��
�����������������
�����.���
���

5�6
(�������(�
�������1��������������	��� ��������!"�#$����������������
	��	����������
�
��������������
����������
����
�����
����7�����
��
��������	���
��	
�����
�������
������
������*�	
������
�����	����
��

���������
���'��
�������
�������

(���3�'�������������
��
� (�,�'��������'�!�'����������.����%��
�
����'��������	������	��
����
��
��
����8��
����+5 9��
������������
������

�����*���������	��� ���
��������� (�,�'�����������������������
��	���
������%����������
��
�������!��������	��
���
�	���
��
	���
��	
����
�����	�%���
������������4�4$��

(���������������������:�������������� ��������!"�#$�����	�%%��
��

��
�����������������������
���;�%%�������'�������
�����'���	�


��������
���
�
�����
���)����

!����)����7�'�-�������4�+���
���������� ��������!"�#$����
	�%%��
���
��
�
�������	�������
%��
���������������	��%����
%��
��%��������%�-�����������
����������	����	�������������������
�������

�����0���	����;����������	����
�
���
��
�
���!�'�����	�����
��
��
%���
�����������	����.����%��
����� ��������+���
�
���
��
�������
��
���������	��
�	
�����������
�������	��	����*�	
����
���������.���
��
���	��
�	
�'�
���
��������������
��
�������������

:�%%��3��-����1<�$�)���������� ��������!"�#$�������������������

��
�5�	�����
������-��������%�����%��
�����
�������*�	
�����
��
��
��
����
����	���������'��������%��
����
���������(���3��-��

522,;=�52�!+=�;,!>�0=;)=! )> :�����<��4�44

��



����������������������	��
�������������������������������
����������������������������������������������������������������������
���������������������������������������������������������
������������������������������������������� ����������������������
����������������������������������������������

!���"������������������������������������#���������������
�����������������������������������������!�$����������������
��������%����������������%����������������

�������&
"������������'��(��(�����������%���������������)*��+,,������������
����������������������-����������������������������� ����������
����%�������������������������������������������������������!��
��������'��������������������������������������������������
����%�������������������������������%��������������������������
�%������������������� ��������������������������������������������������
�����������������������������!�����������'�����������������
�����������������������������������#��������������������������
��������

.���"�������/,/(�0�%�����������������)*��+,,�����������������������
������������������������	��
���������������������������������������
�������-����������������������!���"�������������������������������
������������������������%����������%����������%���������� �������������
��������-���������������������������������������������	��
�������
������������������������%�������'��������!���"��������������������������
������������������������������������

.����1������/��/�����%�����1���������������)*��+,,��������������
���������������������������%����#������������2�������������1��#�� �
��������������������������������������2�������������1��#��������������
�������������������������������������������������������� ����
����������������������%�������������#�����������������������	�
���������������������������������������� ����������������
����������������3�����������%������������������������������������������
����������������������������������������������������������������
��������������������


������������"���������#������!���1������������ 2���!���1����
����������������������������!�$���������������������������������������
��������� 2���

"��#�"��#��������(�4/�5���������6��%������������)*��+,,��
��������������������������������#����������������������#���������������

277$
8�27�) 8�
$)9��8
08)�09 .�����:��4,44

��



��������������	�
��������������������������������������������
��������	������������������������������������������		���������������
��������	������
���
�������������������������������������������
������������������	������������������������������������		������	
����	��������������	������	�����
���������������������������������

 ������!������"#$%� ����&�����		������'(�)*##$������	��������
���+��������������������������������	���������������������,����-���
,��	������
�����������������������	�	������������������������
	+���������������������

-������������.���������	�
���������������������	����������
���������������������������		����������,����	������	������		����
�������/���	�������������������������������.���������	
�
��	�
�������������	����������������������������0#�1#������

-������������.���������	���
�������������
���	���������������
�����������������������������������������������������,����	��������	
������������������	��������������������	�
����������$##������������
�	��������������������������"*�*#�����������������������������

-����,���������	�
������������������������������������������	���
���������
��������������,����	����	�����'�
�������
��������������������	����������������
���������
�����������'�
�
	��������������		�	������������������+���������������
��-����
����������������������������
���������+�����������������,�����2
�����������

-����,��������	������������������������������������	��	
�������	������
��������	����������������'�
����
�������

-������������.���������	��������������������������������������
'�
����������
�������
������&3������������+���������,����	��������	
������&3���������
������������������+�����������������$2��������

4����-����5�.�����������	���������	����������������	����������
��������������������,����	��������	�	���������������������������	�	�
�������
�������	�	���������������������	�����	���������'�
�
	�����	�

-����,���������	������������������	�������������	�	�/�����������
	�����������������������������	�������������������������,����	�
������	���������������	����&3������	�������������
������
�	�
		���������������������������������	���������������������&3�
���	
����	�/������������������
�������	����		�������������������

6..3-7�6.�'�7�-3'8�,7- 7'� 8 !����$9��0#00

��



��������������	�
��������������

����
�����
���������	����
������������������������������������������
��������������	�
������
������������
��������
������������������������
����������������������	�
����		������������������������������
����
�������������������

�
������������������������������������
�������������
� ����	�
����

!�"���
���#�����������������
��
�������������������
������
�����
���	
�����������������������		��$����������������������
����
�������������������	�
�������������������������������������
�
������������������

�����������
��
��������������������������	������������������
�
�����
�	
��������
�����������������������������������%�����
���	���
��������
�������
�	
�����������������������
���������������
���
������
��&���
�����������������������
���
�����������������������	�

�����������	�������������

�����������
��
���������������		��	������������������������������	
��������������������
��
�������
�	��&��������������
�
��������������
�
����������
�������������	���������������������
������������������������	���������������������������������������

���������������$����������������		�������������������������
��������
�������
�	����������

�����������
�'�����
���������������������������
��������
������
�����������������������������!(�����������	
���
���������	����������
�
�����������������	��������	
����������������������
����������
���������������		��������������������������
�)������������
��������
����
�
������
����������������������������$�����������������
�����������
�������������������
��	����������

����
�����
�����������������������
����	�
������(�

������*�+������������
������	������(�����
����������������������		,�

����������������������

-

- ��������.��������
���
���/�'
�������������������������������

+���
�����������

- �01*�����
�#�������
���.��������
���
���/�'
��������
�����������
�2�����
������������������
�+���
�����������
�����������
�3�����
����������������
�/������'�����
�
�����������
�2����������

4''��1�4'�#$1���#0��1�+1#�+0 2���!5��6766

��



�������

�

���	
���������

�

� �������������	��
�������
����������	��������	������	��������
���������������	
������

�

��������������������� 	������	������	�������!��������������	��������
�"�#
��!��$����	��#�	�����	�����%
���#������&�������������#	
����	������
���������	����#
������������������	������������������
��	��'����&�������"��
�%������������#�����"���(	!���������	�������%����))*����#�
����
+))*�,-*�.%��!����#	��
�����	��������������	���&��	���������&/����&���#���	�
�����	���
#��������������������0���	��#	��
#��������%���$����	���	��	��������
#	�#�
��	��	�������"�#
��!��$����	��

��

�

�112����1��3���2�4�$��5���54 6
�&�*7��8,88

��



   
Planning & Zoning Commission 3.           
Meeting Date: 08/16/2022  

Agenda Caption:
Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Site Plan for 6.054 acres within
the William Lomax Survey, Abstract No. 792, all Located on the Addison
Airport, for Six Airport Hangars, Located on the North Side of the
Westernmost Segment of Claire Chennault Drive. Case SP2022-05/4505
Claire Chennault Drive (Sky Harbour Hangars).

Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval of the site plan. 

Attachments
SP2022-05 Staff Report 
SP2022-05 Plans 



SP2022-05
Case SP2022-05/4505 Claire Chennault Drive. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action 
on a Site Plan for 6.054 acres within the William Lomax Survey, Abstract No. 792, all 
Located on the Addison Airport, for Six Airport Hangars, Located on the North Side of the 
Westernmost Segment of Claire Chennault Drive. 

LOCATION MAP



August 16, 2022

STAFF REPORT

RE: SP2022-05/4505 Claire Chennault Drive

LOCATION: 4505 Claire Chennault Drive

REQUEST: Approval of a site plan for six airport hangars on 
6.054-acre of land, located on the north side of the 
westernmost segment of Claire Chennault Drive, all 
on the Addison Airport. 

APPLICANT: Jeff Colasanti, ADS Hangers LLC 

DISCUSSION: 

Background: The applicant submitted an application for the review of a site plan for four structures, 
totaling 104,600 square feet. The structures will be used for six new airplane hangars at the 
Addison Airport. The site includes 6.054 acres and is zoned Industrial 3 (I-3). A ground lease for 
the site was approved by City Council on June 28, 2022. The site is located on the north side of 
the westernmost segment of Claire Chennault Drive.  

Proposed Plan:  The proposed site plan includes four, single-story structures. The three 
westernmost buildings are intended to be used for single-tenant airplane hangar space (A11, V2, 
and V4 as shown on the site plan). The fourth structure (V6) will be used as a private airplane 
hangar that may have multiple users storing aircraft. In addition to the hangar space, the 
structures are proposed to include restroom facilities, garages, lounge areas, and office space. 
The site includes two aprons. The west apron, which serves hangar A11, has direct access to 
Taxiway A. The east apron, that serves hangars V2, V4, and V6, utilizes Taxi Lane V to the north 
of the site for access to the taxiway. The site has vehicular and emergency service access at two 
points on the north side of Claire Chennault Drive. 

Parking: The I-3 zoning district requires one parking space per each five employees based upon 
the maximum number of employees on duty at any given time. The applicant stated the maximum 
number of employees would be 40 per hangar, therefore requiring 8 parking spaces per hangar, 
or 48 spaces total. The site plan exceeds the requirements by providing 76 parking spaces on 
site. The parking provided is equivalent to 1 space for each 1,400 square feet of floor area. 

Exterior Facades: The single-story hangar buildings will achieve a maximum height of 40.5 feet. 
The primary exterior materials for the public facing (landside) facades will include brick, along the 
building base, and prefabricated metal above. The airside facades will consist of prefabricated 
metal. The primary building facades will provide canopies over the primary pedestrian entrances, 
windows into interior lounge areas, clerestory windows, and glass panel garage doors. The 
primary façade for building V6 will provide additional windows into the interior office space and 
clerestory windows. All roof mounted mechanical equipment will be screened from all sides of the 



building. Additionally, screening for the solid waste enclosure will be required. The solid waste 
enclosure will be reviewed with the Building Permit and materials used will be consistent with the 
building façade. 

Landscaping and Streetscape: For development on and around the Addison Airport, Town staff 
takes special consideration during the site plan process to ensure that both Town and Federal 
Aviation Administration (FAA) regulations are considered. 

The Town’s Landscape Ordinance requires that properties developed under the I-3 zoning district 
provide 10 percent of the site as landscaped area. Other requirements include a 20-foot 
landscape buffer along the street frontage, 5 percent of interior landscape planting in the parking 
lot, and parking lot screening. The landscape plan was able to meet or exceed Staff’s requests. 
To ensure the safety of the aircraft, the landscaping on site has been concentrated near the Claire 
Chennault right-of-way frontage. Due to site constraints and the nature of the use, tree mitigation 
was not applied to this site.
 
RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL

The overall design and scale of the airport hangars is compatible with the existing built 
environment of the Addison Airport, and it complies with the I-3 zoning district and applicable 
Town development standards, where feasible. 

Staff recommends approval of the site plan.



G

G

D

D

D
D

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE

O
HE

U
G

E

U
G

E

COMM

COMM

C
O

M
M

CO
M

M

CO
M

M

H

UGE

UGE

H

COMM

G

G

G

GG

G

G

G

ES
M

T ES
M

T

H

G

G

PL
PL

PL

PL

PL

PL

PL

PL

PL

PL

PL

PL

PL

PL

PL
PL

PLPLPLPLPLPL

PL
PL

PL
PL

PL
PL

PL PL PL PL PL

PL

PL

PL

PL

PL

636

638

63
8

63
8

642

63
6

636

638

642

634

W

W

W

WW

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS SS SS

SS

SS

SS

SS SS

D

D
D

D

D

D

SS

SS

SS

SS SS

SS

SS

SS

WB-50 - Intermediate Semi-Trailer

WB-50 - Intermediate Semi-Trailer

WB-50 - Intermediate Semi-Trailer

DRAWN BY: 

DATE:
JOB NO.:

DESIGNED BY:

R
EV

.
D

AT
E

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

BY

BAR IS ONE INCH ON
ORIGINAL DRAWING

IF NOT ONE INCH ON THIS SHEET,
ADJUST SCALES ACCORDINGLY.

0 1"

DRAWING NUMBER

SHEET
 NUMBER

AUGUST 2022
22A11111

THIS DOCUMENT, ALONG WITH THE
IDEAS AND DESIGNS CONVEYED
HEREIN, SHALL BE CONSIDERED

INSTRUMENTS OF PROFESSIONAL
SERVICE AND ARE PROPERTY OF

GARVER, LLC. ANY USE,
REPRODUCTION, OR DISTRIBUTION
OF THIS DOCUMENT, ALONG WITH

THE IDEAS AND DESIGN CONTAINED
HEREIN, IS PROHIBITED UNLESS

AUTHORIZED IN WRITING BY
GARVER, LLC OR EXPLICITLY
ALLOWED IN THE GOVERNING

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT FOR THIS WORK.

© 2022 GARVER, LLC

AD
D

IS
O

N
 A

IR
PO

R
T 

(A
D

S)
AD

D
IS

O
N

, T
EX

AS
C

AS
E 

N
O

. S
P2

02
2-

05

45
05

 C
LA

IR
E 

C
H

EN
N

AU
LT

 R
D

AD
D

IS
O

N
, T

X

SK
Y 

H
AR

BO
U

R
 H

AN
G

AR
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

10
0%

 C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
E

S
IG

N

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T 

IS
 R

E
LE

A
S

E
D

 F
O

R
 T

H
E

P
U

R
P

O
S

E
 O

F 
IN

TE
R

IM
 R

E
V

IE
W

 U
N

D
E

R
 T

H
E

A
U

TH
O

R
IT

Y
 O

F 
S

A
R

A
 C

. A
N

D
R

E
W

S
, P

.E
., 

N
O

.
12

68
32

, O
N

 0
8/

09
/2

02
2.

 IT
 IS

 N
O

T 
TO

 B
E

 U
S

E
D

FO
R

 C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

, O
R

 P
E

R
M

IT
P

U
R

P
O

S
E

S
.

REGISTRATION NO.
F-5713

Fi
le

: L
:\2

02
2\

22
A1

11
11

 - 
AD

S 
Sk

yH
ar

bo
ur

 H
an

ga
rs

\D
ra

w
in

gs
\S

H
EE

T 
FI

LE
S\

G
en

er
al

\A
D

S_
Sk

yH
ar

b-
G

I-1
01

.d
w

g 
 L

as
t S

av
e:

 8
/9

/2
02

2 
9:

20
 A

M
 L

as
t s

av
ed

 b
y:

 A
JM

ul
te

r
La

st
 p

lo
tte

d 
by

: M
ul

te
r, 

Ad
am

 J
. P

lo
t S

ty
le

: A
EC

m
on

o.
ct

b 
Pl

ot
 S

ca
le

: 1
:1

 P
lo

t D
at

e:
 8

/9
/2

02
2 

3:
23

 P
M

 P
lo

tte
r u

se
d:

 D
W

G
 T

o 
PD

F.
pc

3

GI-101
5

SITE PLAN

JAH
AJM

0 20' 40' 80' 120'

(IN FEET)

THIS PLAN CONFORMS WITH DESIGN STANDARDS INCLUDED
IN THE TOWN OF ADDISON TRANSPORTATION PLAN, WATER
SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS, WASTE WATER SYSTEM
REQUIREMENTS, AND DRAINAGE CRITERIA MANUAL.

FLOOD PLAIN NOTE:
NO FLOODPLAIN EXISTS ON SITE. PER FEMA FIRM
478113C0180K, DATE 07/07/2014, THIS SITE IS ZONE X
UNSHADED, AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2%
ANNUAL CHANGE FLOOD PLAIN.

TOWN OF ADDISON SITE PLAN NOTES:

1. ANY REVISION TO THIS PLAN WILL REQUIRE TOWN
APPROVAL AND WILL REQUIRE REVISIONS TO ANY
CORRESPONDING PLANS TO AVOID CONFLICTS
BETWEEN PLANS.

2. OPEN STORAGE, WHERE PERMITTED, SHALL BE
SCREENED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ZONING
ORDINANCE.

3. BUILDINGS WITH AN AGGREGATE SUM OF 500
SQUARE FEET OR GREATER ON A LOT SHALL HAVE
AUTOMATIC FIRE SPRINKLERS INSTALLED
THROUGHOUT ALL STRUCTURES. ALTERNATIVE
FIRE PROTECTION MEASURES MAY BE APPROVED
BY THE FIRE DEPARTMENT.

4. ALL SIGNAGE IS SUBJECT TO TOWN APPROVAL.

5. ALL FENCES AND RETAINING WALLS SHALL BE
SHOWN ON THE SITE PLAN AND ARE SUBJECT TO
BUILDING INSPECTION DIVISION APPROVAL.

OWNER ENGINEERING/APPLICANT
ADS HANGARS LLC
136 TOWER ROAD, SUITE 205
WESTCHESTER COUNTY AIRPORT
WHITE PLAINS, NY 10604

GARVER, LLC (REGISTRATION NO. 5713)
SARA ANDREWS, PE (TEXAS PE NO. 126832)
3010 GAYLORD PARKWAY, SUITE 190
FRISCO, TX 75077
(972) 377-7480

PROPOSED SUBDIVISION NAME: SKY HARBOUR HANGAR DEVELOPMENT
BLOCK DESIGNATION: NA
LOT NUMBER: NA
ACREAGE: 6.05 ACRES

ABSTRACT/SURVEY NAME AND NUMBER:
FA COMMERCIAL DUE DILIGENCE SERVICES
CO. (405) 253-2444

TOWN OF ADDISON CASE NO. SP2022-05
PREPARATION DATE: 7/19/22

PROPOSED DUMPSTER
ENCLOSURE

CLAIRE CHENNAULT DR

TAXILANE V
TA

XI
W

AY
 A

V6 HANGAR
FF=640.04

V4 HANGAR
FF=640.04V2 HANGAR

FF=640.04

A11b HANGAR
FF=638.63

EAST
APRON

WEST
APRON

HANDICAP
PARKING AND
ADA RAMP (TYP)

5' SIDEWALK

18.00'

24.00'

18.00'
24.00'

STORM DRAIN

32.00'

AOA SWING GATE
W/ KS2 SWITCH

40' AOA CANTILEVER
GATE W/ KS2 SWITCH

5' SIDEWALK

54.21'

SIDEWALK
RAMP

10.00'

10.00'

14.00'6.21'

2" WATER METER

2" WATER METER

2" WATER METER

U5 HANGAR
CAVANAUGH

FLIGHT
MUSEUM

A10 HANGAR

V8 HANGAR

U9 HANGAR

A11 HANGAR V2 HANGAR V4 HANGAR V6 HANGAR TOTAL
GFA AREA (SF) 42,600 14,200 14,200 33,600 104,600
OVERALL HEIGHT 40'-6"
OCCUPANCY CLASS 4F

PARKING REQUIREMENT
BASED UPON # OF EMPLOYEES

(1 SPACE PER EACH 5 EMPLOYEES)
PARKING REQUIRED 24 8 8 8 48
PARKING PROVIDED 1/1,400 SF 76
ADA SPACES REQUIRED 4
ADA SPACES PROVIDED 5
DOMESTIC WATER METER 2" DOMESTIC WATER METER 6
IRRIGATION WATER METER 2" IRRIGATION WATER METER 1
FIRE SERVICE LINE 6" FIRE SERVICE
PROPERTY USE PRIVATE APRON AND HANGAR
ZONING CLASS I-3
ZONING CLASS DESCRIPTION INDUSTRIAL-3 DISTRICT
PROPERTY AREA 6.05 ACRES / 263,538 SF
IMPERVIOUS AREA (SF) 240,703
PERVIOUS AREA (SF) 22,835
OPEN SPACE (SF) 7,112
LOT COVERAGE 40%

LEGEND

PL PROPERTY LINE

W EXISTING WATER LINE

SS EXISTING SANITARY SEWER

UTILITY NO BUILD ZONE

FIRE LANE

FENCE

XXX

XXX

EXISTING CONTOUR

PROPOSED CONTOUR

PROPOSED GRASS AREA

PROPOSED AIRSIDE
PAVEMENT

PROPOSED LANDSIDE
PAVEMENT

PROPOSED TAXIWAY
CENTERLINE MARKING

PROPOSED PARKING STRIPE
MARKING

2" WATER METER

2" WATER METER

2" WATER METER

A11c HANGAR
FF=638.63

A11a HANGAR
FF=638.63

EXISTING STORM DRAIN

W PROPOSED WATER LINE

SS PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER

PROPOSED STORM DRAIN

PROPOSED FENCE

KEYMAP

G EXISTING GAS LINE

G PROPOSED GAS LINE

OHE EXISTING OVERHEAD
ELECTRIC LINE

UGE EXISTING UNDERGROUND
ELECTRIC LINE

UGE PROPOSED UNDERGROUND
ELECTRIC LINE

REPLACE EXISTING
INLET WITH MANHOLE

PARKING NOTES:
1. CODE OF ORDINANCES, APPENDIX A, ARTICLE XIII, SECTION 4.B -

PARKING REGULATIONS, WHICH PROVIDES PARKING RATIOS.
2. PARKING SPACES INTERNAL TO IMPROVEMENTS (2 PER HANGAR)

WILL HAVE TWO POINTS OF EGREES (BOTH AIRSIDE AND LANDSIDE).
3. HANDICAP PARKING IS PROVIDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ADA

STANDARDS.

129.96'

306.06'

24.00'

30.50' NO BUILD ZONE

24.00'

REMOVE AND
REPLACE EXISTING
TRANSFORMER

PROPOSED
TRANSFORMER

41.50' NO BUILD ZONE

WB-50 DESIGN
VEHICLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

lnyp
Text Box
*SOLID WASTE ENCLOSURE WILL BE REVIEWED WITH BUILDING PERMIT.



UGE

UG
E

C
O

M
M

C
O

M
M

COMM
COMM

COMM

UG
E

UGE

UG
E

UGE

UG
E

UG
E

COMM

COMM

COMM

COMM

G

G

G

G

D
SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

ROW
ROW

ROW

ROW

ROW

ROW

ROW

ROW

ROW

ROW

R
O

W

ROW
ROW

ROW

ROW

ROW

ROW

ROW

ROW

ROW

ROW

ROW

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS

SS SS SS SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS SS

SS

SS

SS

D

TREES QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME CONT CAL SIZE

LW 1 Lagerstroemia indica 'Whit II' TM Dynamite Crape Myrtle 30 gal 6`- 8` Tall
PC 4 Pistacia chinensis Chinese Pistache B & B 4"Cal
QS 1 Quercus shumardii Shumard Oak B & B 4"Cal
UE 12 Ulmus parvifolia 'Emer II'  TM Allee Lacebark Elm B & B 4"Cal

SHRUBS QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE FIELD2 FIELD3 SPACING
AE 20 Abelia x 'Edward Goucher' Edward Goucher Abelia 5 gal 48" o.c.
CS 14 Chaenomeles speciosa Flowering Quince 5 gal 48" o.c.
JW 112 Juniperus horizontalis 'Wiltonii' Blue Rug Juniper 5 gal 24" o.c.
PS 14 Panicum virgatum 'Shenandoah' Shenandoah Switch Grass 5 gal 36" o.c.
RI 108 Rhaphiolepis indica Indian Hawthorn 5 gal 36" o.c.

GROUND COVERS QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME

12,445 sf Zoysia x 'Zorro' Zorro Zoysia

PLANT SCHEDULE

DRAWN BY: 

DATE:
JOB NO.:

DESIGNED BY:

R
EV

.
D

AT
E

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

BY

BAR IS ONE INCH ON
ORIGINAL DRAWING

IF NOT ONE INCH ON THIS SHEET,
ADJUST SCALES ACCORDINGLY.

0 1"

DRAWING NUMBER

SHEET
 NUMBER

JUNE 2022
22A11111

THIS DOCUMENT, ALONG WITH THE
IDEAS AND DESIGNS CONVEYED
HEREIN, SHALL BE CONSIDERED

INSTRUMENTS OF PROFESSIONAL
SERVICE AND ARE PROPERTY OF

GARVER, LLC. ANY USE,
REPRODUCTION, OR DISTRIBUTION
OF THIS DOCUMENT, ALONG WITH

THE IDEAS AND DESIGN CONTAINED
HEREIN, IS PROHIBITED UNLESS

AUTHORIZED IN WRITING BY
GARVER, LLC OR EXPLICITLY
ALLOWED IN THE GOVERNING

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT FOR THIS WORK.

© 2022 GARVER, LLC

AD
D

IS
O

N
 A

IR
PO

R
T 

(A
D

S)
AD

D
IS

O
N

, T
EX

AS

45
05

 C
LA

IR
E 

C
H

EN
N

AU
LT

 R
D

AD
D

IS
O

N
, T

X

SK
Y 

H
AR

BO
U

R
 H

AN
G

AR
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

60
%

 C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
E

S
IG

N

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T 

IS
 R

E
LE

A
S

E
D

 F
O

R
 T

H
E

P
U

R
P

O
S

E
 O

F 
IN

TE
R

IM
 R

E
V

IE
W

 U
N

D
E

R
 T

H
E

A
U

TH
O

R
IT

Y
 O

F 
S

A
R

A
 C

. A
N

D
R

E
W

S
, P

.E
., 

N
O

.
12

68
32

, O
N

 0
6/

13
/2

02
2.

 IT
 IS

 N
O

T 
TO

 B
E

 U
S

E
D

FO
R

 C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

, O
R

 P
E

R
M

IT
P

U
R

P
O

S
E

S
.

REGISTRATION NO.
F-5713

(IN FEET)

0 15' 30' 60' 90'

TAXILANE V

CLAIRE CHENNAULT RD

PROPOSED
WEST APRON

PROPOSED
EAST APRON

PROPOSED
A11b HANGAR

PROPOSED
V2 HANGAR

PROPOSED
V4 HANGAR

PROPOSED
V6 HANGAR

CITY OF ADDISON
LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS   

ITEM REQUIRED PROVIDED

Total Pkg. Landscape Area (5% of 31,410 SF): 1,571 LF 3,773 SF

Tree Removal: 37 Trees                 18 Trees, (7 in ROW)
(569" Cal) (70.5" Cal*)

Parking Lot Trees (1 tree per 10 stalls) 8 Trees 8 Trees

Parking Lot Screening 42" wide 60" Provided

Street Landscape Buffer 20' wide 20.72' wide

Parking Lot Screening (Perimeter) 60" wide 60" wide
(400 LF/40 = 10 Trees) Shrubs 3' o.c. Shrubs 3' o.c.

Trees 1 per 40 LF Trees (10 total)

Open Space 10% Req'd Site =263,458.91 SF
Open Space=
28,428 SF (10.8%)

*Crape Myrtles assumed at 2.5" Cal.

SEE CIVIL SHEETS FOR
PLANTING DETAILS FOR AREAS
INSIDE OF AIRPORT FENCE.

SEE SHEETS LS-401 AND LS-501 FOR
LANDSCAPE NOTES AND DETAILS.

LS-101
75

LANDSCAPE PLAN

DPJ
DPJ

1 - UE

1 - UE

1 - UE

1 - QS

7 - AE

7 - PS
4 - CS

3 - AE

5 - CS
3 - AE

5 - CS

7 - PS

7 - AE

104 sf - ZZ

237 sf - ZZ

177 sf - ZZ

177 sf - ZZ

PROPOSED ASPHALT PAVEMENT

LEGEND

EXISTING DRAINAGE
STRUCTURE

PROPOSED DRAINAGE
STRUCTURE

XXX EXISTING CONTOUR

XXX PROPOSED CONTOUR

PROPOSED STORM DRAIN PIPE

EXISTING STORM DRAIN PIPE

W

SS

ROW

G

EXISTING WATER LINE

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER

EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY

EXISTING GAS LINE

EXISTING UNDERGROUND
ELECTRIC

EXISTING TREE

EXISTING FENCE

UGE

W

W PROPOSED WATER LINE

KEYMAP

PROPOSED
A11c HANGAR

PROPOSED
A11a HANGAR

OWNER LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT/APPLICANT
ADS HANGARS LLC
136 TOWER ROAD, SUITE 205
WESTCHESTER COUNTY AIRPORT
WHITE PLAINS, NY 10604

GARVER, LLC (REGISTRATION NO. 5713)
BRENT THOMAS, PLA, ASLA (TEXAS LA NO. 3324)
3010 GAYLORD PARKWAY, SUITE 190
FRISCO, TX 75077
(972) 377-7480

PROPOSED SUBDIVISION NAME: SKY HARBOUR HANGAR DEVELOPMENT
BLOCK DESIGNATION: NA
LOT NUMBER: NA
ACREAGE: 6.05 ACRES

ABSTRACT/SURVEY NAME AND NUMBER:
FA COMMERCIAL DUE DILIGENCE SERVICES CO.
(405) 253-2444

TOWN OF ADDISON NUMBER:
PREPARATION DATE: 6/13/22

83.53'

6,026 sf - ZZ

1,783 sf - ZZ

4 - RI
1 - UE9 - RI

1 - UE

1 - RI
1 - UE

9 - RI
1 - PC

9 - RI
1 - UE

9 - RI
1 - UE

9 - RI
1 - UE

8 - RI
1 - UE

1 - PC

1 - LW

25 - JW

19 - JW

68 - JW

361 sf - ZZ

1 - UE
1 - UE 1 - PC 1 - PC

19 - RI
11 - RI

8 - RI

7 - RI
5 - RI

2,566 sf - ZZ

1,014 sf - ZZ

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV



DRAWN BY: 

DATE:
JOB NO.:

DESIGNED BY:

R
EV

.
D

AT
E

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

BY

BAR IS ONE INCH ON
ORIGINAL DRAWING

IF NOT ONE INCH ON THIS SHEET,
ADJUST SCALES ACCORDINGLY.

0 1"

DRAWING NUMBER

SHEET
 NUMBER

MAY 2022
22A11111

THIS DOCUMENT, ALONG WITH THE
IDEAS AND DESIGNS CONVEYED
HEREIN, SHALL BE CONSIDERED

INSTRUMENTS OF PROFESSIONAL
SERVICE AND ARE PROPERTY OF

GARVER, LLC. ANY USE,
REPRODUCTION, OR DISTRIBUTION
OF THIS DOCUMENT, ALONG WITH

THE IDEAS AND DESIGN CONTAINED
HEREIN, IS PROHIBITED UNLESS

AUTHORIZED IN WRITING BY
GARVER, LLC OR EXPLICITLY
ALLOWED IN THE GOVERNING

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT FOR THIS WORK.

© 2022 GARVER, LLC

AD
D

IS
O

N
 A

IR
PO

R
T 

(A
D

S)
AD

D
IS

O
N

, T
EX

AS
AD

D
IS

O
N

, T
EX

AS

SK
Y 

H
AR

BO
U

R
 H

AN
G

AR
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

60
%

 C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
E

S
IG

N

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T 

IS
 R

E
LE

A
S

E
D

 F
O

R
 T

H
E

P
U

R
P

O
S

E
 O

F 
IN

TE
R

IM
 R

E
V

IE
W

 U
N

D
E

R
 T

H
E

A
U

TH
O

R
IT

Y
 O

F 
S

A
R

A
 C

. A
N

D
R

E
W

S
, P

.E
., 

N
O

.
12

68
32

, O
N

 0
5/

06
/2

02
2.

 IT
 IS

 N
O

T 
TO

 B
E

 U
S

E
D

FO
R

 C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

, O
R

 P
E

R
M

IT
P

U
R

P
O

S
E

S
.

REGISTRATION NO.
F-5713

1. PRIOR TO BEGINNING ANY WORK ON THE SITE, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
CONTACT THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT TO ADDRESS ANY QUESTIONS.

2. LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE LABOR, MATERIALS AND
SERVICE NECESSARY TO FURNISH AND INSTALL MATERIALS AS SPECIFIED
HEREIN AND SHOWN ON THE PLANS.

3. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SELECTIONS WILL BE REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY
OWNERS' REPRESENTATIVES PRIOR TO PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION.

4. NO MATERIAL SUBSTITUTIONS SHALL BE MADE WITHOUT LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT'S WRITTEN APPROVAL.  ALTERNATE MATERIALS OF SIMILAR
SIZE AND CHARACTER MAY BE CONSIDERED IF SPECIFIED PLANT
MATERIALS CANNOT BE OBTAINED.  LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT RESERVES
THE RIGHT TO REVISE THE PLANT LIST AS DEEMED NECESSARY.

5. QUANTITIES OF PLANT MATERIALS SHOWN ON THE PLAN TAKE
PRECEDENCE OVER THE QUANTITIES SHOWN ON THE PLANT SCHEDULE.
LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING ALL
QUANTITIES ON THE PLANTING PLAN.

6. REPORT DISCREPANCIES IN THE PLANTING PLAN TO THE LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT PRIOR TO PURCHASING MATERIALS OR COMMENCING
CONSTRUCTION.

7. REVIEW THE LANDSCAPE SPECIFICATION SECTION LOCATED IN THE
PROJECT MANUAL FOR ADDITIONAL PROJECT RESPONSIBILITIES AND
INSTRUCTIONS.

SITE PREPARATION AND EARTHWORK

8. TOPSOIL HAULED TO THE SITE SHALL BE FERTILE, FRIABLE, NATURAL LOAM
SOIL OF UNIFORM QUALITY CHARACTERISTIC OF REPRESENTATIVE LOCAL
SOILS WHICH PRODUCE HEAVY GROWTH OF CROP GRASSES, OR OTHER
VEGETATION.  SOIL SHALL BE FREE OF SUBSOIL, CLAY LUMPS, BRUSH
WEEDS ROOTS, STONES, TRASH, OR ANY OTHER DELETERIOUS MATERIALS.

9. TOPSOIL SHALL BE DELIVERED IN AN UNFROZEN AND NON-MUDDY
CONDITION AND SHALL BE SUBJECT TO APPROVAL OF THE LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT.  SOLUBLE SALTS SHALL NOT EXCEED 500 ppm AND ORGANIC
MATTER SHALL BE NO LESS THAN 1.5% BY WEIGHT.  pH SHALL RANGE
BETWEEN 6.0 AND 7.5.

10. LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE TOPSOIL TESTED BY A CERTIFIED
TESTING LABORATORY AND OBTAIN RECOMMENDATIONS FOR SOIL
AMENDMENT TYPE(S) AND QUANTITIES.  SUBMIT A COPY OF THIS REPORT
TO THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT FOR THEIR RECORDS.
RECOMMENDATIONS SHALL BE SPECIFIC TO THE TOPSOIL USED AND THE
PLANT MATERIALS SPECIFIED IN THE PLANS.  A SAMPLE OF THE TOPSOIL TO
BE USED SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT FOR
APPROVAL PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

PLANTING PREPARATION

12. REMOVE ALL SOD FROM PLANTING BEDS PRIOR TO AMENDING SOIL.

13. OVEREXCAVATE PLANTING BEDS TO A DEPTH OF 24" BELOW FINISH GRADE.
AMEND NATIVE SOIL WITH ORGANIC MATERIAL, SUCH AS COMPOST, AT A
RATIO OF 50% NATIVE SOIL AND 50% ORGANIC MATERIAL. PLACE IN 6" LIFTS
AND LIGHTLY TAMP. DO NOT OVERCOMPACT OR ALLOW HEAVY EQUIPMENT
TO DRIVE OVER BACKFILLED PLANTING AREAS .

14. BACKFILL: FOR PLANT EXCAVATIONS, BACKFILL SHALL BE CLEAN, NATURAL
TOPSOIL, MIXED WITH AMENDMENTS AT THE RATIOS SPECIFIED BY A
CERTIFIED TOPSOIL ANALYSIS.

PLANTING MATERIALS

15. PLANT MATERIALS SHALL BE WELL FORMED AND DEVELOPED IN GOOD
CONDITIONS, HEALTHY AND DISEASE-FREE, AND BE TYPICAL OF THE
SPECIES. PLANTS SHALL COMPLY IN ALL APPLICABLE RESPECTS WITH
ACCEPTABLE STANDARDS AS SET FORTH IN THE AMERICAN ASSOCIATION
OF NURSERYMAN'S “AMERICAN STANDARD OF NURSERY STOCK”.  HEIGHT
OF PLANT MATERIALS SHALL BE MEASURED FROM EXISTING SOIL LINE AT
TOP OF ROOTBALL TO TOP OF CROWN.

16. PLANT MATERIALS SHALL BE PROTECTED BY THE DRYING ACTION OF THE
SUN AND WIND AFTER BEING DUG, WHILE BEING TRANSPORTED, AND WHILE
AWAITING PLANTING.  BALLS OF PLANTS WHICH CANNOT BE PLANTED
IMMEDIATELY SHALL BE PROTECTED FROM DRYING ACTION BY COVERING
THEM WITH MOIST MULCH.  PERIODICALLY, APPLY WATER TO
MULCH-COVERED ROOT BALLS TO KEEP MOIST.  IF PLANTING SHOULD
OCCUR DURING GROWING SEASON, APPLY ANTI-DESSICANT BEFORE
TRANSPORT TO REDUCE THE LIKELIHOOD OF WIND BURN. REAPPLY
ANTI-DESSICANT AFTER PLANTING TO REDUCE TRANSPIRATION.

17. PLANTS DESIGNATED "CONTAINER GROWN" SHALL HAVE BEEN GROWN IN
POTS, CANS OR BOXES FOR A MINIMUM OF SIX MONTHS AND A MAXIMUM OF
TWO YEARS.  THESE PLANTS SHALL BE REMOVED FROM CONTAINERS
BEFORE PLANTING.  PLANTS THAT APPEAR ROOT-BOUND SHALL BE
REJECTED.

18. PLANT LOCATIONS ARE APPROXIMATE.  ADJUST AS NECESSARY TO AVOID
CONFLICTS.

19. USE TRIANGULAR SPACING ON ALL NATIVE FORBES, PERENNIALS, AND
ANNUALS.

20. PLANT SUBSTITUTIONS WILL ONLY BE ALLOWED UNDER THE FOLLOWING
CIRCUMSTANCES:  LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL SUBMIT A WRITTEN
SUBSTITUTION REQUEST TO THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT STATING WHAT
PLANTS TO BE SUBSTITUTED AND THE REQUESTED SUBSTITUTION PLANT
ALONG WITH EXPLANATION OF SUBSTITUTION REQUEST.  NO SUBSTITUTION

SHALL CONSTITUTE AN INCREASE IN THE COST FROM THE ORIGINAL
CONTRACT AMOUNT.  ANY PLANT SUBSTITUTIONS MADE WITHOUT
APPROVAL SHALL BE REPLACED BY THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR AT THE
TIME OF INSPECTION AT NO COST TO THE PROJECT.

21. PLACE 3” OF HARDWOOD MULCH IN ALL  PLANTING BEDS SHOWN ON THE
PLAN IN ORDER TO COVER BARE SOIL.

22. PLANTING BEDS RECEIVING MULCH SHALL BE FREE OF WEEDS, GRASS AND
DEBRIS.  TREAT BEDS WITH A PRE-EMERGENT WITH TREFLAN, SUCH AS
PREEN, PRIOR TO PLANTING AND MULCH PLACEMENT.  A SECOND
APPLICATION SHOULD BE APPLIED IF WEEDS EMERGE PRIOR TO
COMPLETION OF WORK.  APPLY IN ACCORDANCE WITH STANDARD TRADE
PRACTICE AND MANUFACTURER'S PRODUCT LABELING.

MAINTENANCE AND CLEAN-UP

23. PROVIDE TEMPORARY WATER FOR PLANT MATERIALS DURING THE
ESTABLISHMENT PERIOD.

24. REMOVE ALL RUBBISH, EQUIPMENT, AND MATERIAL AND LEAVE THE AREA IN
A NEAT, CLEAN CONDITION EACH DAY.  MAINTAIN PAVED AREAS UTILIZED
FOR HAULING EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS BY OTHER TRADES IN A CLEAN
AND UNOBSTRUCTED CONDITION AT ALL TIMES.

25. REMOVE SOIL OR DIRT THAT HAS ACCUMULATED ON PAVED SURFACES
DURING OR AS A RESULT OF PLANTING OPERATIONS EACH DAY.

26. FERTILIZE ALL PLANTS WITH A 10-20-10 COMMERCIAL, SLOW-RELEASE
FERTILIZER AS DIRECTED BY INSTRUCTIONS ON PRODUCT LABEL.

27. LIMIT AMOUNT OF PRUNING TO A MINIMUM NECESSARY TO REMOVE DEAD
OR INJURED TWIGS AND BRANCHES.  PRUNE IN SUCH A MANNER AS NOT TO
CHANGE NATURAL HABIT OR SHAPE OF PLANT.  MAKE CUTS FLUSH,
LEAVING NO STUBS.  CENTRAL LEADERS SHALL NOT BE REMOVED.

28. LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR TO REMOVE ALL DEAD WOOD ON TREES AND
SHRUBS ONE YEAR AFTER PROVISIONAL ACCEPTANCE.

29. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO MOW ALL SEEDED AND SODDED AREAS
A MINIMUM OF TWO (2) TIMES AT A HEIGHT OF NO MORE THAN 1-1/2" PRIOR
TO TURNING OVER TO THE CITY.

GENERAL PLANTING NOTES

LS-401
77

LANDSCAPE NOTES

DPJ
DPJ



DRAWN BY: 

DATE:
JOB NO.:

DESIGNED BY:

R
EV

.
D

AT
E

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

BY

BAR IS ONE INCH ON
ORIGINAL DRAWING

IF NOT ONE INCH ON THIS SHEET,
ADJUST SCALES ACCORDINGLY.

0 1"

DRAWING NUMBER

SHEET
 NUMBER

MAY 2022
22A11111

THIS DOCUMENT, ALONG WITH THE
IDEAS AND DESIGNS CONVEYED
HEREIN, SHALL BE CONSIDERED

INSTRUMENTS OF PROFESSIONAL
SERVICE AND ARE PROPERTY OF

GARVER, LLC. ANY USE,
REPRODUCTION, OR DISTRIBUTION
OF THIS DOCUMENT, ALONG WITH

THE IDEAS AND DESIGN CONTAINED
HEREIN, IS PROHIBITED UNLESS

AUTHORIZED IN WRITING BY
GARVER, LLC OR EXPLICITLY
ALLOWED IN THE GOVERNING

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT FOR THIS WORK.

© 2022 GARVER, LLC

AD
D

IS
O

N
 A

IR
PO

R
T 

(A
D

S)
AD

D
IS

O
N

, T
EX

AS
AD

D
IS

O
N

, T
EX

AS

SK
Y 

H
AR

BO
U

R
 H

AN
G

AR
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

60
%

 C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
E

S
IG

N

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T 

IS
 R

E
LE

A
S

E
D

 F
O

R
 T

H
E

P
U

R
P

O
S

E
 O

F 
IN

TE
R

IM
 R

E
V

IE
W

 U
N

D
E

R
 T

H
E

A
U

TH
O

R
IT

Y
 O

F 
S

A
R

A
 C

. A
N

D
R

E
W

S
, P

.E
., 

N
O

.
12

68
32

, O
N

 0
5/

06
/2

02
2.

 IT
 IS

 N
O

T 
TO

 B
E

 U
S

E
D

FO
R

 C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

, O
R

 P
E

R
M

IT
P

U
R

P
O

S
E

S
.

REGISTRATION NO.
F-5713

MIN 2"-3" OF MULCH

FINISH GRADE

REMOVE CONTAINER COMPLETELY

SCALE: NONE2 SHRUB PLANTING DETAIL

UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE
(PROVIDES FIRM BASE SO THAT
ROOTBALL WILL NOT SINK)

NATIVE BACKFILL SOIL AMENDED
WITH 25 % DECOMPOSED ORGANIC
MULCH AMMENDMENT

ADDITIONAL PLANTING AREA
PREPARATION PER DRAWINGS

SHRUB PLANTING PIT PREPARATION
= ROOTBALL DEPTH & WIDTH PLUS
1'-0" ADDITIONAL ALL SIDES

SET ALL PLANTS AT
NURSERY LEVEL (TYP)

CONTAINERIZED
SHRUB (TYP)

SCALE: NONE1 DECIDUOUS TREE PLANTING DETAIL

2'-0" MIN 2'-0" MIN

MULCH AREA TO BE CLEAR OF GRASS, WEEDS, ETC.
TO REDUCE COMPETITION WITH TREE ROOTS

MIN WIDTH OF TREE PIT= 2 TIMES
ROOTBALL DIAMETER OR

5'-0", WHICHEVER IS GREATER

SET TOP OF ROOT CROWN 2" ABOVE
ADJACENT CURB & SIDEWALK GRADE

TREE PIT DEPTH=
ROOTBALL DEPTH (MEASURE
BEFORE DIGGING TO AVOID
OVEREXCAVATION)

DRIVE POSTS 6" TO 1'-0" INTO
UNDISTURBED SOIL

DRIVE STAKE AT ROOTBALL
EDGE (TYP)

TREE INSTALLATION NOTES:
1. INSTALLATION INCLUDES REMOVAL

OF STAKES ONE YEAR AFTER
INSTALLATION

2. SHAPE SOIL SURFACE TO PROVIDE
3' DIAMETER WATERING RING

3. BACKFILL TREE PIT IN 6" LIFTS,
COMPACTING EACH LIFT TO
REMOVE ANY AIR POCKETS.

4. AFTER BACKFILLING, REMOVE
REMAINING DIRT AND DEBRIS
FROM SITE.

MAINTAIN 1" CLEARANCE FROM TOP OF
MULCH TO TOP OF ADJACENT SIDEWALK
OR CURB.

"CHAINLOCK" OR EQUAL TREE TIE
MATERIAL (1" WIDTH) TIE OFF TREE TIE
MATERIAL TO WOOD TREE STAKE OR
METAL T-POST TO HOLD VERTICALLY.
LOOP EACH TIE AROUND HALF TREE
LOOSELY TO PROVIDE 1" SLACK FOR
TRUNK GROWTH

3" MULCH DEPTH
(TAPERED AT TRUNK)

MULCH TREE PIT MIN 5'-0" LENGTH X FULL
PLANTING STRIP WIDTH BETWEEN CURB
AND SIDEWALK (FOR PLANTING STRIPS LESS
THAN 6'-0" WIDE.) PROVIDE 5'-0"Ø MULCH
RING FOR PLANTING STRIPS WIDER THAN
6'-0"

SIDEWALK

ROUGHEN SIDES OF PLANTING HOLE
MAXIMIZE EXCAVATED AREA WITHOUT
UNDERMINING ADJACENT PAVING/CURB

18" DEEP ROOT BARRIER (TYP.
WITHIN 10' OF PAVING
REMOVE ALL WIRE & STRING, AND
REMOVE ALL BURLAP FROM TOP 2/3 OF
ROOTBALL

NATIVE BACKFILL SOIL AMENDMENT
WITH 25% DECOMPOSED ORGANIC
MULCH AMENDMENT FOR ENTIRE
TREE PIT AREA X ROOTBALL DEPTH
UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE (PROVIDES
FIRM BASE SO THAT ROOTBALL WILL
NOT SINK)

LS-501
78

LANDSCAPE DETAILS

DPJ
DPJ



SITE

TAXIWAY ALPHA

T
A

X
IL

A
N

E
 V

IC
T

O
R

OPTION 1 - 103,600 SF HANGAR TOTAL

93,400 SF RAMP

62 PARKING SPACES

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 H
A

N
G

A
R

PROPERTY LINE

C
L
A

IR
E

 C
H

E
N

N
A

U
L
T

 D
R

IV
E

T
A

X
IL

A
N

E
 V

IC
T

O
RBUILDING RESTRICTION LINE

RAMP

RAMP

TL VICTOR TOFA

GSE

1,000 SF

HANGAR D
OOR

O
F
F
IC

E

3
,6

0
0
 S

F

SEM-P
RIVATE H

ANGAR

29,000 SF

SH-16

14,200 SF

SH-16

14,200 SF

SH-16

14,200 SF

SH-16

14,200 SF

50' - 0"

1
3

6
' 
- 

9
 1

/2
"

SH-16

14,200 SF

BUILDING A

BUILDING B

BUILDING C

BUILDIN
G D

1.

CONCEPTUAL SITE STUDY
NEW HANGAR DEVELOPMENT - ADS

|  06/14/22

SCALE: 1" = 40'

N

CASE #SP2022-05



HANGAR

GARAGE

ELEC.

LOUNGE

RESTROOM

RESTROOM

NOSE DOCK

119' - 4"

1
1

9
' 
- 

0
"

I.T.

2

SH-16 ENLARGED FLOOR PLAN
NEW HANGAR DEVELOPMENT - ADS

|  06/14/22

1/8" = 1'-0"
1

Floor Plan

CASE #SP2022-05



SEM-PRIVATE HANGAR

37,500 SF

MECH./FIRE 

SUPPRESSION

OFFICEOFFICE

OFFICEOFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE OFFICE

JAN.I.T.

RR

RR

GALLEY

OFFICE

GSE

HANGAR DOOR CLEAR OPENING

165' - 0"

HANGAR C

3

SH-30 ENLARGED FLOOR PLAN
NEW HANGAR DEVELOPMENT - ADS

|  06/14/22

3/32" = 1'-0"
1

Floor Plan

CASE #SP2022-05



LED EXTERIOR LIGHTING

PREFABRICATED METAL PANEL

BIFOLD HANGAR DOOR

ALUMINUM FRAMED STOREFRONT GLAZING

LED EXTERIOR LIGHTING 

LOUNGE ENTRY WITH SIDELIGHT

PREFABRICATED CANOPY GLASS PANEL GARAGE DOOR PREFABRICATED METAL PANEL

ARCHITECTURAL BRICK CMU

PREFABRICATED METAL PANEL

BACKLIT SIGNAGE

PREFABRICATED METAL PANEL

BACKLIT SIGNAGE

4

BUILDING A ELEVATIONS
NEW HANGAR DEVELOPMENT - ADS

|  06/14/22

3/32" = 1'-0"
1

BUILDING A AIRSIDE ELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0"
2

BUILDING A LANDSIDE ELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0"
3

BUILDING A WEST

3/32" = 1'-0"
4

BUILDING A EAST

CASE #SP2022-05



LED EXTERIOR LIGHTING

PREFABRICATED METAL PANEL

BIFOLD HANGAR DOOR

ALUMINUM FRAMED STOREFRONT GLAZING

LED EXTERIOR LIGHTING 

LOUNGE ENTRY WITH SIDELIGHT

PREFABRICATED CANOPY COILING 

GARAGE DOOR 

PREFABRICATED METAL PANEL 

GLASS PANEL GARAGE DOOR

PREFABRICATED METAL PANELPREFABRICATED METAL PANEL

5

BUILDING B ELEVATIONS
NEW HANGAR DEVELOPMENT - ADS

|  06/14/22

3/32" = 1'-0"
2

BUILDING B AIRSIDE

3/32" = 1'-0"
4

BUILDING B LANDSIDE

3/32" = 1'-0"
1

BUILDING B NORTH

3/32" = 1'-0"
3

BUILDING B SOUTH

CASE #SP2022-05



LED EXTERIOR LIGHTING

PRFABRICATED METAL PANEL

BIFOLD HANGAR DOOR

ALUMINUM FRAMED STOREFRONT GLAZING

LED EXTERIOR LIGHTING 

LOUNGE ENTRY WITH SIDELIGHT

PREFABRICATED CANOPY COILING 

GARAGE DOOR 

PREFABRICATED  METAL PANEL

ARCHITECTURAL BRICK CMU

CORRUGATED METAL PANEL

6

BUILDING C ELEVATIONS
NEW HANGAR DEVELOPMENT - ADS

|  06/14/22

3/32" = 1'-0"
3

BUILDING C AIRSIDE

3/32" = 1'-0"
2

BUILDING C LAND SIDE

3/32" = 1'-0"
1

BUILDING C NORTH

CASE #SP2022-05



HANGAR C 

LED EXTERIOR LIGHTING

PREFABRICATED METAL PANEL

ROLLING HANGAR DOOR

BACKLIT SIGNAGE

HANGAR C

PREFABRICATED METAL PANEL

POLYCARBONATE 

CLERESTORY WINDOW

LED EXTERIOR LIGHTING

HANGAR C

LED EXTERIOR LIGHTING

PREFABRICATED METAL PANEL

BACKLIT SIGNAGE

PREFABRICATED METAL PANEL

ALUMINUM STOREFRONT WINDOW LOUNGE ENTRY W/ SIDELITE

POLYCARBONATE CLERESTORY WINDOW LED EXTERIOR LIGHTING

PREFABRICATED CANOPY 

7

BUILDING D ELEVATIONS
NEW HANGAR DEVELOPMENT - ADS

|  06/14/22

3/32" = 1'-0"
1

BUILDING D AIRSIDE

3/32" = 1'-0"
2

BUILDING D EAST

3/32" = 1'-0"
3

BUILDING D LANDSIDE

3/32" = 1'-0"
4

BUILDING D WEST

CASE #SP2022-05



8

EXTERIOR FINISHES
NEW HANGAR DEVELOPMENT - ADS

|  06/14/22

ARCHITECTURAL BRICK CMU

OLDCASTLE - PEARL WHITE

PREFABRICATED METAL PANEL

KIRBY BUILDING SYSTEMS SEMI CONCEALED PANEL

COLOR: POLAR WHITE 

FACADE PLAN NOTES

THE FACADE PLAN IS FOR CONCEPTUAL PURPOSES
ONLY. ALL BUILDING PLANS REQUIRE REVIEW AND
APPROVAL BY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES. 

ALL MECHANICAL UNITS SHALL BE SCREENED FROM
PUBLIC VIEW AS REQUIRED BY THE ZONING
ORDINANCE. 

WHEN PERMITTED, EXPOSED UTILITY BOXES AND
CONDUITS SHALL BE PAINTED TO MATCH THE BUILDING.

ALL SIGNAGE AREAS AND LOCATIONS ARE SUBJECT TO
APPROVAL BY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES. 

ROOF ACCESS SHALL BE PROVIDED INTERNALLY,
UNLESS OTHERWISE PERMITTED BY THE CHIEF
BUILDING OFFICIAL.

CASE #SP2022-05



   
Planning & Zoning Commission 4.           
Meeting Date: 08/16/2022  

Agenda Caption:
Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a 
Recommendation regarding an Ordinance Rezoning a 2.034 Acre Property
Located at 3820 Belt Line Road from the Planned Development District (PD)
with Modified Belt Line District (BL) Standards to a New Planned
Development District (PD) with Modified Local Retail District (LR)
Standards and a Special Use Permit (SUP) to Allow the Development of a
Drive-Thru Only Restaurant.  Case 1850-Z/3820 Belt Line Road (Salad & Go).

Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval of these requests, subject to the following conditions:
  

The 2.034 acre subject property shall be developed in accordance with the
LR district standards with the following exceptions: 

Minimum Building Height = 20 feet.
Minimum Landscape Buffer = 19 feet, due to the existing setback from
Belt Line Road.
The previously approved retail building shall be developed in
accordance with standards established by Ordinance O21-37.

No additional driveway connections to Belt Line Road from the 2.034 acre
subject property are permitted.
If the 2.034 acre subject property was to be subdivided in the future, an
easement or private agreement shall be established to allow for
cross-access through the subject property to existing and future points of
access on Business Avenue and Commercial Drive.
SUP Ordinance No. 2005-036 (Humperdink’s) and all preceding restaurant
SUPs shall be repealed upon approval of this ordinance.

Attachments
1850-Z Staff Report 
1850-Z Plans 
1850-Z Letter of Intent 
1850-Z Public Comment 





August 16, 2022

STAFF REPORT

RE: 1850-Z/3820 Belt Line Road (Salad & Go)

LOCATION: 3820 Belt Line Road

REQUEST: Approval to rezone 2.034 acres from 
Planned Development (PD) with modified 
Belt Line District (BL) standards to a new 
Planned Development District (PD) with 
modified Local Retail District (LR) standards 
and approval of a Special Use Permit (SUP) 
for a new drive-thru only restaurant. 

APPLICANT: Christopher Zamora, Quiddity Engineering

DISCUSSION: 

Background: This request is specific to the 2.034-acre property located at 3820 Belt Line Road. 
The property is currently occupied by a vacant restaurant building and associated parking, 
formerly known as Humperdink’s Restaurant and Brewpub.

On November 10, 2020, City Council approved the rezoning of the property to Planned 
Development (PD) District, through Ordinance O20-54. This rezoning allowed for the 
development of a new two-story retail and office building on the eastern portion of the site while 
maintaining the existing restaurant building on the western portion. This PD District (Ordinance 
O20-54) was based on the Belt Line (BL) District standards with modifications to block length 
requirements, established a minimum lot size of 2.034 acres, and allowing the south façade of 
the new building to have only 73% brick or stone and 17% glazing. 

On October 12, 2021, City Council approved an amendment to this PD, through Ordinance O21-
37, to eliminate a previously adopted minimum lot size requirement that would have prohibited 
subdivision of the subject property.  

The applicant, Salad & Go, proposes to rezone this site to a Planned Development (PD) District, 
based on modified Local Retail (LR) District standards, and has requested approval of a Special 
Use Permit (SUP) in order to facilitate the development of a drive-thru only restaurant at the 
western edge of the subject property, immediately adjacent to Business Avenue. 

Salad & Go is an Arizona-based fast food concept focused on healthy meal options in the form of 
salads, wraps, soups, specialty teas and lemonades, and breakfast options. Ordering may be 
carried out through drive thru, walk up, and app based options, with most activity occurring via 
drive thru. Onsite dining options are not offered by Salad & Go. This proposed location would be 
the first and likely only Addison location, as Salad & Go has recently established locations at Belt 

https://www.saladandgo.com/


2

Line and Coit, and at Trinity Mills, just west of Westgrove Drive. Salad & Go has also recently 
established a corporate office in Addison.

Proposed Plan: With this request, Salad & Go proposes to construct a 916 square foot single-
story drive thru only restaurant on a 0.562 acre segment of land at the western edge of the subject 
property. Improvements to the site will include pavement and curbing for the parking, drive-thru 
lanes, and site access, a dumpster enclosure at the rear of the property, pedestrian connectivity 
to the existing sidewalk on Belt Line Road, and new landscape to support the site. The interior 
floor plan is comprised entirely of service area, with window service provided for drive-thru and 
walk up customers. The drive-thru layout provides two lanes leading up to the menu boards, and 
necks down to a single lane following placement of an order. The site can be accessed from 
Business Avenue to the west and Commercial Drive to the east. Both of these site access points 
are private driveways that provide connectivity to signalized intersections at Belt Line Road.

This request to rezone to a PD with modified LR district standards was made in order to facilitate 
zoning that best fits the context of Salad & Go, any future re-use or redevelopment of the 
Humperdink’s building, and the proposed two-story retail and office building at the eastern edge 
of the subject property. This proposed zoning is more reflective of the proposed suburban 
development context exhibited here. Application of the Belt Line District standards is best suited 
for transformational redevelopment projects like Addison Grove, where urban block patterns with 
urban buildings are established to promote a pedestrian friendly environment, where buildings 
frame the streetscape. Transformational redevelopment to an urban development context is 
challenging at this location due to the shape and size of the lot.

Parking: In accordance with the concept plan prepared for the subject property and the 
development plan submitted for Salad & Go, 84 parking spaces are required for the overall 
concept plan, based on the desire of the owner of the subject property to remove restaurant use 
as a programming option for the existing Humperdink’s building. With this transition in use and 
the proposed parking modifications achieved by Salad & Go, this site exceeds this parking 
requirement by providing for 85 total parking spaces, with 14 parking spaces provided for Salad 
& Go, exceeding the 13 space minimum parking requirement. 

Exterior Facades: The proposed facades are comprised primarily of masonry materials and colors 
and signage consistent with the Salad & Go brand. Each elevation reflects a stone base, with 
brick comprising much of the remainder of the façade. Color is introduced through accent 
segments of EIFS painted orange and green. Aluminum awnings cover the drive-thru and walk-
up ordering windows. At 20 feet, the building achieves a more prominent scale than what is 
typically achieved for a single-story building, which is a desirable treatment at the Belt Line Road 
frontage.  

Landscaping and Open Space: With this request, landscape compliance was only evaluated for 
Salad & Go, as landscape compliance was previously determined for the proposed two-story 
office and retail building, and when future re-use or redevelopment of the existing Humperdink’s 
building occurs, landscape compliance will be evaluated for that site at the time of that request.

Salad & Go has met or exceeded Town requirements for the provision of landscape area, a 
landscape buffer, tree plantings, and parking lot interior landscaping. It was not possible for Salad 
& Go to plant required street trees at the Belt Line frontage due to the presence of public drainage 
and sewer lines at the front of the subject property. Those required plantings were achieved at 
other locations on the property.



3

Public Outreach: Due to this site being situated adjacent to the Asbury Circle neighborhood, Salad 
& Go conducted a neighborhood meeting via Zoom with members of the Asbury Circle HOA. 
Following that meeting, the Asbury Circle HOA President, Elisca Hicks, shared that the vast 
majority of residents who participated in that meeting were supportive of the use. Ms. Hicks shared 
that the few concerns that were raised were possible noise from delivery vehicles during early 
morning hours and signage to direct customers to exit onto Business Ave. 

RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL WITH CONDITIONS

The proposed rezoning and SUP to facilitate the development of Salad & Go will add a popular 
restaurant concept to a declining site and will serve as a catalyst for redevelopment of the 
remainder of the site. This change will help eliminate a nuisance condition for the Asbury Circle 
neighborhood and surrounding businesses. The proposed PD with modified LR district standards 
is the best fit for this development context.     

Staff recommends approval of these requests, subject to the following conditions:

 The 2.034 acre subject property shall be developed in accordance with the LR district 
standards with the following exceptions:

o Minimum Building Height = 20 feet.

o Minimum Landscape Buffer = 19 feet, due to the existing setback from Belt Line 
Road.

o The previously approved retail building shall be developed in accordance with 
standards established by Ordinance O21-37. 

 No additional driveway connections to Belt Line Road from the 2.034 acre subject property 
are permitted.

 If the 2.034 acre subject property was to be subdivided in the future, an easement or 
private agreement shall be established to allow for cross-access through the subject 
property to existing and future points of access on Business Avenue and Commercial 
Drive.

 SUP Ordinance No. 2005-036 (Humperdink’s) and all preceding restaurant SUPs shall be 
repealed upon approval of this ordinance.



T
w

BELT LINE ROAD

N00°29'12"W
    212.25'

S89°30'48"W    101.41'
L=124.807 , R=184.120

S38
°21

'06
"W

    
32

4.7
5'

S00°29'12"E    30.50'

N89°30'48"E    24.25'
S85°03'35"E    100.45'

N89°30'48"E    256.29'

N44°
30'

48"
E    5

6.5
7'

PRIV
ATE

 D
RIV

E

w w

E

18'
(TYP)

22'

4.5
'

8' 5' 11'

PROPOSED
2-STORY

RETAIL/OFFICE
RETAIL - 2,503 SF
OFFICE - 720 SF

24
'

14
.8'

18
'

24
'

18
' (T

YP
.)

9'
(TYP)

4.5
'

6

10

9
1010

10

2

18
' (T

YP
.)

9' (TYP.)

5'

2.5'

5'
8'

5'

53.99'

44
.00

'

2

1

53
.90

'

17.79' 14.5' 2' 8'8'12.5'3'12.6'

5'
3'

12
'

22
.6'

18
'

6'
9.9

'
7'

37
'

12
.5'

3'
12

.5'
3'

9' 9'

24
.1'

18
'

4.7
'

25

8

2

1

11.9'

25' BUILDING
SETBACK

PROP DRIVE-THRU
RESTAURANT 916 SF

PROP BIKE RACK

PROP BIKE RACK
(TYP. OF 3)

7

18'
(TYP.)

4.9
'

15
11

4'

LOCATION MAP NOT TO SCALE

ENGINEER:
BOHLER ENGINEERING
6017 MAIN STREET
FRISCO, TX 75034
PHONE:(469) 458-7300
CONTACT: MATHIAS HAUBERT

SURVEYOR:
AXIS SURVEYING
714 FERRIS AVE B
WAXAHACHIE, TX 75168
PHONE: (214) 903-8200
CONTACT: SEAN SHROPSHIRE

OWNER/APPLICANT
ADDISON RETAIL, LLC
83 ORCHARD HILL PARK DR
LEOMINSTER, MA 04153
PHONE: (978) 466-6661
CONTACT: GREGG LISCIOTTI

TOWN OF ADDISON SITE PLAN NOTES:

1. ANY REVISION TO THIS PLAN WILL REQUIRE TOWN APPROVAL AND WILL REQUIRE
REVISIONS TO ANY CORRESPONDING PLANS TO AVOID CONFLICTS BETWEEN PLANS.

2. OPEN STORAGE, WHERE PERMITTED, SHALL BE SCREENED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
ZONING ORDINANCE.

3. BUILDINGS WITH AN AGGREGATE SUM OF 500 SQUARE FEET OR GREATER ON A LOT
SHALL HAVE AUTOMATIC FIRE SPRINKLERS INSTALLED THROUGHOUT ALL
STRUCTURES. ALTERNATIVE FIRE PROTECTION MEASURES MAY BE APPROVED BY THE
FIRE DEPARTMENT.

4. ALL SIGNAGE IS SUBJECT TO TOWN APPROVAL.

5. ALL FENCES AND RETAINING WALLS SHALL BE SHOWN ON THE SITE PLAN AND ARE
SUBJECT TO BUILDING INSPECTION DIVISION APPROVAL.

GENERAL SITE PLAN NOTES:
1. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE FROM FACE OF CURB OR FACE OF BUILDING UNLESS NOTED

OTHERWISE.

2. ALL CURB RADII ARE 3' UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO THE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR EXACT LOCATIONS
AND DIMENSIONS OF VESTIBULES, SLOPE PAVING, SIDEWALKS, EXIT PORCHES, TRUCK
DOCKS, PRECISE BUILDING DIMENSIONS AND EXACT BUILDING UTILITY ENTRANCE
LOCATIONS.

4. ALL DISTURBED AREAS ARE TO RECEIVE FOUR INCHES OF TOPSOIL, SEED , MULCH
AND WATER UNTIL A HEALTHY STAND OF GRASS IS ESTABLISHED.

5. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL RELOCATIONS, (UNLESS OTHERWISE
NOTED ON PLANS) INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ALL UTILITIES, STORM DRAINAGE,
SIGNS, TRAFFIC SIGNALS & POLES, ETC. AS REQUIRED. ALL WORK SHALL BE IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNING AUTHORITIES REQUIREMENTS AND PROJECT SITE
WORK SPECIFICATIONS AND SHALL BE APPROVED BY SUCH. ALL COST SHALL BE
INCLUDED IN BASE BID.

6. SITE BOUNDARY, TOPOGRAPHY, UTILITY AND ROAD INFORMATION TAKEN FORM A
SURVEY BY A LAND SURVEYOR.

7. THIS DEVELOPMENT WILL NOT IMPACT THE EXISTING NATURAL RESOURCES OF THE
SURROUNDING PROPERTIES.

8. SITE LIES WITHIN 'ZONE X, 0.2 PCT ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD HAZARD,' ACCORDING TO
FEMA FLOOD MAP 48113C0180K.

9. THIS PLAN CONFORMS WITH DESIGN STANDARDS INCLUDED IN THE TOWN OF
ADDISON TRANSPORTATION PLAN, WATER SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS, WASTEWATER
SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS, AND DRAINAGE CRITERIA MANUAL.

10. REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR EXACT DIMENSIONS OF PROPOSED
BUILDINGS. ONLY THE OVERALL FOOTPRINTS HAVE BEEN OUTLINED IN THIS SITE PLAN.

11. REFERENCE APPROVED CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS TITLED BELT LINE 1.5
PREPARED BY PACHECO KOCH DATED 01/02/2020 SIGNED BY AMBER M. DAVIS.

12. ANY PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TOWN OF
ADDISON'S PAVEMENT SECTION SPECIFICATIONS, OR MATCH EXISTING SECTIONS
WHICHEVER IS GREATER.

13. EXISTING FIRE LANE MARKING TO BE REMOVED TO ALLOW FOR THE PROPOSED FIRE
LANE CIRCULATION AS SHOWN IN THIS PLAN.

14. CROSS ACCESS AND UTILITY EASEMENT FOR ADJACENT DEVELOPMENT TO THE WEST
OF THIS PROPERTY TO BE DEDICATED BY SEPARATE PRIVATE AGREEMENT.

SP0

C-301

CONCEPT PLAN

ALWAYS CALL 811
It's fast. It's free. It's the law.

ISSUED FOR MUNICIPAL &
AGENCY REVIEW & APPROVAL

2600 NETWORK BLVD, STE 310
FRISCO, TX 75034

Phone: (469) 458-7300
TX@BohlerEng.com

TBPE No. 18065 | TBPLS No. 10194413

TM

TH
E 

IN
FO

RM
AT

IO
N,

 D
ES

IG
N 

AN
D 

CO
NT

EN
T 

OF
 T

HI
S 

PL
AN

 A
RE

 P
RO

PR
IE

TA
RY

 A
ND

 S
HA

LL
 N

OT
 B

E 
CO

PI
ED

 O
R 

US
ED

 F
OR

 A
NY

 P
UR

PO
SE

 W
IT

HO
UT

 P
RI

OR
 W

RI
TT

EN
AU

TH
OR

IZ
AT

IO
N 

FR
OM

 B
OH

LE
R.

 O
NL

Y 
AP

PR
OV

ED
, S

IG
NE

D 
AN

D 
SE

AL
ED

 P
LA

NS
 S

HA
LL

 B
E 

UT
ILI

ZE
D 

FO
R 

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
ON

 P
UR

PO
SE

S
©

SI
TE

 C
IV

IL
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
SU

LT
IN

G
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
LA

N
D

 S
U

R
VE

YI
N

G
PR

O
G

R
AM

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

AR
C

H
IT

EC
TU

R
E

SU
ST

AI
N

AB
LE

 D
ES

IG
N

PE
R

M
IT

TI
N

G
 S

ER
VI

C
ES

TR
AN

SP
O

R
TA

TI
O

N
 S

ER
VI

C
ES

BO
H

LE
R

DI
SC

LA
IM

ER

PROJECT No.:
DRAWN BY:
CHECKED BY:
DATE:
CAD I.D.:

PROJECT:

FOR

H
:\2

1\
TD

21
00

02
\D

R
AW

IN
G

S\
PL

AN
 S

ET
S\

TD
21

00
02

 - 
SI

TE
 - 

X-
---

->
LA

YO
U

T:
 O

VE
R

AL
L 

SI
TE

M
G

THIS DRAWING IS INTENDED FOR MUNICIPAL AND/OR AGENCY
REVIEW AND APPROVAL.  IT IS NOT INTENDED AS A CONSTRUCTION

DOCUMENT UNLESS INDICATED OTHERWISE.

SHEET NUMBER:

SHEET TITLE:

REVISIONS

REV DATE COMMENT
DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

 A
ug

 1
2,

  2
02

2

TD210002
MG

MJH
8/12/2022

CONCEPT PLAN

3820 BELT LINE ROAD
ADDISON, TX 75001
DALLAS COUNTY

THOMAS L CHINOWITH ABST. 273
BLOCK A, LOT 1R, 2.034 AC

ADDISON
RETAIL

LLC

CASE #1850-Z

FOR REVIEW PURPOSES ONLY
MATHIAS HAUBERT

LICENSE NUMBER: 138306

W E

S

N
AD

83

N
AD

83

1"= 30'

0 307.51530

SITE DATA SUMMARY
SITE INFORMATION

TOTAL LOT AREA 88,597 SF (2.034 AC)

PROPOSED BUILDING AREAS:
2-STORY RETAIL: 3,223 SF (2,503 SF =

RETAIL; 720 SF = OFFICE)
DRIVE-THRU RESTAURANT: 916 SF

EXISTING BUILDING AREAS
10,382 SF, 1-STORY

760 SF PATIO (11,142 SF = RETAIL)

TOTAL LOT COVERAGE 14,521 SF (16.4%)

PARKING DATA

REQUIRED

RETAIL RATIO 1 SPACE / 200 SF

RETAIL REQUIRED (INCLUDING 2-STORY
RETAIL AND EXISTING BUILDING) 68 SPACES

OFFICE RATIO 1 SPACE /300 SF

OFFICE REQUIRED 3 SPACES

DRIVE-THRU RESTAURANT RATIO 1 SPACE / 70 SF

DRIVE-THRU RESTAURANT REQUIRED 13 SPACES

TOTAL PARKING REQUIRED 84 SPACES

BIKE PARKING (1 / 10 SPACES) 8 SPACES

REQUIRED ADA SPACES 4 SPACES (1 VAN SPACE)

PROVIDED

TOTAL PROVIDED PARKING 85 SPACES

PROVIDED ADA SPACES 5 SPACES

PROVIDED BIKE PARKING 8 SPACES

SPACE USAGE

REQUIRED LANDSCAPE AREA 20% (17,719 SF)

PROVIDED LANDSCAPE AREA
21.7% (19,243 SF)

(INCLUDES LANDSCAPE AREA IN ROW)

IMPERVIOUS SURFACE AFTER
DEVELOPMENT

80.5% (71,294 SF)

JURISDICTIONAL

EXISTING ZONING / USE PD 93-018 / RESTAURANT

PROPOSED ZONING / USE PD - LOCAL RETAIL

 BUILDING SETBACKS:

FRONT 25'

SIDE 25' ADJ. TO R.O.W.; 0' ADJ. TO
NON-RESIDENTIAL

REAR 0'

LANDSCAPE BUFFER 25.3' LANDSCAPE BUFFER INCLUDING
SIDEWALK

LEGEND
EXISTING PROPERTY

BOUNDARY

EXISTING TREE

PROPOSED PARKING
COUNT

5

EXISTING SHRUB

PROPOSED CONCRETE
SIDEWALK

EXISTING FIRE HYRDANT

EXISTING SANITARY
SEWER MANHOLE

PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

PROPOSED SAWCUT

PROPOSED FIRE LANE

PROPOSED BIKE RACK

PROPOSED PROPERTY
BOUNDARY

19'



581580

579

579

581

580

579

579

580
581

583

582

582

581

581

581

580

581

582

SHADED
ZONE "X"

NON-SHADED
ZONE "X"

578

579

582

581

TBM A

TBM B

PROP.  6"
SANITARY SEWER

PROP. GREASE TRAP. SEE
MEP PLANS FOR DETAILS.

5

6

2

1

581

581

58
1

581

581

58
1

58
1

580

58
0

581

580

581

LOT 3C-1, BLOCK D
REPLAT OF ADDISON

TOWN CENTER
VOLUME 94176

PAGE 1630
O.P.R.D.C.T.

A PORTION OF
LOT 1-R, BLOCK A

PRINTEMPS ADDITION NO. 2
VOLUME 92162, PAGE 2251

D.R.D.C.T.

ADDISON RETAIL, LLC
INSTRUMENT NO. 201800004323

O.P.R.D.C.T.

A PORTION OF
LOT 1-R, BLOCK A

PRINTEMPS ADDITION NO. 2
VOLUME 92162, PAGE 2251

D.R.D.C.T.

0.56 ACRES
24,553 SQ. FT. 1.47 ACRES

64,046 SQ. FT.

5.0' TYP.

6.0' TYP.

5.0' TYP.

PROP. MENU BOARD

PROP. PREVIEW BOARD

PROP. DUMPSTER
ENCLOSURE

13,258 SF OF CONCRETE
TO BE REMOVED

550 LF OF SAWCUT FULL
VERTICAL DEPTH

CONNECT TO EXIST. 8" WATER LINE.
INSTALL:
1 - 8" x 1" TAPPING VALVE AND SLEEVE
1 - 1" DOMESTIC WATER METER
1 - 1"x1" TEE
1- DOMESTIC BACKFLOW PREVENTER
35 LF 1" DOMESTIC WATERLINE
SEE MEP PLANS FOR CONTINUATION

INSTALL:
1- IRRIGATION RPZ BACKFLOW PREVENTER
SEE IRRIGATION PLANS FOR CONTINUATION

CONNECT TO EXIST. 8" WATER LINE.
INSTALL:
1 - 8" x 6" TAPPING VALVE AND SLEEVE
30 LF 6" FIRE LINE
SEE MEP PLANS FOR CONTINUATION

PROP. 2' CURB CUT

PROP. 2' CURB CUT

PROP. 2' CURB CUT

PROP. ELECTRIC AND COMMUNICATION CONDUITS

PROP. TRANSFORMER.
CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE NEW

COMMUNICATION AND ELECTRIC
SERVICE WITH UTILITY COMPANY.

PROP. RISER ROOM

5.0'

PROP. FIRE LANE
(BY PLAT-OTHERS)

PROP. REMOTE FDC
WITH 4" FIRE LINE

PROP. FIRE HYDRANT
ASSEMBLY

PROP. "EXIT
ONLY" SIGN

PROP. DIRECTIONAL
SIGNAGE

BELT LINE ROAD
VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT-OF-WAY

NOTES
1. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE SHOWN PERPENDICULAR AND TO THE FRONT OF THE CURB UNLESS

OTHERWISE NOTED.

2. ALL CURB IS PERMANENT UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

3. SEE ARCH. PLANS FOR EXACT BUILDING DIMENSIONS. CONTRACTOR TO NOTIFY ENGINEER OF
ANY DISCREPANCIES.

4. CONTRACTOR TO USE CARE NOT TO DISTURB EXISTING LANDSCAPING OUTSIDE DISTURBED
AREA. IF DISTURB CONTRACTOR TO RESTORE TO ORIGINAL CONDITIONS OR BETTER.

5. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY THE LOCATION OF EXISTING UTILITIES.

6. HANDICAP PARKING IS PROVIDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ADA STANDARDS

OWNER
QUIDDITY ENGINEERING
4500 MERCANTILE PLAZA DRIVE
SUITE 210
FORT WORTH, TEXAS 76137
TEL (972) 265-7190
CONTACT: RYAN ALCALA, PE

APPLICANT
ADDISON RETAIL, LLC
83 ORCHARD HILL PARK DRIVE
LEOMINSTER, MASSACHUSETTS 01453
TEL (978) 466-6661
CONTACT: GREGG LISCIOTTI

LEGEND

PROPERTY LINE

PARKING COUNT5

PROP. SIDEWALK

PROP. MENU BOARD

PROP. BARRIER FREE RAMP

ADA ROUTE

EXIST. TREE

EXIST. CONCRETE PAVEMENT

PROP. LANDSCAPE AREA

C-4

CO
NC

EP
T 

PL
AN

PO
RT

IO
N 

OF
 LO

T 
1-

R,
 B

LO
CK

 A
PR

IN
TE

M
PS

 A
DD

IT
IO

N 
NO

. 2
VO

LU
M

E 
92

16
2,

 P
AG

E 
22

51
38

20
 B

EL
T 

LIN
E 

RO
AD

AD
DI

SO
N,

 T
X 

75
00

1

PROP. GRADE BREAK

MARSH/BELT LINE PRINTEMPS ADDITION LOT 1-R BLOCK A

EXISTING ZONING: PLANNED DEVELOPMENT (PD) ORDINANCE #093-018
PROPOSED ZONING:                                          PLANNED DEVELOPMENT (PD) - LOCAL RETAIL
CURRENT USE:            PARKING LOT TO VACANT BUILDING
PROPOSED USE:            DRIVE-THRU RESTAURANT W/ NO DINE IN

GENERAL

SITE DATA BASED ON SALAD AND GO PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

GROSS SITE AREA: 0.562 ACRES (24,553 SQUARE FEET)
SITE FRONTAGE: 256 FEET
SITE WIDTH: 101 FEET
SITE DEPTH: 252 FEET
IMPERVIOUS COVER: 18,937 SQUARE FEET (0.433 ACRES)
PERVIOUS COVER:                                  5,616 SQUARE FEET (0.128 ACRES)

OVERALL SITE

BUILDING AREA: 915 SQUARE FEET
BUILDING HEIGHT: 20 FEET (1 STORY)
BUILDING COVERAGE: 3.72%
FLOOR:AREA RATIO 0.03 : 1

BUILDING DATA

FRONT SETBACK: 20 FEET 77 FEET
SIDE SETBACK: 0 FEET 48 FEET
REAR SETBACK: 0 FEET 122 FEET
LANDSCAPE AREA:             0.056 ACRES (10%) 0.128 ACRES (22.8%)
PARKING SPACE RATIO:                                  1/70  SF                        1/65 SF
PARKING SPACE: 14 SPACES 14 SPACES
ADA PARKING SPACES: 1 SPACE 1 SPACES

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS REQUIRED PROPOSED

RE
VI

SI
ON

S
SA

LA
D 

AN
D 

GO
 - 

AD
DI

SO
N 

 - 
M

AR
SH

 LA
NE

 A
ND

 B
EL

T 
LIN

E 
RO

AD
 

38
20

 B
EL

T 
LIN

E 
RO

AD
, A

DD
IS

ON
, T

EX
AS

, 7
50

01

OF

No
.

Da
te

Ap
p.

SHEET NO.

K:\17007\17007-0059-00 Salad and Go – Marsh and Belt Line – Add\2 Design Phase\CAD\Plans\Site\17007-0059 SITE PLAN Recover.dwg     ACH: August 08, 2022

©
  2

02
2 

Q
ui

dd
ity

JO
B 

NO
.:

SC
AL

E:
DE

SI
GN

ED
 B

Y.
:

AC
H

CH
EC

KE
D 

BY
:

RJ
A

A B C D E F

1
2

3
4

RYAN J. ALCALA 
137832

INTERIM REVIEW
Not intended for construction,

bidding or permit purposes.

P.E. Serial No.:

Date:

Engineer:

DA
TE

:

DR
AW

N 
BY

:
CP

Z

AS
 S

HO
W

N

AUGUST 2022

AU
GU

ST
 2

02
2

17
00

7-
00

59
-0

0

BENCHMARK
ALL ELEVATIONS AND BEARINGS SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON GPS OBSERVATIONS UTILIZING
THE ALLTERA RTK NETWORK. (GEOID 12A)

TBM A
BEING AN "X" IN THE CONCRETE SIDWALK LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE OF THE EXISITNG PRIVATE
DRIVE, APPROXIMATELY 33 FEET NORTH AND 19 FEET EAST OF THE NORTHWESTCORNER OF THE
SUBJECT TRACT.
ELEVATION 578.54, GEOID 12A (1988).

TBM B
BEING AN "X" CUT ON TOP OF NORTH WIDE OF THE SOUTHERN MOST PRIVATE DRIVE,
APPROXIMATELY 62 FEET EAST OF SOUTHWEST CORNER ALONG PROPERTY LINE OF SUBJECT TRACT.
ELEVATION 581.63 FEET, GEOID 12A (1988).

100-YEAR FLOOD PLAIN
ACCORDING TO MAP NO. 48113C0180K OF THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY'S
FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAPS FOR DALLAS COUNTY DATED JULY 7, 2014 AND IS LOCATED IN
COMMUNITY NUMBER 481089, THE SUBJECT TRACT IS SITUATED WITHIN: NON-SHADED ZONE "X"
AND SHADED ZONE “X”.

TEXAS811 NOTIFICATION SYSTEM
CALL BEFORE YOU DIG!!!

www.texas811.org
Texas811 or 1-800-545-6005

CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY ELEVATION AND LOCATION
OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO
COMMENCEMENT OF ANY NEW CONSTRUCTION

C-14

Te
xa

s B
oa

rd
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
 a

nd
 La

nd
 S

ur
ve

yo
rs

 R
eg

. N
o.

 F
-2

32
90

45
00

 M
er

ca
nt

ile
 P

la
za

 D
riv

e,
 S

ui
te

 2
10

   
Fo

rt
 W

or
th

, T
ex

as
 7

61
37

   
68

2.
26

8.
22

00
 

PROP. PREVIEW BOARD
SEE ARCH PLANS FOR DETAILS

PROPOSED SAWCUT/DEMOLITION LIMITS

DEVELOPER
AND GO CONCEPTS, LLC dba SALAD AND GO
5555 EAST VAN BUREN STREET
PHOENIX, ARIZONA 85008
TEL (410) 371-1563
CONTACT: MATTHEW COPENHAVER

CASE #1850-Z



448.5 SF

SERVICE
100

124 SF

COOLER
101

60 SF

OFFICE
102

50.5 SF

RESTROOM
103

A402
1

101

103

10
2

10
0

A401

1

3

42

A401

5

6

7

8

A611
8

A3 C
a

A3
 C a

A3 C
a

A6
 C a

A3
C

A3
C

3

A303

2

A303
1

A303

3

A302

2

A302

1

A302

4

A303

1 3

BA C D

1

2

Not Enclosed

UTILITIES
104

A401

9

1 2

3

4

5

5

6

1 15

17

14

16

12

1113

10

9

9

9

19

2

1

19

1919

104

105

34.5 SF

FIRE RISER
105

FLOOR PLAN GENERAL NOTES:
A. GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL CONDITIONS AND

DIMENSIONS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. REPORT ANY
SIGNIFICANT DISCREPANCIES TO THE ARCHITECT.

B. APPROVED SIGN INDICATING MAXIMUM OCCUPANCY FOR THE
ROOM SHALL BE LOCATED NEAR MAIN EXIT. FINAL LOCATION
SHALL BE VERIFIED BY FIRE MARSHAL.

C. DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS.
D. FURNITURE AND KITCHEN EQUIPMENT SHOWN DASHED.
E. PROVIDE BLOCKING IN WALLS FOR WALL MOUNTED

EQUIPMENT/ACCESSORIES PER PLAN.
F. REFER TO EQUIPMENT PLAN SHEET FOR ALL EQUIPMENT

SCHEDULE INFORMATION AND LAYOUT.
G. DIMENSION SHOWN ON THIS PLAN IS FROM FACE OF STUD TO

FACE OF STUD AT INTERIOR, UNO.
H. GENERAL CONTRACTOR TO COORDIANTE ALL FLOOR SINKS AND

FLOOR DRAINS WITH EQUIPMENT PLAN PRIOR TO PLACEMENT
I. PROVIDE INTERNAL WALL BLOCKING FOR LADDERS, GRAB BARS,

MIRRORS, COUNTERTOPS, CEILING FANCS, AND OVERHEAD
SHELVING.

J. COORDINATE WITH STRUCTURAL, MECHANICAL, PLUMBING,
ELECTRICAL, CIVIL DRAWINGS AND SOIL REPORTS.

K. EXTERIOR WALL DIMENSIONS SHOWN FROM FACE OF STUD TO
FACE OF STUD, UNO.

L. WALLS SHOWN ON ALIGNMENT ARE IN ALIGNMENT WITH FINISH
SURFACE

M. TOP OF FLOOR LEVEL = 100'-0" = 0'-0" IS TOP OF CONCRETE PER
ARCHITECTURAL PLAN AND ELEVATION. THIS DOES NOT
INCLUDE FLOOR FINISH. REFER TO CIVIL DRAWINGS FOR
ACTUAL GRADE LEVEL.

X

101 DOOR NUMBER

DOOR AND WINDOW TAGS, REFER TO A631

WINDOW TYPE

X#m

PARTITION TYPE

CORE WIDTH

TOP OF WALL
CONDITIONabc

PARTITION
MODIFIER(S)

WALL TAG, REFER TO A611 FLOOR PLAN KEYNOTES
1. SERVICE WINDOW.

2. ADA COMPLIANT THRESHOLD, REFER TO A113

3. PRE-MANUFACTURED WALK IN COOLER BY OWNER.

4. CONCRETE SLAB WITH BROOM FINISH AT PATIO.

5. DASHED LINE INDICATES CANOPY ABOVE.

6. MOP SINK PENETRATION LOCATION, INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER SPECIFICATIONS.

7. NOT USED.

8. NOT USED.

9. PROVIDE IN-WALL BLOCKING TO INSTALL COUNTERTOP SUPPORTS. REFER TO A400

10. ELECTRICAL SERVICE ENTRY AND TELEPHONE SERVICE LOCATION, REFER TO
ELECTRICAL.

11. 3200 SERIES KNOXBOX AT 60" A.F.F.

12. WATER HEATER WITH MOP SINK BELOW.

13. NOT USED.

14. ROOF ACCESS LADDER; REFER TO A503

15. ROOF DRAIN LEADERS.

16. 3'-6" GUARD RAIL.

17. RECESSED COVERED HOSE BIB

18. NOT USED.

19. POS MONITOR MOUNTED ON STAINLESS STEEL SHELVES. BY OWNER. SEE
EQUIPMENT PLAN, TYP.

1/4" = 1'-0"1 FLOOR PLAN

DIMENSION NOTES
1. ALL PLAN DIMENSIONS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, ARE TO:

A. FACE OF STUD
B. CENTERLINE OF DOOR ON CENTERLINE OF ROOM OR CORRIDOR.

2. NOTED DIMENSIONS SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALE
DIMENSIONS; DETAILS OVER SMALLER SCALE DRAWINGS.

3. "FINISH FLOOR" REFERS TO TOP OF SLAB

4. VERIFY ALL ROUGH-IN, CONCRETE PAD, OR PLATFORM DIMENSIONS FOR
EQUIPMENT PROVIDED IN THIS PROJECT, OR BY OTHERS.

5. CEILING HEIGHT DIMENSIONS ARE TO FINISHED SURFACES,
UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

PROJECT INFORMATION

CHECKED BY:
DRAWN BY:
SCALE:
ORIGINAL ISSUE:
PROJECT NO:

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

AS NOTED

SEAL

513 MAIN STREET, SUITE 300
FT. WORTH, TX 76102
817.820.0433
www.roguearchitects.com

PR
O

TO
TY

PE
 V

ER
SI

O
N

 2
.0

0

THIS DRAWING IS A DESIGN
DEVELOPMENT DOCUMENT.

SITE SPECIFIC MODIFICATIONS
MADE UNDER THE RESPONSIBLE

CHARGE OF THE ARCHITECT
AND/OR ENGINEER-OF-RECORD

WILL BE REQUIRED PRIOR TO
USING THIS DOCUMENT FOR

BIDDING, PERMITTING, OR
CONSTRUCTION.

CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL
CONDITIONS AND DIMENSIONS AT THE
JOB SITE AND NOTIFY THE ARCHITECT

OF ANY DIMENSIONAL ERRORS,
OMISSIONS OR DISCREPANCIES BEFORE
BEGINNING OR FABRICATING ANY WORK.

DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS.

7/
7/

20
22

 4
:1

4:
44

 P
M

A112

M
AR

SH
 &

 B
EL

TL
IN

E

6/08/2022

J. JEFFERY
A. MORELAND

FLOOR PLAN

38
10

 B
EL

TL
IN

E 
R

O
AD

 A
D

D
IS

O
N

, T
X 

75
00

1

22-0090

PERMIT SET: 6/08/2022N
O

R
TH

#SUP-0052

ISSUE DATE DESCRIPTION
1 7/07/22 CITY COMMENTS

FACADE PLAN: 7/07/2022
BLD SQRFT: 942



ONLY
ONLY

BELT LINE ROAD
VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT-OF-WAY

A PORTION OF
LOT 1-R, BLOCK A

PRINTEMPS ADDITION NO.
2

VOLUME 92162, PAGE 2251
D.R.D.C.T.

57
9

VAN

FINISHED FLOOR
0' - 0"

4

A303

B.O. AWNING
9' - 0"

T.O. LOW PARAPET
18' - 2"

T.O. HIGH PARAPET
20' - 1 1/2"

B.O. CANOPY
11' - 0"

B.O. BUMP OUT
2' - 0"

BRICKBRICK

E-1

STONE

MT-1

BRICK

BRICKBRICK

MT-1

AWN

SLOPED CURB

T.O. WINDOW
7'- 0"

DRIVE THRU DETECTOR

STONE

E-2

FINISHED FLOOR
0' - 0"

B.O. AWNING
9' - 0"

T.O. LOW PARAPET
18' - 2"

T.O. HIGH PARAPET
20' - 1 1/2"

B.O. BUMP OUT
2' - 0"

T.O. CANOPY
12' - 0"

AWN

E-2

BRICK

E-2

MT-1

BRICK

AWN

STONE

FINISHED FLOOR
0' - 0"

4

A303

B.O. AWNING
9' - 0"

T.O. LOW PARAPET
18' - 2"

T.O. HIGH PARAPET
20' - 1 1/2"

B.O. BUMP OUT
2' - 0"

T.O. WINDOW
6' - 6"

MT-1

BRICKBRICK

E-2

STONE

AWN

BRICKBRICK

BRICK

STONE

MT-1

FINISHED FLOOR
0' - 0"

T.O. LOW PARAPET
18' - 2"

T.O. HIGH PARAPET
20' - 1 1/2"

T.O. FENCE
7' - 0"

BRICK

MT-1

MT-1

MT-1

AWN

AWN

E-1

STONE

EXTERIOR FINISH SCHEDULE
MARK MATERIAL DESCRIPTION

ST-1 STONE

BR-1 THIN BRICK

E-1

AWN AWNING

CORONADO WIRECUT BRICK
COLOR: ICEBERG

MT-1 METAL COPING COLOR: SW-7068 GRIZZLE GRAY.

CORONADO FREEDOM STONE
COLOR: BUNKER HILL

E.I.F.S.
PRODUCT: DRYVIT
FINISH: SAND
COLOR: MATCH
SHERWIN WILLIAMS
SW-6887 NAVEL

PRODUCT: GREENHECK
FINISH: ALUMINUM
COLOR: SW-7068 GRIZZLE GRAY

E-2 E.I.F.S. PRODUCT: DRYVIT
FINISH: SAND
COLOR: TO MATCH SHERWIN
WILLIAMS SW-6921 ELECTRIC LIME

PROJECT INFORMATION

CHECKED BY:
DRAWN BY:
SCALE:
ORIGINAL ISSUE:
PROJECT NO:

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

AS NOTED

SEAL

513 MAIN STREET, SUITE 300
FT. WORTH, TX 76102
817.820.0433
www.roguearchitects.com

PR
O

TO
TY

PE
 V

ER
SI

O
N

 2
.0

0

THIS DRAWING IS A DESIGN
DEVELOPMENT DOCUMENT.

SITE SPECIFIC MODIFICATIONS
MADE UNDER THE RESPONSIBLE

CHARGE OF THE ARCHITECT
AND/OR ENGINEER-OF-RECORD

WILL BE REQUIRED PRIOR TO
USING THIS DOCUMENT FOR

BIDDING, PERMITTING, OR
CONSTRUCTION.

CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL
CONDITIONS AND DIMENSIONS AT THE
JOB SITE AND NOTIFY THE ARCHITECT

OF ANY DIMENSIONAL ERRORS,
OMISSIONS OR DISCREPANCIES BEFORE
BEGINNING OR FABRICATING ANY WORK.

DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS.

7/
7/

20
22

 3
:5

1:
22

 P
M

FP001

M
AR

SH
 &

 B
EL

TL
IN

E

6/08/2022

J. JEFFERY
A. MORELAND

FACADE PLAN

38
10

 B
EL

TL
IN

E 
R

O
AD

 A
D

D
IS

O
N

, T
X 

75
00

1

22-0090

PERMIT SET: 6/08/2022FACADE PLAN: 7/07/2022

1/4" = 1'-0"1 DRIVE THRU ELEVATION- EAST
1/4" = 1'-0"2 FRONT ELEVATION- NORTH

1/4" = 1'-0"3 WALK-UP ELEVATION- WEST

1/4" = 1'-0"4 REAR ELEVATION- SOUTH

ISSUE DATE DESCRIPTION

NOT TO SCALE5 SITE PLAN- KEY PLAN

1

TOTAL MASONRY 299 88 865 85 862 85 239 75 2265 84

EIFS (LIME) 24 7 0 0 111 11 0 0 135 4

EIFS (ORANGE) 5 1 110 11 0 0 5 2 120 5

STONE 51 15 168 17 157 15 27 11 403 15

BRICK 248 73 697 69 705 69 212 67 182 69

TOTAL (GLAZED/NON-GLAZED DOORS AND WINDOWS) 328 100 975 100 973 100 244 100 2520 100

GLAZED DOORS AND WINDOWS 13 4 37 4 15 1 0 0 65 2

NON-GLAZED DOORS AND WINDOWS 0 0 0 0 28 3 74 23 102 4

TOTAL ELEVATION AREA 341 100 1012 100 1016 100 318 100 2687 100
S.F. % S.F. % S.F. % S.F. % S.F. %MATERIAL

FRONT DRIVE THRU WALK UP REAR TOTAL

MATERIAL CALCULATION

NORTH

RESTAURANT WITH DRIVE-THRU
ADDISON RETAIL,LLC

LOT 1-R BLOCK A
#SUP-0052

ARCHITECT:
ROGUE ARCHITECTS
513 MAIN STREET, STE 300
FORT WORTH, TX 76102
817-820-0433
ASHLEY MORELAND

PREPARATION DATE: JULY 07, 2022

ENGINEER:
JONES|CARTER INC.
4500 MERCENTILE PLAZA DRIVE,
SUITE 210
FORT WORTH, TX 76137
682-268-2207
RYAN J. ALCALA, PE

OWNER:
SALAD AND GO
5555 EAST VAN BUREN STREET
PHOENIX, AZ 85008
504-432-3611
ANDY HULSEY

APPLICANT:

FACADE PLAN NOTES
• THIS FACADE PLAN IS FOR CONCEPTUAL PURPOSES ONLY. ALL BUILDING PLANS

REQUIRE REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES.
• ALL MECHANICAL UNITS SHALL BE SCREENED FROM PUBLIC VIEW AS REQUIRED

BY THE ZONING ORDINANCE .
• WHEN PERMITTED, EXPOSED UTILITY BOXES AND CONDUITS SHALL BE PAINTED

TO MATCH THE BUILDING.
• ALL SIGNAGE AREAS AND LOCATIONS ARE SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES.
• ROOF ACCESS SHALL BE PROVIDED INTERNALLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE

PERMITTED BY THE CHIEF BUILDING OFFICIAL



SHADED
ZONE "X"

NON-SHADED
ZONE "X"

SHADED
ZONE "X"

LOT 3C-1, BLOCK D
REPLAT OF ADDISON TOWN CENTER

VOLUME 94176 PAGE 1630
O.P.R.D.C.T.

A PORTION OF
LOT 1-R, BLOCK A

PRINTEMPS ADDITION NO. 2
VOLUME 92162, PAGE 2251

D.R.D.C.T.

LOT 3C-1, BLOCK D
REPLAT OF ADDISON

TOWN CENTER
VOLUME 94176

PAGE 1630
O.P.R.D.C.T.

BELT LINE ROAD
VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT-OF-WAY

ONE STORY BRICK
BUILDING

BUILDING
HEIGHT=21.2'

ABOVE FINISHED
FLOOR

A PORTION OF
LOT 1-R, BLOCK A

PRINTEMPS ADDITION NO. 2
VOLUME 92162, PAGE 2251

D.R.D.C.T.

ADDISON RETAIL, LLC
INSTRUMENT NO. 201800004323

O.P.R.D.C.T.

2.03 ACRES
88,599 SQ. FT.

EXISTING DWARF

BURFORD HOLLIES

TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING SHRUBS

TO BE REMOVED, TYP.

EXISTING TREES

TO BE REMOVED, TYP.

1

32

4

5

8

6 7

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18 19

20

21

22

RE
VI

SI
O

N
S

SA
LA

D 
AN

D 
G

O
 - 

AD
DI

SO
N

  -
 M

AR
SH

 L
AN

E 
AN

D 
BE

LT
 L

IN
E 

RO
AD

 
38

20
 B

EL
T 

LI
N

E 
RO

AD
, A

DD
IS

O
N

, T
EX

AS
, 7

50
01

OF

N
o.

Da
te

Ap
p.

SHEET NO.

©
  2

02
2 

Q
ui

dd
ity

JO
B 

N
O

.:

SC
AL

E:
DE

SI
GN

ED
 B

Y.
:

CH
EC

KE
D 

BY
:

A B C D E F

1
2

3
4

DA
TE

:

DR
AW

N
 B

Y:

AS
 S

HO
W

N

JU
LY

 2
02

2

Te
xa

s B
oa

rd
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
 a

nd
 L

an
d 

Su
rv

ey
or

s R
eg

. N
o.

 F
-2

32
90

45
00

 M
er

ca
nt

ile
 P

la
za

 D
riv

e,
 S

ui
te

 2
10

   
Fo

rt
 W

or
th

, T
ex

as
 7

61
37

   
68

2.
26

8.
22

00
 

S
TAT E OF T EXAS

TC
ET

HI
RCAEPACSDNALDEE

GE
IS

R

RT

572 4

AM
AN

A

RICH

D

W. ARDSON

a W R AWR Designs, LLC
P.O. Box 1746
Aledo, Texas 76008
amanda@awr-designs.com
c. 512.517.5589

L1.01

TR
EE

 P
RE

SE
RV

AT
IO

N
 P

LA
N

TREE PRESERVATION NOTES

CONSTRUCTION METHODS:

BORING: BORING OF UTILITIES UNDER PROTECTED TREES MAY BE REQUIRED.
WHEN REQUIRED, THE MINIMUM LENGTH OF THE BORE SHALL BE THE WIDTH
OF THE CRITICAL ROOT ZONE AND SHALL BE A MINIMUM DEPTH OF FORTY (48)
INCHES.

TRENCHING: ALL TRENCHING SHALL BE DESIGNED TO AVOID TRENCHING
ACROSS CRITICAL ROOT ZONES OF ANY PROTECTED TREE. THE PLACEMENT
OF UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINES SUCH AS ELECTRIC, PHONE, GAS, ETC., IS
ENCOURAGED TO BE LOCATED OUTSIDE THE CRITICAL ROOT ZONE.
TRENCHING FOR IRRIGATION SYSTEMS SHALL BE PLACED OUTSIDE THE
CRITICAL ROOT ZONE EXCEPT THE MINIMUM REQUIRED SINGLE HEAD SUPPLY
LINE. THIS LINE IS ALLOWED TO EXTEND INTO THE CRITICAL ROOT ZONE
PERPENDICULAR TO THE TREE TRUNK WITH THE LEAST POSSIBLE
DISTURBANCE.

TREES TO BE REMOVED: ALL TREES TO BE REMOVED FROM THE SITE SHALL BE
FLAGGED BY THE CONTRACTOR WITH BRIGHT RED VINYL TAPE WRAPPED
AROUND THE MAIN TRUNK AT A HEIGHT OF FOUR (4') FEET ABOVE GRADE.

TREES TO REMAIN: ALL TREES TO REMAIN, AS NOTED ON DRAWINGS, SHALL
HAVE PROTECTIVE FENCING LOCATED AT THE TREE'S DRIP LINE. THE
PROTECTIVE FENCING SHALL BE LOCATED AS INDICATED ON THE TREE
PROTECTION DETAIL.

EXISTING TREES NOTED TO REMAIN SHALL BE PROTECTED DURING
CONSTRUCTION FROM DAMAGE AND COMPACTION OF SOIL UNDER AND
AROUND DRIP LINE OF TREE.

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCE SHALL THE CONTRACTOR PRUNE ANY PORTION OF
THE DAMAGED TREE WITHOUT THE PRIOR APPROVAL BY THE OWNER'S
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE.

PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES IN CRITICAL ROOT ZONE:
THE FOLLOWING ACTIVITIES ARE PROHIBITED IN THE AREAS NOTED AS THE
CRITICAL ROOT ZONE.

MATERIAL STORAGE:  NO MATERIALS INTENDED FOR USE IN CONSTRUCTION,
OR WASTE MATERIALS ACCUMULATED DUE TO EXCAVATION OR DEMOLITION,
SHALL BE PLACED WITHIN THE LIMITS OF THE CRITICAL ROOT ZONE OF ANY
PROTECTED TREE.

EQUIPMENT CLEANING/LIQUID DISPOSAL:  NO EQUIPMENT SHALL BE CLEANED,
OR OTHER LIQUIDS DEPOSITED OR ALLOWED  WITHIN THE LIMITS OF THE
CRITICAL ROOT ZONE OF A PROTECTED TREE.  THIS INCLUDES, WITHOUT
LIMITATION: PAINT, OIL, SOLVENTS, ASPHALT, CONCRETE, MORTAR OR SIMILAR
MATERIALS.

TREE ATTACHMENTS:  NO SIGNS, WIRES, OR OTHER ATTACHMENTS, OTHER
THAN THOSE OF A PROTECTIVE NATURE, SHALL BE ATTACHED TO ANY
PROTECTED TREE.

VEHICULAR TRAFFIC:  NO VEHICULAR AND/OR CONSTRUCTION, EQUIPMENT,
TRAFFIC, OR PARKING SHALL TAKE PLACE WITHIN THE LIMITS OF THE CRITICAL
ROOT ZONE OF ANY PROTECTED TREE OTHER THAN ON EXISTING STREET
PAVEMENT.

GRADE CHANGES:   A MINIMUM OF 75% OF THE DRIP LINE AND ROOT ZONE
SHALL BE PRESERVED AT NATURAL GRADE.  ANY FINE GRADING DONE WITHIN
THE CRITICAL ROOT ZONES OF THE PROTECTED TREES MUST BE DONE WITH
LIGHT MACHINERY SUCH AS A BOBCAT OR LIGHT TRACTOR.  NO EARTH MOVING
EQUIPMENT WITH TRACKS IS ALLOWED WITHIN THE CRITICAL ROOT ZONE OF
THE TREES.

PROCEDURES REQUIRED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION:
PROTECTIVE FENCING:  PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION, THE CONTRACTOR OR
SUBCONTRACTOR SHALL CONSTRUCT AND MAINTAIN, FOR EACH PROTECTED
TREE ON A CONSTRUCTION SITE, A PROTECTIVE FENCING WHICH ENCIRCLES
THE OUTER LIMITS OF THE CRITICAL ROOT ZONE OF THE TREE TO PROTECT IT
FROM CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY.  ALL PROTECTIVE FENCING SHALL BE IN
PLACE PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY SITE WORK, AND REMAIN IN PLACE
UNTIL ALL EXTERIOR WORK HAS BEEN COMPLETED.

BARK PROTECTION:  IN SITUATIONS WHERE A PROTECTED TREE REMAINS IN
THE IMMEDIATE AREA OF INTENDED CONSTRUCTION, AND THE LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT OR OWNERS'S REPRESENTATIVE DETERMINES THE TREE BARK TO
BE IN DANGER OF DAMAGE BY CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT OR OTHER
ACTIVITY, THE CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT THE TREE
BY ENCLOSING THE ENTIRE CIRCUMFERENCE OF THE TREE WITH 2"X4" LUMBER
ENCIRCLED WITH WIRE OR OTHER MEANS THAT DO NOT DAMAGE THE TREE.
THE INTENT IS TO PROTECT THE BARK OF THE TREE AGAINST INCIDENTAL
CONTACT BY LARGE CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT.

TREE PROTECTION FENCING
N.T.S.

1

METAL T-POST 2'-3'
IN GROUND

ORANGE VINYL OR CHAIN LINK
FENCE TO REMAIN DURING
CONSTRUCTION

NO GRADING SHALL OCCUR
WITHIN LIMITS OF DRIPLINE

EXISTING TREE

NO ENTRY SIGNAGE

4'
 M

IN
.

BORING:
BORING OF UTILITIES UNDER PROTECTED TREES SHALL BE REQUIRED IN CIRCUMSTANCES
WHERE IT IS NOT POSSIBLE TO TRENCH AROUND THE CRITICAL ROOT ZONE OF THE
PROTECTED TREE.  WHERE REQUIRED, THE LENGTH OF THE BORE SHALL BE THE WIDTH OF
THE CRITICAL ROOT ZONE AT A MINIMUM AND SHALL BE A MINIMUM DEPTH OF FORTY EIGHT
(48") INCHES.

TRENCH =
40% ROOT KILL

TUNNELING
SAVES ROOTS

PROTECTED TREE

DRIP LINE

BORING AND TUNNELING
N.T.S.

2

WHERE A PROTECTED TREE REMAINS IN THE IMMEDIATE AREA OF INTENDED CONSTRUCTION, AND
THE TREE MAY BE IN DANGER OF BEING DAMAGED BY CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT OR OTHER
ACTIVITY, THE CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT THE TREE WITH 2" X 4" LUMBER
ENCIRCLED WITH WIRE OR OTHER MEANS THAT DO NOT DAMAGE THE BARK OF THE TREE.  THE
INTENT IS TO PROTECT THE TRUNK OF THE TREE AGAINST INCIDENTAL CONTACT BY LARGE
CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT.

2" X 4"  LUMBER

WIRE

FINISH GRADE

BARK PROTECTION
N.T.S.

3

GRAPHIC SCALE
FEET0 4020

Scale 1"=20' - 0"

TREE PRESERVATION LEGEND

TREE TO BE REMOVED

TREE TO REMAIN

TREE PRESERVATION FENCING

Case #: SUP-0052



SHADED
ZONE "X"

NON-SHADED
ZONE "X"

SHADED
ZONE "X"

LOT 3C-1, BLOCK D
REPLAT OF ADDISON TOWN CENTER

VOLUME 94176 PAGE 1630
O.P.R.D.C.T.

A PORTION OF
LOT 1-R, BLOCK A

PRINTEMPS ADDITION NO. 2
VOLUME 92162, PAGE 2251

D.R.D.C.T.

LOT 3C-1, BLOCK D
REPLAT OF ADDISON

TOWN CENTER
VOLUME 94176

PAGE 1630
O.P.R.D.C.T.

BELT LINE ROAD
VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT-OF-WAY

1
CP

21
NRS

BERMUDA

SOLID

SOD, TYP.

1-3" RIVER ROCK, TYP.

1
LE

1
RY

3
DY

1
DY

5
GL

3
MS

5
GL

5
GL

1
DY

70
SC

45
GL

5
AB

3
MS

35
GL

4
MS

3
AB

50
SC

BERMUDA

SOLID SOD, TYP.
55

DBH

BERMUDA

SOLID

SOD, TYP.

2
CM

1
CE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
S

SA
LA

D 
AN

D 
G

O
 - 

AD
DI

SO
N

  -
 M

AR
SH

 L
AN

E 
AN

D 
BE

LT
 L

IN
E 

RO
AD

 
38

20
 B

EL
T 

LI
N

E 
RO

AD
, A

DD
IS

O
N

, T
EX

AS
, 7

50
01

OF

N
o.

Da
te

Ap
p.

SHEET NO.

©
  2

02
2 

Q
ui

dd
ity

JO
B 

N
O

.:

SC
AL

E:
DE

SI
GN

ED
 B

Y.
:

CH
EC

KE
D 

BY
:

A B C D E F

1
2

3
4

DA
TE

:

DR
AW

N
 B

Y:

AS
 S

HO
W

N

JU
LY

 2
02

2

Te
xa

s B
oa

rd
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
 a

nd
 L

an
d 

Su
rv

ey
or

s R
eg

. N
o.

 F
-2

32
90

45
00

 M
er

ca
nt

ile
 P

la
za

 D
riv

e,
 S

ui
te

 2
10

   
Fo

rt
 W

or
th

, T
ex

as
 7

61
37

   
68

2.
26

8.
22

00
 

S
TAT E OF T EXAS

TC
ET

HI
RCAEPACSDNALDEE

GE
IS

R

RT

572 4

AM
AN

A

RICH

D

W. ARDSON

a W R AWR Designs, LLC
P.O. Box 1746
Aledo, Texas 76008
amanda@awr-designs.com
c. 512.517.5589

L1.02

LA
N

DS
CA

PE
 P

LA
N

GRAPHIC SCALE
FEET0 4020

Scale 1"=20' - 0"

GENERAL LAWN NOTES

1. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE OPERATIONS AND AVAILABILITY OF
EXISTING TOPSOIL WITH ON-SITE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER

2. LAWN AREAS SHALL BE LEFT 1" BELOW FINAL FINISHED GRADE PRIOR
TO TOPSOIL INSTALLATION.

3. CONTRACTOR TO FIND GRADE AREAS TO ACHIEVE FINAL CONTOURS
AS SHOWN ON CIVIL DRAWINGS. POSITIVE DRAINAGE SHALL BE
PROVIDED AWAY FROM ALL BUILDINGS. ROUNDING AT TOP AND
BOTTOM OF SLOPES SHALL BE PROVIDED AND IN OTHER BREAKS IN
GRADE. CORRECT AREAS WHERE STANDING WATER MAY OCCUR.

4. ALL LAWN AREAS SHALL BE FINE GRADED, IRRIGATION TRENCHES
COMPLETELY SETTLED AND FINISH GRADE APPROVED BY THE OWNER'S
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER OR LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO LAWN
INSTALLATION.

5. CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE ALL ROCKS 3/4" IN DIAMETER AND
LARGER. REMOVE ALL DIRT CLODS, STICKS, CONCRETE SPOILS, TRASH
ETC PRIOR TO PLACING TOPSOIL AND GRASS INSTALLATION.

6. CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN ALL LAWN AREAS UNTIL FINAL
ACCEPTANCE.

7. CONTRACTOR SHALL GUARANTEE ESTABLISHMENT OF ACCEPTABLE
TURF AREA AND SHALL PROVIDE REPLACEMENT IF NECESSARY.

SOLID SOD:
1. SOLID SOD SHALL BE PLACED ALONG ALL IMPERVIOUS EDGES, AT A

MINIMUM. THIS SHALL INCLUDE CURBS, WALKS, INLETS, MANHOLES
AND PLANTING BED AREAS. SOD SHALL COVER OTHER AREAS
COMPLETELY AS INDICATED BY PLAN.

2. SOD SHALL BE STRONGLY ROOTED DROUGHT RESISTANT SOD, NOT
LESS THAN 2 YEARS OLD, FREE OF WEEDS AND UNDESIRABLE NATIVE
GRASS AND MACHINE CUT TO PAD THICKNESS OF 3/4" (+1/4"),
EXCLUDING TOP GROWTH AND THATCH.

3. LAY SOD BY HAND TO COVER INDICATED AREAS COMPLETELY,
ENSURING EDGES ARE TOUCHING WITH TIGHTLY FITTING JOINTS, NO
OVERLAPS WITH STAGGERED STRIPS TO OFFSET JOINTS.

4. TOP DRESS JOINTS IN SOD BY HAND WITH TOPSOIL TO FILL VOIDS IF
NECESSARY

5. SOD SHALL BE ROLLED TO CREATE A SMOOTH EVEN SURFACE. SOD
SHOULD BE WATERED THOROUGHLY DURING INSTALLATION PROCESS.

6. SHOULD INSTALLATION OCCUR BETWEEN OCTOBER 1ST AND MARCH
1ST, OVERSEED BERMUDAGRASS SOD WITH WINTER RYEGRASS AT A
RATE OF 4 POUNDS PER 1000 S.F.

LANDSCAPE NOTES

1. CONTRACTOR  TO VERIFY AND LOCATE ALL PROPOSED AND EXISTING
ELEMENTS. NOTIFY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OR DESIGNATED
REPRESENTATIVE FOR ANY LAYOUT DISCREPANCIES OR ANY CONDITION
THAT WOULD PROHIBIT THE INSTALLATION AS SHOWN. SURVEY DATA OF
EXISTING CONDITIONS WAS SUPPLIED BY OTHERS

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL 811 TO VERIFY AND LOCATE ANY AND ALL
UTILITIES ON SITE PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK. LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT SHOULD BE NOTIFIED OF ANY CONFLICTS. CONTRACTOR TO
EXERCISE EXTREME CAUTION WHEN WORKING NEAR UNDERGROUND
UTILITIES.

3. A MINIMUM OF 2% SLOPE SHALL BE  PROVIDED AWAY FROM ALL
STRUCTURES.

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL FINE GRADE AREAS TO ACHIEVE FINAL CONTOURS
AS INDICATED. LEAVE AREAS TO RECEIVE TOPSOIL 3" BELOW FINAL
FINISHED GRADE IN PLANTING AREAS AND 1" BELOW FINAL FINISHED
GRADE IN LAWN AREAS.

5. LANDSCAPE ISLANDS SHALL BE CROWNED, AND UNIFORM THROUGHOUT
THE SITE.

6. PLANTING AREAS AND SOD TO BE SEPARATED  BY STEEL EDGING. NO
STEEL EDGING SHALL BE INSTALLED ADJACENT TO BUILDINGS, WALKS
OR CURBS. EDGING NOT TO BE MORE THAN 1/2" ABOVE FINISHED GRADE.

7. EDGING SHALL BE CUT AT 45 DEGREE ANGLE WHERE IT INTERSECTS
WALKS AND/OR CURBS.

8. MULCH SHALL BE INSTALLED AT 1/2" BELOW THE TOPS OF SIDEWALKS
AND CURBING.

9. QUANTITIES ON THESE PLANS ARE FOR REFERENCE ONLY. THE SPACING
OF PLANTS SHOULD BE AS INDICATED ON PLANS OR OTHERWISE NOTED.
ALL TREES AND SHRUBS SHALL BE PLANTED PER DETAILS.

10. CONTAINER GROWN PLANT MATERIAL IS PREFERRED HOWEVER BALL
AND BURLAP PLANT MATERIAL CAN BE SUBSTITUTED IF NEED BE AND IS
APPROPRIATE TO THE SIZE AND QUALITY INDICATED ON THE PLANT
MATERIAL LIST.

11. TREES SHALL BE PLANTED AT A MINIMUM OF 5' FROM ANY UTILITY LINE,
SIDEWALK OR  CURB. TREES SHALL ALSO BE 10' CLEAR FROM FIRE
HYDRANTS.

12. 4" OF SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH (2" SETTLED THICKNESS) SHALL BE
PLACED OVER WEED BARRIER FABRIC. MULCH SHALL BE SHREDDED
HARDWOOD MULCH OR APPROVED EQUAL, PINE STRAW MULCH IS
PROHIBITED.

13. WEED BARRIER FABRIC SHALL BE USED IN PLANT BEDS AND AROUND ALL
TREES AND SHALL BE MIRAFI 1405 WEED BARRIER OR APPROVED EQUAL.

14. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE UNIT PRICING OF LANDSCAPE MATERIALS
AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION
PERMITS.

IRRIGATION:

1. ALL REQUIRED LANDSCAPE AREAS  SHALL HAVE AN AUTOMATIC
IRRIGATION SYSTEM WITH A FREEZE/RAIN SENSOR. SYSTEM SHALL ALSO
HAVE AN ET WEATHER BASED CONTROLLER AND BE DESIGNED AND
INSTALLED BY A LICENSED IRRIGATOR.

MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS:
1. VEGETATION SHOULD BE INSPECTED REGULARLY TO ENSURE THAT

PLANT MATERIAL IS ESTABLISHING PROPERLY AND REMAINS IN A
HEALTHY GROWING CONDITION APPROPRIATE FOR THE SEASON. IF
DAMAGED OR REMOVED, PLANTS MUST BE REPLACED BY A SIMILAR
VARIETY AND SIZE.

2. MOWING, TRIMMING, EDGING AND SUPERVISION OF WATER
APPLICATIONS SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR
UNTIL THE OWNER OR OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE ACCEPTS AND
ASSUMES REGULAR MAINTENANCE.

3. ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS SHOULD BE CLEANED AND KEPT FREE OF
TRASH, DEBRIS, WEEDS AND OTHER MATERIAL.

MISCELLANEOUS  MATERIALS:
1. STEEL EDGING SHALL BE 3/16" X 4 X 16' DARK GREEN DURAEDGE

STEEL LANDSCAPE EDGING UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE ON
PLANS/DETAILS.

2. RIVER ROCK SHALL  BE ARIZONA RIVER ROCK, 2" - 4" DIAMETER. RIVER
ROCK SHALL BE COMPACTED TO A MINIMUM OF 3" DEPTH OVER
FILTER FABRIC.

PRUNING AND TRIMMING NOTES
1. CONTRACTOR SHALL PRUNE ALL EXISTING TREES ON-SITE USING

STANDARD GUIDELINES IN THE INDUSTRY.
2. ALL TREES SHALL BE TRIMMED SO THAT NATURAL SHAPES OF THE

PLANTS ARE RETAINED.
3. DO NOT 'TOP' OR 'HEAD' TREES.
4. IF BALLING OR SHEARING OF TREES HAS OCCURRED IN THE PAST,

DISCONTINUE THIS PRACTICE AND ALLOW PLANTS TO GROW INTO
NATURAL SHAPE.

5. REMOVE SUCKERS, DEAD, DYING, DISEASED, BROKEN AND / OR WEAK
BRANCHES FROM ALL TREES ALONG THE MAIN TRUNK STRUCTURE AND
WITHIN THE BRANCHING AREA.

6. CONTRACTOR SHALL PRUNE EXISTING DECIDUOUS HARDWOOD BY
REMOVING LOWER LIMBS TO RAISE THE CANOPY.  THE BOTTOM OF THE
CANOPY SHALL BE RAISED TO 12'-0" ABOVE GRADE FOR DECIDUOUS
HARDWOOD TREES, WHEN POSSIBLE.  THE INTEGRITY OF THE CANOPY
AND STRUCTURE OF THE TREE SHALL BE MAINTAINED.  DO NOT CUT OR
PRUNE CENTRAL LEADERS.

7. CONTRACTOR SHALL THIN THE CANOPY BY ONE-FOURTH.  PRUNE TREE
TO EVENLY SPACE BRANCHES WITHIN THE CANOPY WHENEVER
POSSIBLE.  REMOVE THOSE LIMBS THAT CROSS OTHERS, DOUBLE
LEADERS AND THOSE THAT EXCESSIVELY EXTEND BEYOND THE
NATURAL CROWN OF THE TREE.

8. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE DEEP ROOT FEEDING AND INVIGORATION
OF EXISTING TREES.  THIS SHALL BE ORGANIC BASED NUTRIENTS
BASED FOR ROOT GROWTH AND LEAF GROWTH STIMULATION.

9. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE REQUIRED TO CHIP ALL REMOVED BRANCHES,
LEAFS, ETC.

Case #: SUP-0052



RE
VI

SI
O

N
S

SA
LA

D 
AN

D 
G

O
 - 

AD
DI

SO
N

  -
 M

AR
SH

 L
AN

E 
AN

D 
BE

LT
 L

IN
E 

RO
AD

 
38

20
 B

EL
T 

LI
N

E 
RO

AD
, A

DD
IS

O
N

, T
EX

AS
, 7

50
01

OF

N
o.

Da
te

Ap
p.

SHEET NO.

©
  2

02
2 

Q
ui

dd
ity

JO
B 

N
O

.:

SC
AL

E:
DE

SI
GN

ED
 B

Y.
:

CH
EC

KE
D 

BY
:

A B C D E F

1
2

3
4

DA
TE

:

DR
AW

N
 B

Y:

AS
 S

HO
W

N

JU
LY

 2
02

2

Te
xa

s B
oa

rd
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
 a

nd
 L

an
d 

Su
rv

ey
or

s R
eg

. N
o.

 F
-2

32
90

45
00

 M
er

ca
nt

ile
 P

la
za

 D
riv

e,
 S

ui
te

 2
10

   
Fo

rt
 W

or
th

, T
ex

as
 7

61
37

   
68

2.
26

8.
22

00
 

S
TAT E OF T EXAS

TC
ET

HI
RCAEPACSDNALDEE

GE
IS

R

RT

572 4

AM
AN

A

RICH

D

W. ARDSON

a W R AWR Designs, LLC
P.O. Box 1746
Aledo, Texas 76008
amanda@awr-designs.com
c. 512.517.5589

L1.03

LA
N

DS
CA

PE
 S

PE
CI

FI
CA

TI
O

N
S 

AN
D 

DE
TA

IL
S

TREE PLANTING

SHRUB PLANTING

SHRUBS OR GROUNDCOVER AS
SPECIFIED ON PLAN

PLANTING SOIL MIX. TILL IN WITH PARTS
EXISTING SOIL, EXCLUDING LARGE
CLODS AND ROCKS.

ROOT BALL, DO NOT
DISTURB

UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE / NATIVE SOIL

WEED BARRIER FABRIC

LAYER OF MULCH,
SETTLED THICKNESS
SHOULD BE 2" MIN.CURB OR SIDEWALK,

NO STEEL EDGING
ALONG WALK, TYP.

TOP OF MULCH SHOULD BE,
AT MINIMUM, 1/2" BELOW

WALK OR CURBING

REF. LANDSCAPE
PLAN FOR SPACING

N.T.S.
1

2
N.T.S.

1/2" MAXIMUM

O
.C

. S
PA

CI
NG

O.C. SPACING

BACK OF CURB

MULCH

24" MIN. SETBACK
FOR SHRUBS &
GROUNDCOVERS
ALONG BACK OF
CURB TO ALLOW
FOR CAR OVERHANG

SHRUB SPACING AND PLANTING AT B.O.C.3
N.T.S.

4'
MIN.

2.5'
MIN.

SPECIFIED
BED BORDER

2'
MIN.

BACK OF CURB

MULCH PER SPECIFICATIONS

LAWN

SHRUBS AND GROUNDCOVER
REFER TO PLANS FOR PLANT TYPES

PREPARED SOIL MIX
PER SPECIFICATIONS

3/16" X 4" X 16" STEEL EDGING WITH
STAKES

NOTE:  NO STEEL EDGING
TO BE INSTALLED ALONG
SIDEWALKS

1/2" MAXIMUM

STEEL EDGING DETAIL4
N.T.S.

DECOMPOSED GRANITE / RIVER ROCK5
N.T.S.

DECOMPOSED GRANITE AND/OR
RIVER ROCK TO BE
COMPACTED TO A 3" DEPTH

PLANTING AREA, REFERENCE
LANDSCAPE PLAN

DECOMPOSED GRANITE /
RIVER ROCK

ENSURE PROPER DRAINAGE

STEEL EDGING

FILTER FABRIC, WRAP
UP AT EDGING, TYP.

COMPACTED SUBGRADE

™

PLANTING HOLE

"S" HOOK
U-BRACKET
TREE TRUNK
ROOT ANCHOR
TREE ROOT BALL

"S" HOOK

TIGHTENING STRAP

DRIVE ROD

ANCHOR

STEP 1:

· SET TREE IN PLANTING PIT
· PLACE ANCHOR WITH RING SIDE DOWN AGAINST TOP OF ROOT

BALL
· CENTER ROOT ANCHOR'S INNER RING(S) AROUND TRUNK OF TREE
· ALIGN DRIVE ROD AS CLOSE AS POSSIBLE TO OUTSIDE EDGE OF

U-BRACKET

STEP 2:

· DRIVE ANCHOR STRAIGHT DOWN INTO
UNDISTURBED SUBBASE SOIL

· SEE CHART FOR RECOMMENDED DEPTHS
PER TREE SIZE

STEP 3:

· REMOVE DRIVE ROD
· REPEAT STEPS 1 & 2 FOR ALL THREE (3) ANCHOR LOCATIONS
· PULL BACK ON STRAP APPROXIMATELY 3" FOR THE V-68 ANCHOR, OR 6" TO

7" FOR THE V-88 ANCHOR TO SET ANCHOR INTO A HORIZONTAL OR LOCKED
POSITION.  A FULCRUM MAY BE REQUIRED TO ASSIST IN SETTING THE
ANCHOR.

· PLACE "S" HOOK OVER THE END OF THE U-BRACKET
· PULL STRAP UP VERTICALLY UNTIL ROOT ANCHOR RINGS BITE INTO THE

TOP OF THE ROOT BALL AND U-BRACKETS ARE SETTING FLUSH ON TOP OF
THE ROOT BALL

· TIE EXCESS STRAP OFF TO THE U-BRACKET ALLOWING ENOUGH REMAINING
STRAP TO ADJUST TREE, IF NECESSARY

TREE STAKE SOLUTIONS, LLC.
9973 FM 521 Road
Rosharon, Texas 77583
www.treestakesolutions.com

Phone: 281-778-1400
Mobile: 903-676-6143
Fax: 281-778-1425

PLAN DETAIL A

SEE DETAIL A

ROOT ANCHOR ITEM#     ROOT BALL & CONTAINER SIZE      ANCHOR INSTALLATION DEPTH        QUANTITY & ANCHOR SIZE

15-BG     10 / 15 Gallon or 17" root ball            

30-BG     20 / 39 Gallon or 22" root ball 

45/65-BG     45 / 65 Gallon or 27-30" root ball

100-BG     95 / 100 Gallon or 36" root ball

150-BG     150 Gallon or 42" root ball

200-BG     200 Gallon or 48" root ball

300-BG     300 Gallon or 58" root ball

CUSTOM-BG     Root Balls larger than 60"

SECTIONS

3 - V68 Anchors

3 - V68 Anchors

3 - V68 Anchors

3 - V68 Anchors

3 - V68 Anchors

3 - V88 Anchors

3 - V88 Anchors

12 - 18" Minimum Depth

18 - 24" Minimum Depth

24 - 30" Minimum Depth

30 - 36" Minimum Depth

48" Minimum Depth

48" Minimum Depth

48" Minimum Depth

TBD

SECTION 32 9300 - LANDSCAPE

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 QUALIFICATIONS OF THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR.

A. ALL LANDSCAPE WORK SHOWN ON THESE PLANS SHALL BE PERFORMED BY
A SINGLE FIRM SPECIALIZING IN LANDSCAPE PLANTING

1.2 REFERENCE DOCUMENTS

A. REFER TO LANDSCAPE PLANS, NOTES, SCHEDULES AND DETAILS FOR
ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

1.3 SCOPE OF WORK / DESCRIPTION OF WORK

A. WORK COVERED BY THESE SECTIONS INCLUDES: FURNISH ALL
SUPERVISIONS, LABOR, MATERIALS, SERVICES, EQUIPMENT AND
APPLIANCES REQUIRED TO COMPLETE THE WORK COVERED IN
CONJUNCTION WITH THE LANDSCAPING COVERED IN LANDSCAPE PLANS
AND SPECIFICATIONS INCLUDING:

1. PLANTING (TREES, SHRUBS, GRASSES)

1. BED PREP AND FERTILIZATION

3. NOTIFICATION OF SOURCES
4. WATER AND MAINTENANCE UNTIL ACCEPTANCE

5. GUARANTEE

B. ALL WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE
LAWS, CODES AND REGULATIONS REQUIRED BY AUTHORITIES HAVING
JURISDICTION OVER SUCH WORK, INCLUDING ALL INSPECTIONS AND
PERMITS REQUIRED BY FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL AUTHORITIES IN
SUPPLY, TRANSPORTATION AND INSTALLATION OF MATERIALS.

C. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THE LOCATION OF ALL
UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINES (WATER, SEWER, ELECTRICAL, TELEPHONE,
GAS, CABLE, TELEVISION, ETC.) PRIOR TO THE START OF ANY WORK

1.4 REFERENCES

A. AMERICAN STANDARD FOR NURSERY STOCK PUBLISHED BY AMERICAN
ASSOCIATION OF NURSERYMEN; 27 OCTOBER 1980, EDITION; BY AMERICAN
NATIONAL STANDARDS INSTUTUTE (Z60.1) - PLANT MATERIAL

B. AMERICAN JOINT COMMITTEE ON HORTICULTURE NOMENCLATURE; 1942
EDITION OF STANDARDIZED PLANT NAMES.

C. TEXAS ASSOCIATION OF NURSERYMEN, GRADES AND STANDARDS

1.5 SUBMITTALS

A. PROVIDE REPRESENTATIVE QUANTITIES OF EACH SOIL, MULCH, BED MIX,
GRAVEL AND STONE BEFORE INSTALLATION. SAMPLES TO BE APPROVED BY
OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE BEFORE USE.

B. SOIL AMENDMENTS AND FERTILIZERS SHOULD BE RESEARCHED AND BASED
ON THE SOILS IN THE AREA.

C. BEFORE INSTALLATION, SUBMIT DOCUMENTATION THAT PLANT MATERIALS
ARE AVAILABLE AND HAVE BEEN RESERVED. FOR ANY PLANT MATERIAL NOT
AVAILABLE, SUBMIT REQUEST FOR SUBSTITUTION.

1.6 JOB CONDITIONS, DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

A. GENERAL CONTRACTOR TO COMPLETE WORK BEFORE LANDSCAPE
CONTRACTOR TO COMMENCE.

B. ALL PLANTING BED AREAS SHALL BE LEFT THREE INCHES BELOW FINAL
GRADE OF SIDEWALKS, DRIVES AND CURBS. ALL AREAS TO RECEIVE SOLID
SOD SHALL BE LEFT ONE INCH BELOW THE FINAL GRADE OF WALKS, DRIVES
AND CURBS. CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS SHALL BE REMOVED PRIOR TO
LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR BEGINNING WORK

C. STORAGE OF MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT AT THE JOB SITE WILL BE AT THE
RISK OF THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR. THE OWNER CANNOT BE HELD
RESPONSIBLE FOR THEFT OR DAMAGE.

1.7 SEQUENCING

A. INSTALL TREES, SHRUBS, AND LINER STOCK PLANT MATERIALS PRIOR TO
INSTALLATION OF LAWN/SOLID SOD.

B. WHERE EXISTING TURF AREAS ARE BEING CONVERTED TO PLANTING BEDS,
THE TURF SHALL BE CHEMICALLY ERADICATED TO MINIMIZE RE-GROWTH IN
THE FUTURE. AREAS SHALL BE PROPERLY PREPARED WITH AMENDED
ORGANIC MATTER.

1.8 MAINTENANCE AND GUARANTEE

MAINTENANCE:

A. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE HELD RESPONSIBLE FOR THE
MAINTENANCE OF ALL WORK FROM THE TIME OF PLANTING UNTIL FINAL
ACCEPTANCE BY OWNER.

B. NO TREES, GRASS, GROUNDCOVER OR GRASS WILL BE ACCEPTED UNLESS
THEY SHOW HEALTHY GROWTH AND SATISFACTORY FOLIAGE CONDITIONS.

C. MAINTENANCE SHALL INCLUDE WATERING OF TREES AND PLANTS,
CULTIVATION, WEED SPRAYING, EDGING, PRUNING OF TREES, MOWING OF
GRASS, CLEANING UP AND ALL OTHER WORK NECESSARY FOR
MAINTENANCE.

D. A WRITTEN NOTICE REQUESTING FINAL INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE

SHOULD BE SUBMITTED TO THE OWNER AT LEAST 7 DAYS PRIOR TO
COMPLETION. AN ON SITE INSPECTION BY THE OWNER'S AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE WILL BE COMPLETED PRIOR TO WRITTEN ACCEPTANCE.

E. NOTIFY OWNER OR OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE
EXPIRATION OF THE WARRANTY PERIOD.

F. REMOVE DEAD, UNHEALTHY AND UNSIGHTLY PLANTS DURING WARRANTY
PERIOD

G. REMOVE GUYING AND STAKING MATERIALS AFTER ONE YEAR

H. ALL LANDSCAPE MUST BE MAINTAINED AND GRASS MOWED/EDGED ON A
WEEKLY SCHEDULE UNTIL ACCEPTANCE BY OWNER.  REMOVE CLIPPINGS
AND DEBRIS FROM SITE PROMPTLY.

I. REMOVE TRASH, DEBRIS, AND LITTER. WATER, PRUNE, RESTAKE TREES,
FERTILIZE, WEED AND APPLY HERBICIDES AND FUNGICIDES AS REQUIRED.

J. COORDINATE THE OPERATION OF IRRIGATION SYSTEM TO ENSURE THAT
PLANTS ARE ADEQUATELY WATERED. HAND WATER AREAS NOT RECEIVING
ADEQUATE WATER FROM AN IRRIGATION SYSTEM.

K. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN THE IRRIGATION SYSTEM IN
ACCORDANCE TO THE MAINTENANCE SERVICE TO ENSURE THE SYSTEM IS
IN PROPER WORKING ORDER WITH SCHEDULING ADJUSTMENTS BY SEASON
TO MAXIMIZE WATER CONSERVATION.

L. REAPPLY MULCH TO BARE AND THIN AREAS.

M. SHOULD SEEDED AND/OR SODDED AREAS NOT BE COVERED BY AN
AUTOMATIC IRRIGATION SYSTEM, THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE
RESPONSIBLE FOR WATERING THESE AREAS AND OBTAINING A FULL,
HEALTHY STAND OF GRASS AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.

N. TO ACHIEVE FINAL ACCEPTANCE AT THE END OF THE MAINTENANCE
PERIOD, ALL OF THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS MUST OCCUR:

a. THE LANDSCAPE SHALL SHOW ACTIVE, HEALTHY GROWTH (WITH
EXCEPTIONS MADE FOR SEASONAL DORMANCY).  ALL PLANTS NOT
MEETING THIS CONDITION SHALL BE REJECTED AND REPLACED BY
HEALTHY PLANT MATERIAL PRIOR TO FINAL ACCEPTANCE.

b. ALL HARDSCAPE SHALL BE CLEANED PRIOR TO FINAL
ACCEPTANCE.

c. SODDED AREAS MUST BE ACTIVELY GROWING AND MUST REACH A
MINIMUM HEIGHT OF 1 1/2  INCHES BEFORE FIRST MOWING.
HYDROMULCHED AREAS SHALL SHOW ACTIVE, HEALTHY GROWTH.
BARE AREAS LARGER THAN TWELVE SQUARE INCHES MUST BE
RESODDED OR RESEEDED (AS APPROPRIATE) PRIOR TO FINAL
ACCEPTANCE.  ALL SODDED TURF SHALL BE NEATLY MOWED.

GUARANTEE:

A. TREES, SHRUBS, GROUNDCVOER SHALL BE GUARANTEED (IN WRITING) FOR
A 12 MONTH PERIOD (90 DAYS FOR ANNUAL PLANTING OR AT THE END OF
THE SEASONAL COLOR GROWING SEASON, WHICHEVER COMES SOONER)
AFTER FINAL ACCEPTANCE. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REPLACE ALL DEAD
MATERIALS AS SOON AS WEATHER PERMITS AND UPON NOTIFICATION OF
THE OWNER.

B. PLANTS INCLUDING TREES, WHICH HAVE PARTIALLY DIED SO THAT SHAPE,
SIZE OR SYMMETRY HAVE BEEN DAMAGED SHALL BE CONSIDERED SUBJECT
TO REPLACEMENT. IN SUCH CASES, THE OPINION OF THE OWNER SHALL BE
FINAL.

C. PLANTS USED FOR REPLACEMENT SHALL BE OF THE SAME SIZE AND KIND
AS THOSE ORIGINALLY PLANTED OR SPECIFIED. ALL WORK INCLUDING
MATERIALS, LABOR AND EQUIPMENT USED IN REPLACEMENTS SHALL CARRY
A 12 MONTH GUARANTEE. ANY DAMAGE INCLUDING RUTS IN LAWN OR BED
AREAS INCURRED AS A RESULT OF MAKING REPLACEMENTS SHALL BE
IMMEDIATELY REPAIRED.

D. WHEN PLANT REPLACEMENTS ARE MADE, PLANTS, SOIL MIX, FERTILIZER
AND MULCH ARE TO BE UTILIZED AS ORIGINALLY SPECIFIED AND
RE-INSPECTED FOR FULL COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONTRACT
REQUIREMENTS. ALL REPLACEMENTS ARE INCLUDED UNDER "WORK" OF
THIS SECTION.

E. THE OWNER AGREES THAT FOR THE ONE YEAR WARRANTY PERIOD TO BE
EFFECTIVE, HE WILL WATER PLANTS AT LEAST TWICE A WEEK DURING DRY
PERIODS.

F. THE ABOVE GUARANTEE SHALL NOT APPLY WHERE PLANTS DIE AFTER
ACCEPTANCE BECAUSE OF DAMAGE DUE TO ACTS OF GOD, VANDALISM,
INSECTS, DISEASE, INJURY BY HUMANS, MACHINES, THEFT OR NEGLIGENCE
BY OWNER.

G. ACCEPTANCE FOR ALL LANDSCAPE WORK SHALL BE GIVEN AFTER FINAL
INSPECTION BY THE OWNER PROVIDED THE JOB IS IN A COMPLETE,
UNDAMAGED CONDITION AND THERE IS A STAND OF GRASS IN ALL LAWN
AREAS. AT THAT TIME, THE OWNER WILL ASSUME MAINTENANCE ON THE
ACCEPTED WORK.

1.9 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. COMPLY WITH ALL FEDERAL, STATE, COUNTY AND LOCAL REGULATIONS
GOVERNING LANDSCAPE MATERIALS AND WORK.

B. EMPLOY PERSONNEL EXPERIENCED AND FAMILIAR WITH THE REQUIRED
WORK AND SUPERVISION BY A FOREMAN.

C. MAKE CONTACT WITH SUPPLIERS IMMEDIATELY UPON OBTAINING NOTICE
OF CONTRACT ACCEPTANCE TO SELECT AND BOOK MATERIALS.

D. DEVELOP A PROGRAM OF MAINTENANCE (PRUNING AND FERTILIZATION)
WHICH WILL ENSURE THE PURCHASED MATERIALS WILL MEET AND/OR
EXCEED PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS.

E. DO NOT MAKE PLANT MATERIAL SUBSTITUTIONS. IF THE LANDSCAPE
MATERIAL SPECIFIED IS NOT READILY AVAILABLE, SUBMIT PROOF TO
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT ALONG WITH THE PROPOSED MATERIAL TO BE
USED IN LIEU OF THE SPECIFIED PLANT.

F. AT THE TIME BIDS ARE SUBMITTED, THE CONTRACTOR IS ASSUMED TO HAVE
LOCATED THE MATERIALS NECESSARY TO COMPLETE THE JOB AS
SPECIFIED.

G. OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE SHALL INSPECT ALL PLANT MATERIAL AND
RETAINS THE RIGHT TO INSPECT MATERIALS UPON ARRIVAL TO THE SITE
AND DURING INSTALLATION. THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE MAY ALSO
REJECT ANY MATERIALS HE/SHE FEELS TO BE UNSATISFACTORY OR
DEFECTIVE DURING THE WORK PROCESS. ALL PLANTS DAMAGED IN
TRANSIT OR AT THE JOB SITE SHALL BE REJECTED.

1.10 PRODUCT DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

A. PREPARATION

1. BALLED AND BURLAPPED B&B PLANTS): DIG AND PREPARE SHIPMENT
IN A MANNER THAT WILL NOT DAMAGE ROOTS, BRANCHES, SHAPE AND FUTURE
DEVELOPMENT.

2. CONTAINER GROWN PLANTS: DELIVER PLANTS IN RIGID CONTAINER TO
HOLD BALL SHAPE AND PROTECT ROOT MASS.

B. DELIVERY

                     1.  DELIVER PACKAGED MATERIALS IN SEALED CONTAINERS SHOWING
WEIGHT, ANALYSIS AND NAME OF MANUFACTURER. PROTECT MATERIALS
FROM DETERIORATION DURING DELIVERY AND WHILE STORED ON SITE.

2. DELIVER ONLY PLANT MATERIALS THAT CAN BE PLANTED IN ONE DAY
UNLESS ADEQUATE STORAGE AND WATERING FACILITIES ARE AVAILABLE
ON SITE

3. PROTECT ROOT BALLS BY HEELING IN WITH SAWDUST OR OTHER
APPROVED MOISTURE RETAINING MATERIAL IF NOT PLANTED WITHIN 24
HOURS OF DELIVERY.

4. PROTECT PLANTS DURING DELIVERY TO PREVENT DAMAGE TO ROOT
BALL OR DESICCATION OF LEAVES.

5. KEEP PLANTS MOIST AT ALL TIMES. COVER ALL MATERIALS DURING
TRANSPORT.
6. NOTIFY OWNERS REPRESENTATIVE OF DELIVERY 72 HOURS PRIOR TO
DELIVERY OF PLANT MATERIAL AT JOB SITE.

7. REMOVE REJECTED PLANT MATERIAL IMMEDIATELY FROM JOB SITE.
8. TO AVOID DAMAGE OR STRESS, DO NOT LIFT, MOVE, ADJUST TO
PLUMB, OR OTHERWISE MANIPULATE PLANTS BY TRUNK OR STEMS.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.1 PLANT MATERIALS

A. GENERAL: WELL FORMED NO. 1 GRADE OR BETTER NURSERY GROWN
STOCK. LISTED PLANT HEIGHTS ARE FROM TOPS OF FOOT BALLS TO
NOMINAL TOPS OF PLANTS. PLANT SPREAD REFERS TO NOMINAL OUTER
WIDTH OF THE PLANT NOT THE OUTER LEAF TIPS. PLANTS SHALL BE
INDIVIDUALLY APPROVED BY THE OWNERS REPRESENTATIVE AND THEIR
DECISION AS TO THEIR ACCEPTABILITY SHALL BE FINAL.

B. QUANTITIES: THE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE COMPLIMENTARY.
ANYTHING CALLED FOR ON ONE AND NOT THE OTHER IS AS BINDING AS IF
SHOWN AND CALLED FOR ON BOTH. THE PLANT SCHEDULE IS AN AID TO
BIDDERS ONLY. CONFIRM ALL QUANTITIES ON PLAN.

C. QUANTITIES AND SIZE: PLANT MATERIALS SHALL CONFORM TO THE SIZE
GIVEN ON THE PLAN AND SHALL BE HEALTHY, WELL SHAPED, FULL
BRANCHED AND WELL ROOTED. SYMMETRY IS ALSO IMPERATIVE. PLANTS
SHALL BE FREE FROM INSECTS, INJURY, DISEASE, BROKEN BRANCHES,
DISFIGUREMENTS, INSECT EGGS AND ARE TO BE OF SPECIMEN QUALITY.

D. APPROVAL: ALL PLANTS WHICH ARE FOUND UNSUITABLE IN GROWTH OR
ARE UNHEALTHY, BADLY SHAPED OR UNDERSIZED WILL BE REJECTED BY
THE OWNERS REPRESENTATIVE EITHER BEFORE OR AFTER PLANTING AND
SHALL BE REMOVED AT THE EXPENSE OF THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR
AND REPLACED WITH ACCEPTABLE SPECIMENS.

E. TREES SHALL BE HEALTHY, FULL BRANCHED, WELL SHAPED AND SHALL
MEET THE MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS AS SPECIFIED ON THE PLANT
SCHEDULE. ALL TREES SHALL BE OBTAINED FROM SOURCES WITHIN 200
MILES OF THE PROJECT SITE IF POSSIBLE, AND WITH SIMILAR CLIMACTIC
CONDITIONS.

F. PRUNING: ALL PRUNING OF TREES AND SHRUBS SHALL BE EXECUTED BY
THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER,
PRIOR TO FINAL ACCEPTANCE.

G. PLANTS SHALL CONFORM TO THE MEASUREMENTS SPECIFIED, EXCEPT THE
PLANTS LARGER THAN THOSE SPECIFIED MAY BE USED. USE OF LARGER
PLANTS SHALL NOT INCREASE THE CONTRACT PRICE.

H. WHERE MATERIALS ARE PLANTED IN MASSES, PROVIDE PLANTS OF
UNIFORM SIZE.

I. ROOT SYSTEMS SHALL BE HEALTHY, DENSELY BRANCHED, FIBROUS ROOT
SYSTEMS, NON-POT-BOUND, FREE FROM ENCIRCLING AND/OR GIRDLING

ROOTS, AND FREE FROM ANY OTHER ROOT DEFECTS (SUCH AS J-SHAPED
ROOTS).

J. ALL TREES SHALL BE STANDARD IN FORM, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.
TREES WITH CENTRAL LEADERS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED IF LEADER IS
DAMAGED OR REMOVED.  PRUNE ALL DAMAGED TWIGS AFTER PLANTING

K. TREE TRUNKS TO BE STURDY, EXHIBIT HARDENED SYSTEMS AND VIGOROUS
AND FIBROUS ROOT SYSTEMS, NOT ROOT OR POT BOUND.

L. TREES WITH DAMAGED OR CROOKED LEADERS, BARK ABRASIONS,
SUNSCALD, DISFIGURING KNOTS, OR\INSECT DAMAGE WILL BE REJECTED.

M. CALIPER MEASUREMENTS FOR STANDARD (SINGLE TRUNK) TREES SHALL BE
AS FOLLOWS:  SIX INCHES ABOVE THE ROOT FLARE FOR TREES UP TO AND
INCLUDING FOUR INCHES IN CALIPER, AND TWELVE INCHES ABOVE THE
ROOT FLARE FOR TREES EXCEEDING FOUR INCHES IN CALIPER

N. MULTI-TRUNK TREES SHALL BE MEASURED BY THEIR OVERALL HEIGHT,
MEASURED FROM THE TOP OF THE ROOT BALL.

O. ANY TREE OR SHRUB SHOWN TO HAVE EXCESS SOIL PLACED ON TOP OF
THE ROOT BALL, SO THAT THE ROOT FLARE HAS BEEN COMPLETELY
COVERED, SHALL BE REJECTED.

P. SOD:  PROVIDE WELL-ROOTED SOD OF THE VARIETY NOTED ON THE PLANS.
SOD SHALL BE CUT FROM HEALTHY, MATURE TURF WITH SOIL THICKNESS
OF 3/4" TO 1".  EACH PALLET OF SOD SHALL BE ACCOMPANIED BY A
CERTIFICATE FROM SUPPLIER STATING THE COMPOSITION OF THE SOD.

2.2 SOIL PREPARATION MATERIALS

A. SANDY LOAM:

1. FRIABLE, FERTILE, DARK, LOAMY SOIL, FREE OF CLAY 

    LUMPS, SUBSOIL, STONES AND OTHER EXTRANEOUS 

MATERIAL AND REASONABLY FREE OF WEEDS AND  

   FOREIGN GRASSES.  LOAM CONTAINING DALLASGRASS OR 

NUTGRASS SHALL BE REJECTED.

2. PHYSICAL PROPERTIES AS FOLLOWS:

a. CLAY – BETWEEN 7-27%

b. SILT – BETWEEN 15-25%

c. SAND – LESS THAN 52%

3. ORGANIC MATTER SHALL BE 3%-10% OF TOTAL DRY 

    WEIGHT.

4. IF REQUESTED, LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE 

   A CERTIFIED SOIL ANALYSIS CONDUCTED BY AN 

APPROVED SOIL TESTING LABORATORY VERIFYING THAT 

   SANDY LOAM MEETS THE ABOVE REQUIREMENTS.

B. ORGANIC MATERIAL:  COMPOST WITH A MIXTURE OF 80%

VEGETATIVE MATTER AND 20% ANIMAL WASTE.  INGREDIENTS

SHOULD BE A MIX OF COURSE AND FINE TEXTURED MATERIAL.

C. PREMIXED BEDDING SOIL AS SUPPLIED BY VITAL EARTH RESOURCES,

GLADEWATER, TEXAS; PROFESSIONAL BEDDING SOIL AS SUPPLIED BY

LIVING EARTH TECHNOLOGY, DALLAS, TEXAS OR ACID GRO

MUNICIPAL MIX AS SUPPLIED BY SOIL BUILDING SYSTEMS, DALLAS,

TEXAS OR APPROVED EQUAL.

D. SHARP SAND:  SHARP SAND MUST BE FREE OF SEEDS, SOIL PARTICLES

AND WEEDS.

E. MULCH: DOUBLE SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH, PARTIALLY

DECOMPOSED, DARK BROWN.

F. ORGANIC FERTILIZER:  FERTILAID, SUSTANE, OR GREEN SENSE OR

EQUAL AS RECOMMENDED FOR REQUIRED APPLICATIONS.  FERTILIZER

SHALL BE DELIVERED TO THE SITE IN ORIGINAL UNOPENED

CONTAINERS, EACH BEARING THE MANUFACTURER'S GUARANTEED

STATEMENT OF ANALYSIS.

G. COMMERCIAL FERTILIZER:  10-20-10 OR SIMILAR ANALYSIS.  NITROGEN

SOURCE TO BE A MINIMUM 50% SLOW RELEASE ORGANIC NITROGEN

(SCU OR UF) WITH A MINIMUM 8% SULFUR AND 4% IRON, PLUS

MICRONUTRIENTS.

H. PEAT:  COMMERCIAL SPHAGNUM PEAT MOSS OR PARTIALLY

DECOMPOSED SHREDDED PINE BARK OR OTHER APPROVED ORGANIC

MATERIAL.

2.3 MISCELLANEOUS MATERIALS
A. STEEL EDGING - SHALL BE 3/16” X 4” X 16” DARK GREEN LANDSCAPE

EDGING. DURAEDGE STEEL OR APPROVED EQUAL.

B. TREE STAKING - TREE STAKING SOLUTIONS OR APPROVED SUBSTITUTE;
REFER TO DETAILS.

C. FILTER FABRIC - MIRAFI 1405 BY MIRAFI INC. OR APPROVED SUBSTITUTE.
AVAILABLE AT LONE STAR PRODUCTS, INC. (469-523-0444)

D. SAND - UNIFORMLY GRADED, WASHED, CLEAN, BANK RUN SAND.

E. GRAVEL: WASHED NATIVE PEA GRAVEL, GRADED 1" TO 1.5"

F. DECOMPOSED GRANITE - BASE MATERIAL OF NATURAL MATERIAL MIX OF
GRANITE AGGREGATE NOT TO EXCEED 1/8” IN DIAMETER COMPOSED OF
VARIOUS STAGES OF DECOMPOSED EARTH BASE.

G. RIVER ROCK - LOCALLY AVAILABLE NATIVE RIVER ROCK BETWEEN 2”-4” IN
DIAMETER.

H. PRE-EMERGENT HERBICIDES: ANY GRANULAR, NON-STAINING

PRE-EMERGENT HERBICIDE THAT IS LABELED FOR THE SPECIFIC
ORNAMENTALS OR TURF ON WHICH IT WILL BE UTILIZED.  PRE-EMERGENT
HERBICIDES SHALL BE APPLIED PER THE MANUFACTURER'S LABELED RATES.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.1 PREPARATION

A. LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR TO INSPECT ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS

AND REPORT ANY DEFICIENCIES TO THE OWNER.

B. ALL PLANTING AREAS SHALL BE CONDITIONED AS FOLLOWS:

1.  PREPARE NEW PLANTING BEDS BY SCRAPING AWAY EXISTING

GRASS AND WEEDS AS NECESSARY.  TILL EXISTING SOIL TO A

DEPTH OF SIX (6") INCHES PRIOR TO PLACING COMPOST AND

FERTILIZER.  APPLY FERTILIZER AS PER MANUFACTURER'S

RECOMMENDATIONS.  ADD SIX (6") INCHES OF COMPOST AND TILL

INTO A DEPTH OF SIX (6") INCHES OF SPECIFIED MULCH (SETTLED

THICKNESS).

2. BACKFILL FOR TREE PITS SHALL BE AS FOLLOWS:  USE EXISTING

TOP SOIL ON SITE (USE IMPORTED TOPSOIL AS NEEDED) FREE FROM

LARGE CLUMPS, ROCKS, DEBRIS, CALICHE, SUBSOILS, ETC., PLACED

IN NINE (9") INCH LAYERS AND WATERED IN THOROUGHLY.

C. GRASS AREAS:

1.  BLOCKS OF SOD SHOULD BE LAID JOINT TO JOINT (STAGGERED

JOINTS) AFTER FERTILIZING THE GROUND FIRST.  ROLL GRASS

AREAS TO ACHIEVE A SMOOTH, EVEN SURFACE.  THE JOINTS

BETWEEN THE BLOCKS OF SOD SHOULD BE FILLED WITH TOPSOIL

WHERE THEY ARE GAPED OPEN, THEN WATERED THOROUGHLY.

3.2  INSTALLATION

A. MAINTENANCE OF PLANT MATERIALS SHALL BEGIN IMMEDIATELY

AFTER EACH PLANT IS DELIVERED TO THE SITE AND SHALL CONTINUE

UNTIL ALL  CONSTRUCTION HAS BEEN SATISFACTORILY

ACCOMPLISHED.

B. PLANT MATERIALS SHALL BE DELIVERED TO THE SITE ONLY AFTER THE

BEDS ARE PREPARED AND AREAS ARE READY FOR PLANTING. ALL

SHIPMENTS OF NURSERY MATERIALS SHALL BE THOROUGHLY

PROTECTED FROM THE WINDS DURING TRANSIT.  ALL PLANTS WHICH

CANNOT BE PLANTED AT ONCE, AFTER DELIVERY TO THE SITE, SHALL

BE WELL PROTECTED AGAINST THE POSSIBILITY OF DRYING BY WIND

AND BALLS OF EARTH OF B & B PLANTS SHALL BE KEPT COVERED

WITH SOIL OR OTHER ACCEPTABLE MATERIAL.  ALL PLANTS REMAIN

THE PROPERTY OF THE CONTRACTOR UNTIL FINAL ACCEPTANCE.

C. POSITION THE TREES AND SHRUBS IN THEIR INTENDED LOCATION AS

PER PLAN.

D. NOTIFY THE OWNER'S AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE FOR INSPECTION

AND APPROVAL OF ALL POSITIONING OF PLANT MATERIALS.

E. EXCAVATE PITS WITH VERTICAL SIDES AND HORIZONTAL BOTTOM.

TREE PITS SHALL BE LARGE ENOUGH TO PERMIT HANDLING AND

PLANTING WITHOUT INJURY TO BALLS OF EARTH OR ROOTS AND

SHALL BE OF SUCH DEPTH THAT,WHEN PLANTED AND SETTLED, THE

CROWN OF THE PLANT SHALL BEAR THE SAME RELATIONSHIP TO THE

FINISH GRADE AS IT DID TO SOIL SURFACE IN ORIGINAL PLACE OF

GROWTH. THE SIDES OF THE HOLE SHOULD BE ROUGH AND JAGGED,

NEVER SLICK OR GLAZED.

F. SHRUB AND TREE PITS SHALL BE NO LESS THAN TWENTY-FOUR (24")

INCHES WIDER THAN THE LATERAL DIMENSION OF THE EARTH BALL

AND SIX (6") INCHES DEEPER THAN IT'S VERTICAL DIMENSION.

REMOVE AND HAUL FROM SITE ALL ROCKS AND STONES OVER

THREE-QUARTER (34") INCH IN DIAMETER.  PLANTS SHOULD BE
THOROUGHLY MOIST BEFORE REMOVING CONTAINERS.

G. PERCOLATION TEST:  FILL THE HOLE WITH WATER. IF THE WATER

LEVEL DOES NOT PERCOLATE WITHIN 24 HOURS, THE TREE NEEDS TO

MOVE TO ANOTHER LOCATION OR HAVE DRAINAGE ADDED.  INSTALL

A PVC STAND PIPE PER TREE IF THE PERCOLATION TEST FAILS.

H. BACKFILL ONLY WITH 5 PARTS EXISTING SOIL OR SANDY LOAM AND 1

PART BED PREPARATION.  WHEN THE HOLE IS DUG IN SOLID ROCK,

TOPSOIL FROM THE SAME AREA SHOULD NOT BE USED.  CAREFULLY

SETTLE BY WATERING TO PREVENT AIR POCKETS.  REMOVE THE

BURLAP FROM THE TOP 1
3 OF THE BALL, AS WELL AS ALL NYLON,

PLASTIC STRING AND WIRE.  CONTAINER TREES WILL USUALLY BE

ROOT BOUND, IF SO FOLLOW STANDARD NURSERY PRACTICE OF

‘ROOT SCORING’.

I. DO NOT WRAP TREES.

J. DO NOT OVER PRUNE.

K. REMOVE NURSERY TAGS AND STAKES FROM ALL PLANTS

L. REMOVE BOTTOM OF PLANT BOXES PRIOR TO PLACING PLANTS. REMOVE
SIDES AFTER PLACEMENT AND PARTIAL BACKFILLING.

M. REMOVE UPPER THIRD OF BURLAP FROM BALLED AND BURLAPPED TREES
AFTER PLACEMENT.

N. PLACE PLANT UPRIGHT AND PLUMB IN CENTER OF HOLE. ORIENT PLANTS
FOR BEST APPEARANCE.

O. MULCH THE TOP OF THE BALL.  DO NOT PLANT GRASS ALL THE WAY

TO THE TRUNK OF THE TREE.  LEAVE THE AREA ABOVE THE TOP OF

THE BALL AND MULCH WITH AT LEAST TWO (2") INCHES OF SPECIFIED

MULCH.

P. ALL PLANT BEDS AND TREES TO BE MULCHED WITH A MINIMUM

SETTLED THICKNESS OF TWO (2") INCHES OVER THE ENTIRE BED OR

PIT.

Q. OBSTRUCTION BELOW GROUND:  IN THE EVENT THAT ROCK, OR

UNDERGROUND CONSTRUCTION WORK OR OBSTRUCTIONS ARE

ENCOUNTERED IN ANY PLANT PIT EXCAVATION WORK TO BE DONE

UNDER THIS SECTION, ALTERNATE LOCATIONS MAY BE SELECTED BY

THE OWNER.  WHERE LOCATIONS CANNOT BE CHANGED, THE

OBSTRUCTIONS SHALL BE REMOVED TO A DEPTH OF NOT LESS THAN

THREE (3') FEET BELOW GRADE AND NO LESS THAN SIX (6") INCHES

BELOW THE BOTTOM OF BALL WHEN PLANT IS PROPERLY SET AT THE

REQUIRED GRADE.  THE WORK OF THIS SECTION SHALL INCLUDE THE

REMOVAL FROM THE SITE OF SUCH ROCK OR UNDERGROUND

OBSTRUCTIONS ENCOUNTERED AT THE COST OF THE LANDSCAPE

CONTRACTOR.

R. TREES AND LARGE SHRUBS SHALL BE STAKED AS SITE CONDITIONS

REQUIRE.  POSITION STAKES TO SECURE TREES AGAINST SEASONAL

PREVAILING WINDS.

S. PRUNING AND MULCHING:  PRUNING SHALL BE DIRECTED BY THE

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND SHALL BE PRUNED IN ACCORDANCE

WITH STANDARD HORTICULTURAL PRACTICE FOLLOWING FINE

PRUNING, CLASS I PRUNING STANDARDS PROVIDED BY THE NATIONAL

ARBORIST ASSOCIATION.

1. DEAD WOOD, SUCKERS, BROKEN AND BADLY BRUISED

BRANCHES SHALL BE REMOVED. GENERAL TIPPING OF THE

BRANCHES IS NOT PERMITTED.  DO NOT CUT TERMINAL BRANCHES.

2. PRUNING SHALL BE DONE WITH CLEAN, SHARP TOOLS.

3. IMMEDIATELY AFTER PLANTING OPERATIONS ARE COMPLETED,

ALL TREE PITS SHALL BE COVERED WITH A LAYER OF ORGANIC

MATERIAL TWO (2") INCHES IN DEPTH.  THIS LIMIT OF THE ORGANIC

MATERIAL FOR TREES SHALL BE THE DIAMETER OF THE PLANT PIT.

Q. STEEL EDGE INSTALLATION:  EDGE SHALL BE ALIGNED AS INDICATED

ON PLANS.  STAKE OUT LIMITS OF STEEL CURBING AND OBTAIN

OWNERS APPROVAL PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

1. ALL STEEL CURBING SHALL BE FREE OF KINKS AND ABRUPT

BENDS.

2. TOP OF EDGING SHALL BE 12" MAXIMUM HEIGHT ABOVE FINAL
FINISHED GRADE.

3. STAKES ARE TO BE INSTALLED ON THE PLANTING BED SIDE OF

THE CURBING, AS OPPOSED TO THE GRASS SIDE.

4. DO NOT INSTALL STEEL EDGING ALONG SIDEWALKS OR

CURBS.

5. CUT STEEL EDGING AT 45 DEGREE ANGLE WHERE EDGING

MEETS SIDEWALKS OR CURBS.

3.3 CLEANUP AND ACCEPTANCE

A. CLEANUP:  DURING THE WORK, THE PREMISES SHALL BE KEPT NEAT

AND ORDERLY AT ALL TIMES.  STORAGE AREAS FOR ALL MATERIALS

SHALL BE SO ORGANIZED SO THAT THEY, TOO, ARE NEAT AND

ORDERLY.  ALL TRASH AND DEBRIS SHALL BE REMOVED FROM THE

SITE AS WORK PROGRESSES.  KEEP PAVED AREAS CLEAN BY

SWEEPING OR HOSING THEM AT END OF EACH WORK DAY.

B. REPAIR RUTS, HOLES AND SCARES IN GROUND SURFACES.

C. ENSURE THAT WORK IS COMPLETE AND PLANT MATERIALS ARE IN
VIGOROUS AND HEALTHY GROWING CONDITION.

D. UPON COMPLETION OF THE WORK, THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL
PROVIDE THE SITE CLEAN, FREE OF DEBRIS AND TRASH, AND SUITABLE FOR
USE AS INTENDED.  THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL THEN REQUEST
AN INSPECTION BY THE OWNER TO DETERMINE FINAL ACCEPTABILITY.

E. WHEN/IF THE INSPECTED PLANTING WORK DOES NOT COMPLY WITH THE
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL REPLACE
AND/OR REPAIR THE REJECTED WORK TO THE OWNER'S SATISFACTION
WITHIN 24 HOURS.

F. THE LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE PERIOD WILL NOT COMMENCE UNTIL THE
LANDSCAPE WORK HAS BEEN RE-INSPECTED BY THE OWNER AND FOUND
TO BE ACCEPTABLE.  AT THAT TIME, A WRITTEN NOTICE OF FINAL
ACCEPTANCE WILL BE ISSUED BY THE OWNER, AND THE MAINTENANCE AND
GUARANTEE PERIODS WILL COMMENCE.

END OF SECTION

Case #: SUP-0052



 

4500 Mercantile Plaza Drive, Suite 210 

Fort Worth, Texas 76137 

Tel: 682.268.2200 

Fax: 972.488.3882 

www.jonescarter.com 

 

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100   

 

June 22, 2022 

Planning Division 

Town of Addison 

16801 Westgrove Drive 

Addison, TX 75001 

 

 Salad and Go – Addison – Marsh and Beltline 

Letter of Intent 

 

Planning Division, 

 

This document shall serve as the Letter of Intent to the Town of Addison for the Special Use Permit Application 

submitted by Quddity Civil Engineering acting as applicant on behalf of the developer of And Go Concepts, LLC 

dba Salad And Go. The current site is a parking lot for a vacant Humperdink’s with zoning designation PD 

Ordinance #093-018 (Planned Development). We are proposing to construct a new drive thru restaurant. The 

proposed restaurant will include an, approximately, 915 square foot building, canopy, drive thru lanes, along 

with associated parking and utilities.  

 

The goal of Salad and Go is to provide better, healthier, and affordable food. The product is a small (~915 Square 

Foot) drive-thru with no dine in restaurant serving made to order salads, wraps, breakfast burritos, cold brew 

coffee and juices. 

 

The operations of the development includes a delivery of fresh ingredients every morning outside of business 

hours. This delivery from local warehouses prevents the need for cooking in store which reduces the amount of 

waste produced on site. The meals are merely assembled on site. 

 

Salad and Go operates with a maximum of nineteen employees with four working at any given time. Hours of 

operation are 6 a.m. - 9 p.m. every day.  This development will not require outdoor storage or have other outdoor 

activities. 

 

Overall, we believe this development will be a beneficial and exciting addition to the community. 

 

Thank you for your consideration in the matter.   Should you have any questions or require additional information, 

please call me.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

        

Aaron Hawkins, EIT 



Public Comment: 1851-Z/AMLI Midway

Lesley Nyp

From: Lesley Nyp

Sent: Friday, August 12, 2022 4:40 PM

To: Lesley Nyp

Subject: FW: Asbury Circle Support for Salad and Go

From: Elisca Hicks <eliscahicks@gmail.com>  

Sent: Sunday, July 10, 2022 3:27 PM 

To: Ken Schmidt <kschmidt@addisontx.gov>; David Grates <dgrates@saladandgo.com> 

Subject: Re: Asbury Circle Support for Salad and Go 

 

Ken and David,  

 

I wanted to follow up on the concerns that I mentioned in the previous email, and upon re-visiting the site, the need for 

screening/landscaping really doesn't make sense due to the angle of the site.  

 

Thank you both for your work and keeping us informed.  

 

Sincerely,  

Elisca Hicks 

 

 

 

On Thu, Jul 7, 2022 at 3:00 PM Ken Schmidt <kschmidt@addisontx.gov> wrote: 

 

Thank you, Elisca! 

  

We discussed this project earlier today and have incorporated your feedback into our review comments. 

  

 

Ken Schmidt, AICP 

Director of Development Services  

Town of Addison | 16801 Westgrove Dr, Addison, TX 75001  

office: (972) 450-7027 

ADDISONTEXAS.NET 

– 

IT ALL COMES TOGETHER. 

  



Public Comment: 1851-Z/AMLI Midway

  

  

  

From: Elisca Hicks <eliscahicks@gmail.com>  

Sent: Saturday, July 2, 2022 6:38 AM 

To: Ken Schmidt <kschmidt@addisontx.gov> 

Subject: Asbury Circle Support for Salad and Go 

  

Mr. Schmidt,  

  

I am sending this email to inform you that Mr. David Grates and the Asbury Circle community met on June 28, 22 to 

discuss the plans for Salad and Go to build on a portion of the property located at 3820 Belt Line Rd.   

  

I feel that this project would be beneficial to the area and fully support Salad and Go in this location. The vast majority 

of those residents in attendance were also in support of the Salad and Go. The few concerns that were raised were 

possible noise from delivery vehicles during early morning hours, possible need for screening/landscaping, and signage 

to direct customers to exit onto Business Ave.  Mr. Grates explained that Salad and Go could address all of these 

concerns.  

  

Sincerely,  

Elisca Hicks 

  

  

--  

Elisca Hicks 

3916 Asbury Lane 

Asbury Circle HOA President 

281-639-6196 

eliscahicks@gmail.com 

  



Public Comment: 1851-Z/AMLI Midway

WARNING: This email is from an external source. Please DO NOT click links or open attachments without 
positive sender verification of purpose. Never enter Username, Password or sensitive information on linked 
pages from any email. If you are unsure about the message, please click on the Phish Alert button above to 

report. 

  

This e-mail and any files or attachments transmitted with it contain Information that is confidential and privileged. 

This document may contain Protected Health Information (PHI) or other information that is intended only for the use 

of the individual(s) and entity(ies) to whom it is addressed. If you are the intended recipient, further disclosures are 

prohibited without proper authorization. If you are not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying, printing, or 

use of this information is strictly prohibited and possibly a violation of federal or state law and regulations. If you 

have received this information in error, please delete it and call 972-450-7000 immediately. Thank you.  

 



   
Planning & Zoning Commission 5.           
Meeting Date: 08/16/2022  

Agenda Caption:
Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a 
Recommendation regarding an Ordinance Approving a Special Use Permit
(SUP) for Property Located at 4580 Belt Line Road that is currently zoned
Local Retail (LR), to allow a Restaurant with the Sale of Alcoholic
Beverages for On-Premises Consumption. Case 1853-SUP/4580 Belt Line
Road (Toasted Yolk Cafe).

Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval of these requests, subject to the following condition:
  

The applicants shall not use any terms or graphic depictions that relate to
alcoholic beverages in any exterior signage.
Upon approval of a Certificate of Occupancy (CO) for Toasted Yolk, SUP
Ordinance No. O20-02 (Remington’s) shall be repealed.
If any change in occupancy occurs at the retail space (FedEx) prior to the
adoption of the UDC, a use that requires less parking would be required for
the Town to approve re-occupancy of that space.

Attachments
1853-SUP Staff Report 
1853-SUP Plans 
1853-SUP Letter of Intent 



1853-SUP 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING Case 1853-SUP/4580 Belt Line Road (Toasted Yolk Café). Hold a 
Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Recommendation regarding 
an Ordinance Approving a Special Use Permit (SUP) for Property Located at 4580 Belt 
Line Road that is currently zoned Local Retail (LR), to allow a Restaurant with the Sale 
of Alcoholic Beverages for On-Premises Consumption.  
 
 

LOCATION MAP 

 

 



August 16, 2022

STAFF REPORT

RE: 1853-SUP/Toasted Yolk Cafe

LOCATION: 4580 Belt Line Road

REQUEST: Approval of a Special Use Permit for a restaurant 
and approval of a Special Use Permit for the sale of 
alcoholic beverages for on-premises consumption. 

APPLICANT: Mark Albert, AFS Beltline LP

DISCUSSION: 

Background: The subject property is located at 4580 Belt Line Road, which is the at the southwest 
corner of Belt Line Road and Beltwood Parkway. The site was developed in the late 1970’s with 
a 13,859 square foot multitenant structure. There are currently two businesses operating at the 
subject property, FedEx and Addison Point. The applicant, Toasted Yolk Café, is proposing to be 
located in the third, currently vacant, suite. This site is zoned Local Retail (LR) with a Special Use 
Permit (SUP) for a restaurant with the sale of alcohol for on-premises consumption. The vacant 
tenant space was formerly Remington’s Seafood Grill, however, the business closed mid-2020.

Toasted Yolk Café is a casual sit-down restaurant serving breakfast and lunch. Indoor and 
outdoor seating will be provided. The restaurant will also offer alcohol sales for on-premises 
consumption. Toasted Yolk Café currently has 22 operational locations, with two being within the 
DFW area (other locations include Southlake and Highland Village). In addition to the existing 
locations, there are 16 locations coming soon, with six anticipated within DFW. The proposed 
operating hours for the Addison location will be 7:00 am – 3:00 pm, seven days a week. 

The proposed restaurant requires an SUP due to the proposed addition of a patio dining area and 
due to the request to sell alcoholic beverages for on-premises consumption.

Proposed Plan: With this request, Toasted Yolk Café proposes to occupy the existing 3,961 
square foot tenant space at the east side of the parcel. Improvements to the site include the 
addition of an outdoor patio, façade updates, the addition of a solid waste enclosure, increased 
landscaping, and parking lot modifications. The proposed restaurant provides seating for 144 
individuals (100 indoor and 44 patio seats). The interior floor plan is predominately comprised of 
kitchen and service area, with table, booth, and bar seating in the dining area. This proposed plan 
will not add any additional interior floor area; however, a 632 square foot dining patio is proposed 
to be constructed along the building frontage within the existing parking lot. 

Given the existing site constraints, there was a challenge to achieve a balance of improvements 
without detrimentally impacting the economic viability of the property. 

https://thetoastedyolk.com/


2

Parking: The site currently has a shared parking lot between the three tenant spaces. There are 
currently 114 parking spaces, including 4 accessible spaces. Due to proposed alterations, 17 
parking spaces are proposed to be removed. This would result in 97 parking spaces remaining 
on site. As provided in the table below, the required number of parking spaces on site is 116. 

Land Use
Hours of 

Operation
Parking 

Ratio
Square 
Footage

Required 
Parking

Retail (FedEx) 8:00AM – 7:00 PM 1 per 200 s.f. 5,900 s.f. 30

Restaurant
(Addison 

Point)
11:00AM – 2:00AM 1 per 100 s.f. 3,990 s.f. 40

Restaurant
(Toasted Yolk 

Café)
7:00AM – 3:00PM 1 per 100 s.f. 4,593 s.f. 46

Total Required Parking Spaces 116

The proposed site plan is deficient 19 spaces, however, given the existing mix of land uses and 
business hours, staff believes the proposed parking would adequately serve the site. The most 
intensive parking demand will be created by the restaurant uses, Addison Point and Toasted Yolk 
Café. The two restaurants have different peak hours as Addison Point primarily serves lunch and 
dinner, while the Toasted Yolk Café specializes in breakfast items. 

In addition to the parking alterations, major improvements have been made to the drive aisles and 
access. In its current condition, the parking spaces and drive aisles do not meet the minimum 
requirements and could not support the maneuvers necessary for a fire engine to navigate the 
site. The proposed parking lot improvements will improve the functionality and safety of the site.

When the Unified Development Code is adopted, it is anticipated that this site configuration will 
fully comply with the Town’s parking requirements. If any change in occupancy occurs at the retail 
space (FedEx) in the interim, a use that requires less parking would be required for the Town to 
approve re-occupancy of that space. 

Exterior Facades: The façade plans reflect modifications to the primary façade, facing Belt Line 
Road, with the addition of three bays of floor to ceiling windows and two new entrances for the 
restaurant and patio. The applicant is also proposing a 632 square foot dining patio along the 
front façade. The patio is not proposed to be covered by a permanent structure. The applicant is 
also proposing a solid waste enclosure at the southeast corner of the site. There currently is no 
solid waste enclosure provided. The existing material palette will remain the same on the exterior 
of the structure.  

Landscaping and Open Space: Since this property was developed in the late 1970s, it is far below 
the current landscaping requirements. The proposed plan provides more than double the amount 
of total landscaped area. While this is still well below the 20% required, it is a substantial 
improvement. The plan also does not meet the twenty-foot street landscape buffer standard but 
was able to increase the current buffer from 3-feet to 11-feet. All plant material requirements, 
including interior parking lot landscaping and screening, are met.

There is an existing five-foot sidewalk located immediately at the back of curb along Belt Line 
Road. Staff worked with the applicant in effort to provide a landscape buffer between the curb and 
sidewalk, however, this would have significantly reduced the number of parking spaces on site. 



3

Unfortunately, absent a complete redevelopment of this site, it would be impossible to comply 
with the current standards. Staff has worked with the applicant to maximize the amount of 
landscaping provided within the site without detrimentally impacting other site features. Staff 
believes that the proposed landscaping gets the property as close as possible to current 
requirements under the existing site configuration. 

RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL WITH CONDITIONS

Staff supports the reinvestment efforts in the existing multitenant building to bring the site closer 
into compliance with Town regulations. The Toasted Yolk Café will significantly enhance this 
prominently situated retail center. While the applicant is unable to meet all requirements, this 
application has significantly improved the existing nonconformities on the site. 

Staff recommends approval of these requests, subject to the following condition:

 The applicants shall not use any terms or graphic depictions that relate to alcoholic 
beverages in any exterior signage.

 Upon approval of a Certificate of Occupancy (CO) for Toasted Yolk, SUP Ordinance No. 
O20-02 (Remington’s) shall be repealed. 

 If any change in occupancy occurs at the retail space (FedEx) prior to the adoption of the 
UDC, a use that requires less parking would be required for the Town to approve re-
occupancy of that space.



7

7

6

5

BELTWOOD BUSINESS PARK
BLOCK A, TRACT 1

THIRD INSTALLMENT
1.274 ACRES

BELTWAY OFFICE PARK
TRACT 1

2.208 ACRES

BELTWOOD BUSINESS PARK
BLOCK A, TRACT 1

THIRD INSTALLMENT
2.0648 ACRES

5

LEFT
TURN
ONLY

LEF
T

TUR
N

ON
LY

RIGHT
TURN
ONLY

ã
  

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

NOTES:

 CONCEPT PLAN
BLOCK A, TR 1

BELTWOOD BUSINESS PARK
THIRD INSTALLMENT

CASE #1853-SUP

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVERED EXTERIOR WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' BUILDING SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING LANDSCAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING LANDSCAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING LANDSCAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING LANDSCAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELTLINE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELTWOOD PARKWAY EAST 

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVERED EXTERIOR WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89°36'00" W   222.23'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 69°56'45" E   220.70'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00°24'00" E   250.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°03'00" W   251.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ONE STORY BRICK/MASONRY RETAIL/RESTAURANT BUILDING NO. 4580 BELTLINE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' BUILDING SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
Vault

AutoCAD SHX Text
Vault

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF ADDISON 8' STORM SEWER ESMT. VOL. 73242, PG. 2494

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITIES EASEMENT (FOR UNDERGROUND USE ONLY) (VOL. 73242, PG. 2026

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TPAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMB

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAMP TO GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TOASTED YOLK CAFE:)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATIO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAMP TO GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
632 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
3,961 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDISON POINT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
3990 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEDEX:

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
5900 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW TENANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED RELOCATION OF SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PARKING & ADA SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED TOASTED YOLK DUMPSTER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ADJACENT PARKING SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING LEFT TURN LANE &  MEDIAN OPENING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. WATER METERS. WILL NEED TO FIELD VERIFY TYPES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. WATER METER. WILL NEED TO FIELD VERIFY TYPE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCEPT PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEFORE YOU DIG

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
IV

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SN

AutoCAD SHX Text
Power Pole

AutoCAD SHX Text
Guy Wire

AutoCAD SHX Text
Manhole

AutoCAD SHX Text
Water Valve

AutoCAD SHX Text
Telephone Pedestal

AutoCAD SHX Text
Water Meter

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fire Hydrant

AutoCAD SHX Text
Light Pole

AutoCAD SHX Text
Irrigation Valve

AutoCAD SHX Text
Clean Out

AutoCAD SHX Text
Air Conditioner

AutoCAD SHX Text
Cable Box

AutoCAD SHX Text
Signal Box

AutoCAD SHX Text
Signal Pole

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sign

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
TF

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GMK

AutoCAD SHX Text
TSN

AutoCAD SHX Text
UGC

AutoCAD SHX Text
EB

AutoCAD SHX Text
EM

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIRS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Iron Rod Set w/ cap "WAI"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Electric Meter

AutoCAD SHX Text
Electric Box

AutoCAD SHX Text
Underground Cable Marker

AutoCAD SHX Text
Traffic Sign

AutoCAD SHX Text
Gas Marker

AutoCAD SHX Text
Gas Meter

AutoCAD SHX Text
Transformer pad

AutoCAD SHX Text
Storm Sewer

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sanitary Sewer

AutoCAD SHX Text
Iron Rod Set

AutoCAD SHX Text
Iron Rod Found

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
Iron Rod Found w/ cap

AutoCAD SHX Text
XCS

AutoCAD SHX Text
"X" Cut in Concrete Set

AutoCAD SHX Text
XCF

AutoCAD SHX Text
"X" Cut in Concrete Found

AutoCAD SHX Text
PKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PK Nail Set

AutoCAD SHX Text
PKF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PK Nail Found

AutoCAD SHX Text
ABBREVIATION LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Control Monument

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
(972) 490-7090

AutoCAD SHX Text
(972) 490-7099 FAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
DALLAS, TEXAS    75230

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
6750 HILLCREST PLAZA DRIVE, SUITE 215

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Winkelmann

AutoCAD SHX Text
&  Associates, Inc.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Texas Engineers Registration No. 89 Texas Surveyors Registration No. 100866-00 COPYRIGHT ã  2022, Winkelmann & Associates, Inc.2022, Winkelmann & Associates, Inc.

AutoCAD SHX Text
G:\816\01\ENGINEERING\Preliminary Plans\81601- SITE.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
81601

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAST SAVED BY: CGUIJOSA August 12, 2022CGUIJOSA August 12, 2022 August 12, 2022August 12, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOASTED YOLK 4580 BELT LINE ROAD ADDISON, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELT LINE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWAY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARAPAHO ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDISON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
E. BELTWOOD PARKWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
INWOOD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELTWAY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. TYPICAL PARKING SPACES ARE 9'x18'  UNLESS OTHERWISE TYPICAL PARKING SPACES ARE 9'x18'  UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. 2. DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF CURB UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF CURB UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. FACE OF CURB UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.  OF CURB UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. 3. ALL PROPOSED RADII ARE 2' UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. ALL PROPOSED RADII ARE 2' UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. 4. EXISTING ITEMS TO BE DEMOLISHED WITH THE NEW SITE EXISTING ITEMS TO BE DEMOLISHED WITH THE NEW SITE LAYOUT ARE NOT SHOWN ON THIS PLAN. 5. THERE ARE NO EXISTING FLOODPLAINS, DRAINAGE WAYS OR THERE ARE NO EXISTING FLOODPLAINS, DRAINAGE WAYS OR CREEKS WITHIN THE AREA OF THIS PLAN. 6. REFER TO LANDSCAPE PLANS FOR MORE INFORMATION. REFER TO LANDSCAPE PLANS FOR MORE INFORMATION. 7. ALL SIGNAGE IS SUBJECT TO TOWN APPROVAL.ALL SIGNAGE IS SUBJECT TO TOWN APPROVAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.12.2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEING 1.274 ACRES IN THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS ADDISON PROJECT NUMBER:  DATE PREPARED: AUGUST 12, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FIRE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADING LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONTOURS

AutoCAD SHX Text
629





OFFICE

WALK-IN
FREEZER

COOKLINE

DINING 

SCULLERY

WOMEN'S
RESTROOMS

MEN'S
RESTROOMS

DINING 

WAITING
AREA

PATIO

MAIN
ENTRANCE

BAR
DINING BAR

EXPO

PREP DRY
STORAGE

BEVERAGE
STATION

RECEIVING

WALK-IN
COOLER

RESTROOM
VESTIBULE

 FLOOR PLAN

A1.0

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

PROJECT NUMBER:

TYC22004

DESCRIPTION

DESCRIPTIONDATE

DATE

CORPORATE:

06/28/2022

CL
IE

N
T:

TH
E 

TO
AS

TE
D 

YO
LK

 C
AF

E 
- 

AD
DI

SO
N

, 
TX

A
D

D
IS

O
N

, 
TX

45
80

 B
EL

TL
IN

E 
RO

AD
AD

DI
SO

N
, 

TX
 7

50
01

H
3R

1,
 L

LC
.

CO
N

TA
CT

: 
RE

X 
H

EC
KL

EM
A

N

CORPORATE:

THE TOASTED YOLK CAFE, LLC
20008 CHAMPIONS DR. SUITE 301
SPRING, TX 77379
CLIENT: REX HECKLEMAN

--

62
01

 C
AM

PU
S 

CI
RC

LE
 D

RI
VE

  E
IR

VI
NG

, T
EX

AS
 7

50
63

TE
L:

 9
72

.8
70

.1
28

8

NOT FOR
REGULATORY

APPROVAL, PERMITTING OR
CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY FOR REVIEW ONLY.
THIS DOCUMENT IS RELEASED FOR THE

PURPOSE OF DESIGN DEVELOPMENT  AND
PRICING. THEY WERE PREPARED BY OR

UNDER THE AUTHORITY OF
RUSTY A. RIDGE  LICENSE #24990.

IT IS NOT TO BE USED FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

SEATING COUNT
INTERIOR

PATIO

ADA ACCESSIBLE FURNISHING NOTES

SECTION 1005 - MEANS OF EGRESS SIZING CALC.
AREA OCCUPANTS FACTOR TOTAL REQ'D TOTAL

PROVIDED

LEGEND

IBC SECTION 1004 - OCCUPANCY LOAD CALC.

AREA

SQUARE
FOOTAGE

OR
LENGTH

OCCUPANT LOAD
FACTOR

OCCUPANCY
AMOUNT

BUILDING DATA

EXIT OCCUPANCY LOADS
DOOR  # EGRESS WIDTH PROVIDED OCCUPANCY LOAD

EGRESS LAYOUT NOTES

H.C. SEATING REQUIRED

1FLOOR PLAN
1/4"=1'-0"

N

TRUE
NORTH

N

PLAN
NORTH



6201 CAMPUS CIRCLE DR E
IRVING, TX 75063    972.870.1288 O#    

Addison, TX

The Toasted Yolk Café
Patio rendering revision



Exterior Perspective View
2



Exterior Perspective View
3



Exterior Elevation-Front
4



Exterior Elevation-Side
5



Exterior Elevation-Rear
6



May 26, 2022 
 
Ken Schmidt, Director of Development Services 
Town of Addison 
16801 Westgrove 
Addison TX 75001 
 
 
Re: Project Description, The Toasted Yolk Café, 4580 Belt Line Rd. 
 
The Location 
The Toasted Yolk Café is leasing 3,961 square feet at 4580 Belt Line Road, the former Remington's 
Seafood Grill, from AFS Beltline, who has owned the property since 1998 and has maintained 
during that entire period the same stable set of tenants, until, sadly, Remington's was forced to 
close early last year, a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. The Toasted Yolk Café, especially in light 
of the arrival of the Silver Line train service and the just announced neighboring transit project, 
is excited about capitalizing on Addison’s new energy. The Toasted Yolk Café, just now breaking 
into the DFW market, believes this location is a prime opportunity for a quality breakfast/lunch 
concept. 
 
The Look & Feel 
With a newly remodeled exterior, The Toasted Yolk Café will present an attractive appearance 
with its bright yellow signage and inviting patio. As shown on the renderings, the building’s south 
and east concrete walls will be opened up with a new expansive glass storefront, a similar look 
as the neighboring FedEx space. The new storefront will not only modernize the building façade, 
it will also open up the interior to the street and brighten the interior with an abundance of 
natural light. 
 
The Site 
Beyond the four walls of the restaurant, the parking lot will be reconfigured to allow for the 
addition of several new generous planting areas: deeper landscape areas along Belt Line Road, 
four new islands, and enhanced planting areas at the entrances. There will be a total of eight new 
trees added property. One of the interior planting islands will allow for an increased radius for 
the fire lane. Additionally, a new dumpster screen will be added discretely behind the new patio 
area. To accomplish all these improvements there will be a net loss of just nine parking spaces.  
 
The Company  
This Toasted Yolk Café is owned and will be operated by an experienced operator who has 
assembled a well-seasoned team, who have a collective restaurant tenure/ownership in excess 
of 70 years with well-established operations, including Luby's Cafeteria and Wingstop. This team 
is perfectly positioned to create a stable, responsible, and responsive addition to the Addison 
restaurant experience. Our team is eager and excited about the opportunity to enter this thriving 
marketplace. 
 



Operations 
Operating seven days a week from 7 AM until 3 PM, The Toasted Yolk Café will offer a broad 
range of breakfast and lunch menu options, including both traditional and its signature items, 
complemented by a full bar.  

The Toasted Yolk Café will employ, overall, approximately 27 team members. 

Kitchen deliveries are anticipated to be six days per week through the rear kitchen door. 

 
The Toasted Yolk Café 
Rex Heckelman 
 
AFS Beltline 
Mark Albert 



   
Planning & Zoning Commission 6.           
Meeting Date: 08/16/2022  

Agenda Caption:
Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a 
Recommendation regarding an Ordinance Approving a Special Use Permit
(SUP) for Property Located at 3855 Belt Line Road that is currently zoned
Planned Development (PD), Ordinance No. 094-037, to allow a Restaurant.
Case 1854-SUP/3855 Belt Line Road (La Pasha).

Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval of this request with the following conditions:
  

Operating hours that result in venue closure at 12 am, Sunday –
Wednesday, and 2 am, Thursday – Saturday.
Prohibition on the use of speakers/sound systems and live music on the
patio any time after 10 pm.
Prohibition on the use of BYOB service.

Attachments
1854-SUP Staff Report 
1854-SUP Plans 
1854-SUP Letter of Intent 



1854-SUP 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING Case 1854-SUP/3855 Belt Line Road (La Pasha). Hold a Public 
Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Recommendation regarding an 
Ordinance Approving a Special Use Permit (SUP) for Property Located at 3855 Belt Line 
Road that is currently zoned Planned Development (PD), Ordinance No. 094-037, to allow 
a Restaurant. 
 

LOCATION MAP 

 

 



August 16, 2022

STAFF REPORT

RE: 1854-SUP/La Pasha

LOCATION: 3855 Belt Line Road

REQUEST: Approval of a Special Use Permit for a restaurant

APPLICANT: Kenieth LaForest, Heights Venture Architecture & 

Design

DISCUSSION: 

Background: The subject property is located at 3855 Belt Line Road, which is north of Belt Line 
Road, between Business Avenue and Commercial Drive. The site was developed in the mid-
1990’s as a 12,552 square foot restaurant. The restaurant included 9,332 square feet indoors and 
a 3,220 square foot patio at the south end of the building. The subject property is zoned Planned 
Development (PD), Ordinance No. 092-037, which was later amended by Ordinance No. 094-066 
to allow a bowling alley as a permitted use. Adjacent businesses include the Hawaiian Bros Island 
Grill to the west and Al-Amir to the east.

This location was previously the site for Los Lupes Addison and prior to that was a Joe’s Crab 
Shack. Both restaurants utilized SUP, Ordinance No. 094-044, which permitted a restaurant and 
the sale of alcohol for on-premises consumption. The applicant, La Pasha Lounge and Grill, is 
proposing to use the existing site for a restaurant with modifications to expand the patio dining 
area. The proposed restaurant requires a new SUP due to the proposed building alterations and 
patio expansion. 

La Pasha Lounge and Grill is a full-service restaurant specializing in Mediterranean cuisine and 
handcrafted drinks, smoothies, coffees, and teas. Hookah is also proposed to be available. No 
alcohol is proposed to be served. Indoor and outdoor seating will be provided. The applicant has 
indicated a complementary play area will be provided to promote a family-friendly experience. La 
Pasha currently has one location operating in Houston, TX (opened May 2020), the Addison 
location would be La Pasha’s second restaurant. The proposed operating hours for the Addison 
location will vary by weekday; Monday-Wednesday: 11:00 am – 1:00 am, Thursday and Sunday: 
11:00 am – 2:00 am, Friday and Saturday: 11:00 am – 3:00 am. 

Proposed Plan: With this request, La Pasha proposes to modify the existing structure to decrease 
the amount of indoor dining area from 9,332 to 6,987 square feet and increase the covered patio 
area from 3,220 to 4,940 square feet. This will decrease the overall square footage of the structure 
from 12,552 to 11,928 square feet. Improvements to the site include façade updates, a new solid 
waste enclosure, increased landscaping, and parking lot modifications. The proposed restaurant 
provides seating for 209 individuals (105 indoor and 104 patio seats). The patio space is proposed 
to include a play area with limited equipment to promote a family-friendly environment. The interior 

https://library.municode.com/tx/addison/munidocs/munidocs?nodeId=2503bb4425dd2
https://gis.addisontx.gov/GIS_Documents/Ordinances/1994/094-066%20-%201994.pdf
https://gis.addisontx.gov/GIS_Documents/Ordinances/1994/094-044%20-%201994.pdf
https://www.lapashalounge.com/


2

floor plan is predominately comprised of kitchen, service, and circulation areas, with table, booth, 
and bar seating in the dining area. 

Given the existing site constraints, there was a challenge to achieve a balance of improvements 
without detrimentally impacting the economic viability of the property. 

Parking: The site currently has 132 parking spaces, including 4 accessible spaces. Due to 
proposed alterations, 3 parking spaces are to be removed. This results in 129 parking spaces 
remaining on site. Since this business is a freestanding restaurant, the ratio of 1 space per 70 
square feet applies. The proposed 11,928 square foot structure would require 171 parking 
spaces.

When the SUP for a restaurant was approved in 1994, it appears that the parking ratio of 1 space 
per 70 square feet was applied to the interior dining area only and did not include the patio. The 
current practice of the Town is to include both indoor and outdoor dining areas within the parking 
ratio. This resulted in a significant parking shortage for the current proposal. Staff also believes 
that an additional parking reduction occurred since 1994 to accommodate updated parking 
standards to the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Standards for Accessible Design. Staff 
cannot confirm this conclusion as a permit is not required for parking lot striping. 

The proposed site plan is deficient 42 spaces of the 171 space requirement, however, given that 
this site has operated as a restaurant since 1994 and has not had parking difficulties, staff believes 
the proposed parking would adequately serve the site. 

Major improvements are proposed to the drive aisles, access, and parking lot landscaping. In its 
current condition, the fire lane could not support the maneuvers necessary for a fire engine to 
navigate the site. The proposed parking lot improvements will improve the functionality and safety 
of the site. 

Exterior Facades: The façade plans reflect modifications to the building façade, including changes 
to the color scheme (painted white brick), the replacement of windows, and the expansion and 
screening of the patio. The applicant is proposing the 4,940 square foot patio along the Belt Line 
Road frontage. The patio is proposed to be covered partially with a permanent roof and partially 
with a retractable awning system (white in color) and a new privacy screening fence along the 
patio edge (constructed of composite decking). Updated guardrails at building access points are 
proposed to match the patio screening fence. A solid waste enclosure is located at the northwest 
corner of the building, screening from the public rights-of-way. It will be constructed of brick and 
composite decking to match the material palette of the restaurant. 

Landscaping and Open Space: Since this property was developed in the mid-1990s, it is far below 
the current landscaping requirements. The proposed plan provides a significant increase in the 
total amount of landscaped area. While the provided 18.2% does not achieve the 20% required, 
it is a substantial improvement. The plan also does meet the twenty-foot street landscape buffer 
standard. Nearly all plant material requirements, including interior parking lot landscaping and 
screening, are met. The site is deficient twelve trees along the north and west property line due 
to parking constraints. 

There is an existing seven-foot sidewalk located immediately at the back of curb along Belt Line 
Road. The applicant has proposed add an eight-foot concrete sidewalk and to relocate the 
sidewalk to provide a 16-foot landscape buffer between the curb and sidewalk. In addition to the 
sidewalk, the applicant is significantly increasing the landscaping along the Belt Line Road 



3

frontage with five trees and various shrubs and will provide a pedestrian connection to the 
restaurant patio. 

Unfortunately, absent a complete redevelopment of this site, it would be impossible to comply 
with the current standards. Staff has worked with the applicant to maximize the amount of 
landscaping provided within the site without detrimentally impacting other site features. Staff 
believes that the proposed landscaping gets the property as close as possible to current 
requirements under the existing site configuration. 

RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL WITH CONDITIONS

Staff supports the reinvestment efforts to bring the site closer into compliance with Town 
regulations. La Pasha will be a unique addition to the existing restaurant base along Belt Line 
Road. While the applicant is unable to meet all requirements, this application has significantly 
improved the existing nonconformities on the site. 

Staff recommends approval of this request with the following conditions:

 Operating hours that result in venue closure at 12 am, Sunday – Wednesday, and 2 am, 
Thursday – Saturday.

 Prohibition on the use of speakers/sound systems and live music on the patio any time 
after 10 pm.

 Prohibition on the use of BYOB service.



FL

FL

FL

FL

FL

FL
FL

FL
FL

FESS DFW HOLDINGS
BELTLINE MARSH BUSINESS PARK

BLOCK 3, LOT B
1.925 ACRES

MOHAMMED JETPURI
& YASIN FARIDA

BELTLINE MARSH
BUSINESS PARK
BLOCK 3, LOT C

1.928 ACRES

WI BELT LINE LLC
BELTLINE MARSH BUSINESS PARK

BLOCK 3, LOT A
1.568 ACRES

ISTAR BOWLING CENTER 1 LP
BELTLINE MARSH BUSINESS PARK

BLOCK 3, LOT D
4.287 ACRES

FL
FL

FL
FL

FL
FL

FL

FL

FL

FLFLFLFLFLFLFL

FL

FL

FL
FL

FL
FL

FL

FLFLFLFLFLFLFLFL
FL

FL FL FL

FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL

FL
FL

FL

FL

FL FL FL FL FL FL

FL

FL
FL

FL

FLFLFLFLFL

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

D

D

SS SS SS SSS

W

W
W

W

W W W W W W W

BELT LIN
E R

O
AD

N
90

°0
0'

00
"E

58
.3

3'
S8

6°
51

'2
7"

E
40

.2
5'

S88°54'22"E
69.36'

N0°17'02"E 178.30'
N90°00'00"E

4.42'

N0°00'00"E 287.77'

N
90

°0
0'

00
"W

18
7.

74
'

S0°00'00"E 277.86'

N90°00'00"E
14.58'S0°00'00"E 184.68'

EX.
9' TYP.

EX. 16' TYP.

EX. 27' FIR
E LAN

E

120' RIGHT OF WAY

585

58
3

584

58
5

58
5

586

58
6

587

587

588

58
8

58
5

58
4

58
6

EX. LA EX. LA EX. LA EX. LA

EX.
LA

EX. LA EX. LAEX. LAEX. LA

EX. LA

PROPOSED 11,928
SQ FT SINGLE
RESTAURANT

4

4

16

18 9 18

17 6

17

614

EX. 36.8'' THROAT DEPTH

EX. 149' TO
 AD

JAC
EN

T D
R

IVEW
AY

EX. 209' TO
 AD

JAC
EN

T D
R

IVEW
AY

EXISTING TREE WELL
TO BE REMOVED

HANDRAILS TO BE
INSTALLED ON

EXISTING RAMP

INSTALL
CURB AND

GUTTER

PROPOSED
DUMPSTER
ENCLOSURE

PROPOSED
RAMP

LA

INSTALL CURB
AND GUTTER INSTALL

CURB AND
GUTTER

INSTALL CURB
AND GUTTER

INSTALL CURB
AND GUTTER

EXISTING 24'
ACCESS
EASEMENT

EXISTING 12'
UTILITY EASEMENT

EXISTING ACCESS
EASEMENT

EXISTING 24'
FIRELANE EASEMENT

VISIBILITY TRIANGLE

VISIBILITY
TRIANGLE

EXISTING
GREASE

TRAP

EXISTING
DOMESTIC AND

IRRIGATION
METERS

EXISTING
MONUMENT
SIGN TO BE
REMOVED

PROPOSED 8' CONCRETE
SIDEWALK WITHIN PROPOSED

PEDESTRIAN EASEMENT

AASHTO
REGULATED

VISIBILITY
TRIANGLE

AASHTO
REGULATED

VISIBILITY
TRIANGLE

PAVEMENT TO
BE REMOVED
AND REPAVED
AS FIRE LANE

PROPOSED FIRE
HYDRANT

EXISTING 6"
FIRE LINE TO

BUILDING

EXISTING FIRE
HYDRANT

Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

ts
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

ns
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 a
s 

an
 in

st
ru

m
en

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
, i

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 o

nl
y 

fo
r t

he
 s

pe
ci

fic
 p

ur
po

se
 a

nd
 c

lie
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 it
 w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d.

 R
eu

se
 o

f a
nd

 im
pr

op
er

 re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t w

ith
ou

t w
rit

te
n 

au
th

or
iz

at
io

n 
an

d 
ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

by
 K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

As
so

ci
at

es
, I

nc
. s

ha
ll 

be
 w

ith
ou

t l
ia

bi
lit

y 
to

 K
im

le
y-

H
or

n 
an

d 
As

so
ci

at
es

, I
nc

.

BY

D
AT

E

AS
 S

H
O

W
N

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

N
o.

D
AT

E

SHEET NUMBER

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y

SC
AL

E

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

KH
A 

PR
O

JE
C

T

26
0 

EA
ST

 D
AV

IS
 S

TR
EE

T,
 S

U
IT

E 
10

0,
 M

C
KI

N
N

EY
, T

X 
75

06
9

PH
O

N
E:

 4
69

-3
01

-2
58

0 
 F

AX
: 9

72
-2

39
-3

82
0

W
W

W
.K

IM
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
.C

O
M

  T
X 

F-
92

8

ST ST  M
D

LA
ST

 S
AV

ED
8/

5/
20

22
 2

:3
5 

PM
PL

O
TT

ED
 B

Y
TU

TT
, S

TE
PH

AN
IE 8

/5
/2

02
2 

2:
36

 P
M

D
W

G
 P

AT
H

K:
\M

KN
_C

IV
IL

\0
61

27
65

11
-L

A 
PA

SH
A 

R
EM

O
D

EL
 A

D
D

IS
O

N
\C

AD
\P

LA
N

SH
EE

TS
D

W
G

 N
AM

E
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

.D
W

G , 
 [ 2

23
4 ]

IM
AG

ES
   

   
   

   
   

  L
BC

-L
aP

as
ha

-lo
go

-7
34

57
1 

 : 
 s

na
zz

y-
im

ag
e 

(1
2)

  :
  V

ic
in

ity
 M

ap
  :

  l
ol

g 
 : 

 E
PS

G
22

76
_D

at
e2

02
20

52
6_

La
t3

2.
95

27
06

_L
on

-9
6.

85
13

46
_M

pp
0.

29
9 

 : 
 E

PS
G

22
76

_D
at

e2
02

20
52

6_
La

t3
2.

95
38

13
_L

on
-9

6.
85

04
72

_M
pp

0.
07

5 
 :

XR
EF

S 
   

   
   

   
   

 x
St

rm
  :

  x
Su

rv
  :

  x
U

til
  :

  x
Br

dr
  :

  x
Si

te
  :

  x
Ae

ria
l  

:  
xH

tc
h

06
12

76
51

1

LA
 P

AS
H

A
AD

D
IS

O
N

AD
D

IS
O

N
, T

X

©
 2

02
2 

KI
M

LE
Y-

H
O

R
N

 A
N

D
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
S,

 IN
C

.

JU
N

E 
20

22

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Engineer

P.E. No. Date

MICHAEL T. DOGGETT
98628

Not for construction, bidding, or
permit purposes.

 JUNE 2022

SUP-1

SP
EC

IA
L 

U
SE

PE
R

M
IT

 E
XH

IB
IT

00 20' 40'

GRAPHIC SCALE 20'

TYP TYPICAL

WATER EASEMENTWE

SANITARY SEWER EASEMENTSSE
NUMBER OF PARKING SPACESX

FH

ACCESSIBLE PARKING SYMBOL

BARRIER FREE RAMP (BFR)

EXISTING CONTOUR - MAJOR

EXISTING CONTOUR - MINOR

DRAINAGE EASEMENTDE

BARRIER FREE RAMPBFR

SIDEWALKSW

CURB INLETCI

LEGEND

FIRE HYDRANT

FDC FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION

EXISTINGEX

PROPOSEDPROP.

EXISTING FIRE LANE

PROPOSED BUILDING

BUILDING LINE/SETBACKBL

WM

WYE INLETWI

MANHOLEMH

TRANSFORMER PAD

GRATE INLETGI

JUNCTION BOXJB

T

S SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

CURB INLET
GRATE INLET

HEADWALL
JUNCTION BOX OR WYE INLET

WATER METER (AND VAULT) 

FL

FL EXISTING FIRE LANE STRIPING

PROPOSED FIRE LANE STRIPING

FL

FL

PROPOSED PAVEMENT

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

PROPERTY ID: 100021000300B0000 ZIP CODE:75001

PROJECT LOCATION

CONCEPT PLAN
CASE#1854-SUP

BLK 3, LT B
BELTLINE & MARSH BUSINESS PARK

REPLAT
±1.925 ACRES

3855 Belt Line Road, Addison, TX 75001
Town of Addison, Dallas County, Texas

Submitted: 06/17/2022
Resubmitted: 07/28/2022
Resubmitted: 08/09/2022

ARCHITECT:
Heights Venture, LLC
5741 Legacy Drive, Suite 320
Plano, Texas 75024
Phone: 281-854-6135
Contact: Robert Holton

ENGINEER:
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.
260 East Davis Street, Suite 100
McKinney, Texas 75069
Tel. No. 469-301-2580
Contact: Michael T. Doggett, P.E.

OWNER:
Fess DFW Holdings, LLC
10190 Katy Freeway, Suite 350
Houston, Texas 77043
Phone: 832-638-2305
Contact: Saad Jawad

FLOODPLAIN NOTE:
ACCORDING TO FIRM PANEL 48113C0180K, EFFECTIVE DATE July
7, 2014, OBTAINED ON JUNE 8, 2022, THE SITE IS WITHIN 0.2%
ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD HAZARD, AREAS OF 1% ANNUAL
CHANCE FLOOD WITH AVERAGE DEPTH LESS THAN ONE FOOT
OR WITH DRAINAGE AREAS OF LESS THAN ONE SQUARE MILE

NOTES:
1. ALL BEARINGS AND DISTANCES SHOWN ON THE

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT SITE PLAN EXHIBIT ARE
APPROXIMATE.

2. EXISTING TOPOGRAPHIC CONTOURS ARE SOURCED
FROM LIDAR DATA. NO TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY WAS
PREPARED FOR THIS SITE PLAN.

3. PROPOSED WALL SIGN TO BE MOUNTED TO PRIVACY
FENCE ON PATIO. SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR
DETAILS



FL
FL

FL
FL

FL
FL

FL

FL

FL

FLFLFLFLFLFLFL

FL

FL

FL
FL

FL
FL

FL

FLFLFLFLFLFLFLFL
FL

FL FL FL

FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL

FL
FL

FL

FL

FL FL FL FL FL FL

FL

FL
FL

FL

FLFLFLFLFL

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS

D

D

SS SS SS SSS

W

W
W

W

W W W W W W W

FL

FL

FL

FL

FL

FL
FL

FL
FL

Mulch To Match
Existing Planting Beds

Existing Landscape
To Remain

Existing Landscape
To Remain

Existing Landscape
To Remain Existing Landscape

To Remain

Existing Landscape
To Remain

Existing Landscape
To RemainExisting Landscape

To Remain

Existing Light Pole
To Remain

Existing Light Pole
To Remain

Existing Light Pole
To Remain

Existing Light Pole
To Remain

Existing Light Pole
To Remain

Existing Light Pole
To Remain

Existing Light Pole
To Remain

Existing Light Pole
To Remain

Existing Transformer
To Remain

Existing Tree
To Remain, Typ

Existing Tree
To Remain, Typ

Existing Landscape
To Remain

Existing Landscape
To Remain

Existing Landscape
To Remain

Existing Landscape
To Remain

CO

CO

CO

CO

CO

SL

SL

SL

SL

SL SL

SL
SL

SL SL

SL

SL

SLSLSL

DP

DP

DP TP TP TP

TP

TP

TP

TP

TP

TP

TP TP TP

TPTPTPTPTP

PP

PP

PP

PP PPPC

PC
PC

PC

DP

DP

CO

CO

VAM Triangles

VAM Triangles

Mulch To Match
Existing Planting Beds

Mulch To Match
Existing Planting Beds

Mulch To Match
Existing Planting Beds

SL

LO

LO

CE

CP

CP

CP

LE LELELELELE

CECECECE CE

Existing Tree
To Remain, Typ

44 43 42

41

40 39 38 32

31
30

29

28

27

26

25

24

23

22
21

20

19

18

16

15

14

13
12

111098
76

5

4

3

21

48
47

46 45

49 50 51 52

SOD

SOD

SOD

33

31

35

36

37

Proposed Single
Story Building

Belt Line R
oad

SOD

SOD

17

Existing Fire HydrantAASHTO Triangles

AASHTO Triangles

Existing Sign To
Be Removed

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL ROOT BARRIERS NEAR ALL NEWLY-PLANTED
TREES THAT ARE LOCATED WITHIN FIVE (5) FEET OF PAVING OR CURBS.  ROOT
BARRIERS SHALL BE "CENTURY" OR "DEEP-ROOT" 24" DEEP PANELS (OR EQUAL).
BARRIERS SHALL BE LOCATED IMMEDIATELY ADJACENT TO HARDSCAPE.  INSTALL
PANELS PER MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS.  UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES
SHALL THE CONTRACTOR USE ROOT BARRIERS OF A TYPE THAT COMPLETELY
ENCIRCLE THE ROOTBALL.

ROOT BARRIERS

MULCHES
AFTER ALL PLANTING IS COMPLETE, CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL 2" LAYER OF
DOUBLE SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH, NATURAL (UNDYED), IN ALL PLANTING
AREAS (EXCEPT FOR TURF AREAS).  ABSOLUTELY NO EXPOSED GROUND SHALL BE
LEFT SHOWING ANYWHERE ON THE PROJECT AFTER MULCH HAS BEEN INSTALLED
(SUBJECT TO THE CONDITIONS AND REQUIREMENTS OF THE "GENERAL GRADING AND
PLANTING NOTES" AND SPECIFICATIONS).

GENERAL PLANTING NOTES
1. BY SUBMITTING A PROPOSAL FOR THE LANDSCAPE PLANTING SCOPE OF WORK, THE CONTRACTOR

CONFIRMS THAT HE HAS READ, AND WILL COMPLY WITH, THE ASSOCIATED NOTES, SPECIFICATIONS, AND
DETAILS WITH THIS PROJECT, INCLUDING ALL APPLICABLE JURISDICTION REQUIREMENTS.

2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL EXISTING AND PROPOSED SITE ELEMENTS AND NOTIFY THE OWNER
OF ANY DISCREPANCIES.

3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL LOCATE ALL EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AND NOTIFY OWNER OF ANY
CONFLICTS. UTILITY LOCATIONS SHOWN ARE APPROXIMATE AND THE DESIGNER DOES NOT GUARANTEE
THAT LOCATIONS SHOWN ARE EXACT. CONTRACTOR SHALL EXERCISE CAUTION WHEN WORKIGN IN THE
VICINITY OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.

4. THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR REMOVING ALL EXISTING VEGETATION (EXCEPT WHERE
NOTED TO REMAIN).

5. ALL PLANT LOCATIONS ARE DIAGRAMMATIC.  ACTUAL LOCATIONS SHALL BE VERIFIED WITH THE OWNER OR
OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE PRIOR TO PLANTING.  THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL ENSURE THAT ALL
REQUIREMENTS OF THE PERMITTING AUTHORITY ARE MET (I.E., MINIMUM PLANT QUANTITIES, PLANTING
METHODS, TREE PROTECTION METHODS, ETC.).

a. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR DETERMINING PLANT QUANTITIES; PLANT
QUANTITIES SHOWN ON LEGENDS AND CALLOUTS ARE FOR GENERAL INFORMATION ONLY.  IN THE
EVENT OF A DISCREPANCY BETWEEN THE PLAN AND THE PLANT LEGEND, THE PLANT QUANTITY AS
SHOWN ON THE PLAN (FOR INDIVIDUAL SYMBOLS) OR CALLOUT (FOR GROUNDCOVER PATTERNS) SHALL
TAKE PRECEDENCE.

b. NO SUBSTITUTIONS OF PLANT MATERIALS SHALL BE ALLOWED WITHOUT THE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF
THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.  IF SOME OF THE PLANTS ARE NOT AVAILABLE, THE LANDSCAPE
CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE OWNER OR OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE IN WRITING (VIA PROPER
CHANNELS).

c. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL, AT A MINIMUM, PROVIDE REPRESENTATIVE PHOTOS OF ALL PLANTS
PROPOSED FOR THE PROJECT.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ALLOW THE OWNER OR OWNER'S
REPRESENTATIVE TO INSPECT, AND APPROVE OR REJECT, ALL PLANTS DELIVERED TO THE JOBSITE.
REFER TO SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR SUBMITTALS.

6. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN THE LANDSCAPE IN A HEALTHY CONDITION FOR 90 DAYS AFTER
ACCEPTANCE BY THE OWNER.  REFER TO SPECIFICATIONS FOR CONDITIONS OF ACCEPTANCE FOR THE
START OF THE MAINTENANCE PERIOD, AND FOR FINAL ACCEPTANCE AT THE END OF THE MAINTENANCE
PERIOD.

7. PROVIDE AND INSTALL HYDROMULCH IN ALL DISTURBED AREAS OUTSIDE OF PROPERTY LIMITS (UNLESS
SHOWN AS SOD).

8. SEE SPECIFICATIONS AND DETAILS FOR FURTHER REQUIREMENTS.

© COPYRIGHT 2022 HEIGHTS VENTURE

Project Phase:

Drawn By:

Date / Time Plotted:

Project Number:

Checked By:

HOUSTON
1111 North Loop West, Suite 800
Houston, Texas 77008
713 869 1103 V

DALLAS
5741 Legacy Drive, Suite 320

Plano, Texas 75024
972 490 7292 V

Sheet Size:

30 x 42

7/21/2022

3855 BELT LINE RD, ADDISON,
TX 75001

22007

LANDSCAPE
PLANTING PLAN

LA PASHA

SUBDIVISION NAME
BELTLINE MARSH BUSINESS PARK SUBDIVISION

BLOCK, LOT NUMBER
BLK 3 LOT B

CITY OF ADDISON PROJECT NUMBER
_______________________

PREPARATION DATE
06.17.2022

Δ DATE: ISSUE:

OWNER
FESS DFW HOLDINGS LLC
10190 KATY FRWY STE 350
HOUSTON, TX 77043
SAAD JAWAD
832.638.2305

APPLICANT
HEIGHTS VENTURE ARCHITECTS LLP
5741 LEGACY DR STE 320
PLANO, TX 75024
KENNY LAFOREST
281.854.6140

ARCHITECT
HEIGHTS VENTURE ARCHITECTS LLP
5741 LEGACY DR STE 320
PLANO, TX 75024

A.

B.

C.

D.

E.

NOTES:
THIS FACADE PLAN IS FOR CONCEPTUAL
PURPOSES ONLY. ALL BUILDING PLANS
REQUIRE REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

ALL MECHANICAL UNITS SHALL BE
SCREENED FROM PUBLIC VIEW AS
REQUIRED BY THE ZONING ORDINANCE

WHEN PERMITTED, EXPOSED UTILITY
BOXES AND CONDUITS SHALL BE PAINTED
TO MATCH THE BUILDING

ALL SIGNAGE AREAS AND LOCATIONS ARE
SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY DEVELOPMENT
SERVICES

ROOF ACCESS SHALL BE PROVIDED
INTERNALLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE
PERMITTED BY THE CHIEF BUILDING
OFFICIAL

EMS EMS

08.08.2022

(800) 680-6630
15455 Dallas Pkwy., Ste 600

Addison, TX 75001
www.EvergreenDesignGroup.com

EVERGREEN
D E S I G N    G R O U P

SYM. KEY QTY. COMMON NAME
SCIENTIFIC NAME SPREADHEIGHTSIZEROOTO.C. COMMENT

Plant Material List

In Accordance to the Current Edition of The American Standard for Nursery Stock

CO Chinquapin Oak
Quercus muhlenbergii B&B 4" cal. 12' min. 6' min. Full Canopy, Healthy, Good Form

Strong Central LeaderN/A7

TP 4' min.Texas Sabal Palm
Sabal mexicana

N/A17 Cont. 30 gal. 8' min.

DP 4' min.Dwarf Palmetto
Sabal minor

N/A Multi-trunk, Healthy, Good Form12 Cont. 30 gal. 4' min.

Strong Central Leader, Healthy,
Good Form

SL ‘Sunshine’ Ligustrum
Ligustrum sinense 'Sunshine' Cont. 5 gal. 36" min. 24" min. Full, Healthy, Even Growth251 36"

PP Purple Pixie® Dwarf Weeping Loropetalum
Loropetalum chinense 'Peack' Cont. 5 gal. 18" min. 18" min.36"85 Full, Healthy, Even Growth

18" 1 gal. 6" min. 10" min.Dwarf Plumbago
Ceratostigma plumbaginoides Cont.DP 351 sf Full, Healthy, Even Growth

PC 24"Powis Castle Artemisia
Artemisia x 'Powis Castle'1,363 sf Cont. 1 gal. 12" min. 12" min. Full, Healthy, Even Growth

- - - -Tifway 419 Hybrid Bermuda 
Cynodon 'Tifway 419' -SOD 3,436 sf Locally Available

Scale 1" = 20'

10' 40'20'0'

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

. HIH

IC
S

ST
E

R

C
CT

TE

SA

E

ET

S
TA

I
RE
G

73

OF

5 3
ET
X

E

R

LD
RE

CAANDS

M

EP A

PLEY

LP-1

LANDSCAPE CALCULATIONS
TOTAL SITE AREA: 83,853 SF
LANDSCAPE AREA REQUIRED: 16,770 SF (20% OF SITE AREA)
LANDSCAPE AREA PROVIDED: 15,254 SF (18.2% OF SITE AREA)*

* REQUIRED LANDSCAPE AREA RESTRICTED DUE TO REQUIRED FIRE LANE ACCESS REQUIREMENT AND
REQUIRED PARKING SPACES LIMITING AREA AVAILABLE FOR OPEN LANDSCAPE.

STREET BUFFER
FRONTAGE LENGTH: 167.9 LF
STREET TREES REQUIRED: 5 TREES (1 PER 30 LF OF FRONTAGE)
STREET TREES PROVIDED: 5 TREES

PARKING SCREENING N/A
PARKING IS NOT ADJACENT TO STREET FRONTAGE.

PARKING PERIMETER 5' WIDE PERIMETER
NORTH N/A
PROPERTY LINE IS <1' FROM BACK OF CURB.  EXISTING LANDSCAPE MATERIAL FROM
ADJACENT PROPERTY PROVIDES SCREENING AS REQUIRED.

EAST 466 LF
TREES REQUIRED: 13 TREES (1 TREE PER 35 LF)
TREES PROVIDED: 13 TREES  - 3 EXISTING, 10 PROPOSED

WEST 277.9 LF
TREES REQUIRED: 13 TREES (1 TREE PER 35 LF)
TREES PROVIDED: 9 TREES - EXISTING

PARKING INTERIOR 132 SPACES, 53,020 SF
LANDSCAPE AREA REQUIRED: 4,241 SF (8%)
LANDSCAPE AREA PROVIDED: 5,504 SF (10.3 %)
TREES REQUIRED: 13 TREES (1 TREE PER 10 SPACES)
TREES PROVIDED: 14 TREES - 9 EXISTING, 5 PROPOSED

M8 M8 M8 M8 M8 M8

M5

M5

M6
M5

M6
M3

CE Cedar Elm
Ulmus crassifolia B&B 4" cal. 12' min. 6' min. Full Canopy, Healthy, Good Form

Strong Central LeaderN/A6

LE - M8 Lacebark Elm
Ulmus parvifolia `Allee` B&B 8" cal. 14' min. 6' min. Full Canopy, Healthy, Good Form

Strong Central LeaderN/A6

CP - M5 Chinese Pistache
Pistacia chinensis B&B 5" cal. 12' min. 6' min. Full Canopy, Healthy, Good Form

Strong Central LeaderN/A3

LO - M6 Live Oak
Quercus virginiana B&B 6" cal. 12' min. 6' min. Full Canopy, Healthy, Good Form

Strong Central LeaderN/A2

B&B 3" cal. 12' min. 6' min. Full Canopy, Healthy, Good Form
Strong Central LeaderN/A1CP - M3 Chinese Pistache

Pistacia chinensis



PLANT SPACING
SCALE: NTSC

4

X

2X

3

2

1

5

6

7

4

1

2

3

SHRUB, PERENNIAL, OR ORNAMENTAL GRASS.

MULCH, TYPE AND DEPTH PER PLANS.  PLACE NO
MORE THAN 1" OF MULCH WITHIN 6" OF PLANT
CENTER.

FINISH GRADE.

BACKFILL.  AMEND AND FERTILIZE ONLY AS
RECOMMENDED IN SOIL FERTILITY ANALYSIS.

ROOT BALL.

UNDISTURBED NATIVE SOIL.

3" HIGH EARTHEN WATERING BASIN.

5

6

7

SHRUB AND GROUNDCOVER PLANTING
SCALE: NTSB

8 WEED FABRIC UNDER MULCH.

8

PLANTING SPECIFICATIONS

FINISH GRADE.4

4

3

2

1

NOTES:
1) INSTALL EDGING SO THAT STAKES WILL BE ON INSIDE OF PLANTING BED.
2) BOTTOM OF EDGING SHALL BE BURIED A MINIMUM OF 1" BELOW FINISH GRADE.
3) TOP OF MULCH SHALL BE 1" LOWER THAN TOP OF EDGING.

MULCH, TYPE AND DEPTH PER PLANS.3

TAPERED STEEL STAKES.2

ROLLED-TOP STEEL EDGING PER PLANS.1

D SCALE: NOT TO SCALE

STEEL EDGING

TURF (WHERE SHOWN ON PLAN).4

PLANT.3

MULCH LAYER.2

CURB.1

1 432

OF MATURE CANOPY
24" MIN. TO EDGE

DISTANCE PER PLAN

E SCALE: NOT TO SCALE

PLANTING AT PARKING AREA

TREE PLANTING
SCALE: NOT TO SCALEA

PLANT CENTER (TYP.)

EQ
U

AL

EQUAL

EQ
UA

L

EDGE OF PLANTING AREA

EQUAL

NOTE:  ALL PLANTS SHALL BE PLANTED AT EQUAL TRIANGULAR SPACING (EXCEPT WHERE SHOWN ON PLANS AS
INFORMAL GROUPINGS).  REFER TO PLANT LEGEND FOR SPACING DISTANCE BETWEEN PLANTS.

1)  STEP 1: DETERMINE TOTAL PLANTS  FOR THE AREA WITH THE FOLLOWING FORMULA:
TOTAL AREA / AREA DIVIDER = TOTAL PLANTS

PLANT SPACING AREA DIVIDER PLANT SPACING AREA DIVIDER
6" 0.22 18" 1.95
8" 0.39 24" 3.46
10" 0.60 30" 5.41
12" 0.87 36" 7.79
15" 1.35

2)  STEP 2:  SUBTRACT THE ROW (S) OF PLANTS THAT WOULD OCCUR AT THE EDGE OF THE PLANTED AREA WITH
THE FOLLOWING FORMULA:  TOTAL PERIMETER LENGTH / PLANT SPACING = TOTAL PLANT SUBTRACTION

EXAMPLE:  PLANTS AT 18" O.C. IN 100 SF PLANTING AREA, 40 LF PERIMETER
STEP 1:  100 SF/1.95 = 51 PLANTS
STEP 2:  51 PLANTS - (40 LF / 1.95 = 21 PLANTS) = 30 PLANTS TOTAL

5

6

7

4

1

8

9

11

10

12

PREVAILING
WINDS

NOTES:
1. SCARIFY SIDES OF PLANTING PIT PRIOR TO SETTING TREE.
2. REMOVE EXCESS SOIL APPLIED ON TOP OF THE ROOTBALL THAT

COVERS THE ROOT FLARE.  THE PLANTING HOLE DEPTH SHALL BE
SUCH THAT THE ROOTBALL RESTS ON UNDISTURBED SOIL, AND THE
ROOT FLARE IS 2"-4" ABOVE FINISH GRADE.

3. FOR B&B TREES, CUT OFF BOTTOM 1/3 OF WIRE BASKET BEFORE
PLACING TREE IN HOLE, CUT OFF AND REMOVE REMAINDER OF
BASKET AFTER TREE IS SET IN HOLE,  REMOVE ALL NYLON TIES,
TWINE, ROPE, AND OTHER PACKING MATERIAL.  REMOVE AS MUCH
BURLAP FROM AROUND ROOTBALL AS IS PRACTICAL.

4. REMOVE ALL NURSERY STAKES AFTER PLANTING.
5. FOR TREES 36" BOX/2.5" CAL. AND LARGER, USE THREE STAKES OR

DEADMEN (AS APPROPRIATE), SPACED EVENLY AROUND TREE.
6. STAKING SHALL BE TIGHT ENOUGH TO PREVENT TRUNK FROM

BENDING, BUT LOOSE ENOUGH TO ALLOW SOME TRUNK MOVEMENT
IN WIND.

1

2

3

TREE CANOPY.

CINCH-TIES (24" BOX/2" CAL. TREES AND SMALLER) OR
12 GAUGE GALVANIZED WIRE WITH NYLON TREE
STRAPS AT TREE AND STAKE (36" BOX/2.5" CAL. TREES
AND LARGER).  SECURE TIES OR STRAPS TO TRUNK
JUST ABOVE LOWEST MAJOR BRANCHES.

GREEN STEEL T-POSTS.  EXTEND POSTS 12" MIN. INTO
UNDISTURBED SOIL.

24" X 3/4" P.V.C. MARKERS OVER WIRES.

PRESSURE-TREATED WOOD DEADMAN, TWO PER
TREE (MIN.).  BURY OUTSIDE OF PLANTING PIT AND
18" MIN. INTO UNDISTURBED SOIL.

MULCH, TYPE AND DEPTH PER PLANS.  DO NOT
PLACE MULCH WITHIN 6" OF TRUNK.

FINISH GRADE.

BACKFILL.  AMEND AND FERTILIZE ONLY AS
RECOMMENDED IN SOIL FERTILITY ANALYSIS.

ROOT BALL.

UNDISTURBED NATIVE SOIL.

4" HIGH EARTHEN WATERING BASIN.

TRUNK FLARE.

CONIFEROUS
TREE

PREVAILING
WINDS

STAKING EXAMPLES (PLAN VIEW)

2

4

6

7

8

9

10

11

1

4

3X ROOTBALL DIA.

5

2

3

5

12

NON-CONIFEROUS
TREE

13

13 FINISH GRADE.

ROOT BARRIER - PLAN VIEW
SCALE: NOT TO SCALEF

GENERAL

A. QUALIFICATIONS OF LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR
1. ALL LANDSCAPE WORK SHOWN ON THESE PLANS SHALL BE PERFORMED BY A SINGLE FIRM SPECIALIZING IN

LANDSCAPE PLANTING.
2. A LIST OF SUCCESSFULLY COMPLETED PROJECTS OF THIS TYPE, SIZE AND NATURE MAY BE REQUESTED BY THE

OWNER FOR FURTHER QUALIFICATION MEASURES.
3. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL HOLD A VALID NURSERY AND FLORAL CERTIFICATE ISSUED BY THE TEXAS

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE / APPROPRIATE LOCAL JURISDICTION, AS WELL AS OPERATE UNDER A COMMERCIAL
PESTICIDE APPLICATOR LICENSE ISSUED BY EITHER THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE OR THE TEXAS
STRUCTURAL PEST CONTROL BOARD.

B. SCOPE OF WORK
1. WORK COVERED BY THESE SECTIONS INCLUDES THE FURNISHING AND PAYMENT OF ALL MATERIALS, LABOR,

SERVICES, EQUIPMENT, LICENSES, TAXES AND ANY OTHER ITEMS THAT ARE NECESSARY FOR THE EXECUTION,
INSTALLATION AND COMPLETION OF ALL WORK, SPECIFIED HEREIN AND / OR SHOWN ON THE LANDSCAPE PLANS,
NOTES, AND DETAILS.

2. ALL WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE LAWS, CODES AND REGULATIONS
REQUIRED BY AUTHORITIES HAVING JURISDICTION OVER SUCH WORK, INCLUDING ALL INSPECTIONS AND PERMITS
REQUIRED BY FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL AUTHORITIES IN SUPPLY, TRANSPORTATION AND INSTALLATION OF
MATERIALS.

3. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THE LOCATION OF ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINES (WATER, SEWER,
ELECTRICAL, TELEPHONE, GAS, CABLE, TELEVISION, ETC.) PRIOR TO THE START OF ANY WORK.

PRODUCTS

A. ALL MANUFACTURED PRODUCTS SHALL BE NEW.
B. CONTAINER AND BALLED-AND-BURLAPPED PLANTS:

1. FURNISH NURSERY-GROWN PLANTS COMPLYING WITH THE AMERICAN STANDARD FOR NURSERY STOCK (ANSI
Z60.1-2014).  PROVIDE WELL-SHAPED, FULLY BRANCHED, HEALTHY, VIGOROUS STOCK FREE OF DISEASE, INSECTS,
EGGS, LARVAE, AND DEFECTS SUCH AS KNOTS, SUN SCALD, INJURIES, ABRASIONS, AND DISFIGUREMENT.  ALL
PLANTS WITHIN A SPECIES SHALL HAVE SIMILAR SIZE AND SHALL BE OF A FORM TYPICAL FOR THE SPECIES.  ALL
TREES SHALL BE OBTAINED FROM SOURCES WITHIN 200 MILES OF THE PROJECT SITE, AND WITH SIMILAR CLIMACTIC
CONDITIONS.

2. ROOT SYSTEMS SHALL BE HEALTHY, DENSELY BRANCHED ROOT SYSTEMS, NON-POT-BOUND, FREE FROM
ENCIRCLING AND/OR GIRDLING ROOTS, AND FREE FROM ANY OTHER ROOT DEFECTS (SUCH AS J-SHAPED ROOTS).

3. TREES MAY BE PLANTED FROM CONTAINERS OR BALLED-AND-BURLAPPED (B&B), UNLESS SPECIFIED ON THE
PLANTING LEGEND.  BARE-ROOT TREES ARE NOT ACCEPTABLE.

4. ANY PLANT DEEMED UNACCEPTABLE BY THE OWNER OR OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE SHALL BE IMMEDIATELY
REMOVED FROM THE SITE AND SHALL BE REPLACED WITH AN ACCEPTBLE PLANT OF LIKE TYPE AND SIZE AT THE
CONTRACTOR'S OWN EXPENSE.  ANY PLANTS APPEARING TO BE UNHEALTHY, EVEN IF DETERMINED TO STILL BE
ALIVE, SHALL NOT BE ACCEPTED.  THE OWNER OR OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE SHALL BE THE SOLE JUDGES AS TO
THE ACCEPTABILITY OF PLANT MATERIAL.

5. ALL TREES SHALL BE STANDARD IN FORM, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.  TREES WITH CENTRAL LEADERS WILL
NOT BE ACCEPTED IF LEADER IS DAMAGED OR REMOVED.  PRUNE ALL DAMAGED TWIGS AFTER PLANTING.

6. CALIPER MEASUREMENTS FOR STANDARD (SINGLE TRUNK) TREES SHALL BE AS FOLLOWS:  SIX INCHES ABOVE THE
ROOT FLARE FOR TREES UP TO AND INCLUDING FOUR INCHES IN CALIPER, AND TWELVE INCHES ABOVE THE ROOT
FLARE FOR TREES EXCEEDING FOUR INCHES IN CALIPER.

7. MULTI-TRUNK TREES SHALL BE MEASURED BY THEIR OVERALL HEIGHT, MEASURED FROM THE TOP OF THE ROOT
BALL.  WHERE CALIPER MEASUREMENTS ARE USED, THE CALIPER SHALL BE CALCULATED AS ONE-HALF OF THE SUM
OF THE CALIPER OF THE THREE LARGEST TRUNKS.

8. ANY TREE OR SHRUB SHOWN TO HAVE EXCESS SOIL PLACED ON TOP OF THE ROOT BALL, SO THAT THE ROOT FLARE
HAS BEEN COMPLETELY COVERED, SHALL BE REJECTED.

C. SOD:  PROVIDE WELL-ROOTED SOD OF THE VARIETY NOTED ON THE PLANS.  SOD SHALL BE CUT FROM HEALTHY, MATURE
TURF WITH SOIL THICKNESS OF 3/4" TO 1".  EACH PALLET OF SOD SHALL BE ACCOMPANIED BY A CERTIFICATE FROM
SUPPLIER STATING THE COMPOSITION OF THE SOD.

D. TOPSOIL:  SANDY TO CLAY LOAM TOPSOIL, FREE OF STONES LARGER THAN ½ INCH, FOREIGN MATTER, PLANTS, ROOTS, AND
SEEDS.

E. COMPOST:  WELL-COMPOSTED, STABLE, AND WEED-FREE ORGANIC MATTER, pH RANGE OF 5.5 TO 8; MOISTURE CONTENT 35
TO 55 PERCENT BY WEIGHT; 100 PERCENT PASSING THROUGH 3/4-INCH SIEVE; SOLUBLE SALT CONTENT OF 5 TO 10
DECISIEMENS/M; NOT EXCEEDING 0.5 PERCENT INERT CONTAMINANTS AND FREE OF SUBSTANCES TOXIC TO PLANTINGS.  NO
MANURE OR ANIMAL-BASED PRODUCTS SHALL BE USED.

F. FERTILIZER:  GRANULAR FERTILIZER CONSISTING OF NITROGEN, PHOSPHORUS, POTASSIUM, AND OTHER NUTRIENTS IN
PROPORTIONS, AMOUNTS, AND RELEASE RATES RECOMMENDED IN A SOIL REPORT FROM A QUALIFIED SOIL-TESTING
AGENCY (SEE BELOW).

G. MULCH:  SIZE AND TYPE AS INDICATED ON PLANS, FREE FROM DELETERIOUS MATERIALS AND SUITABLE AS A TOP DRESSING
OF TREES AND SHRUBS.

H. TREE STAKING AND GUYING
1. STAKES:  6' LONG GREEN METAL T-POSTS.
2. GUY AND TIE WIRE:  ASTM A 641, CLASS 1, GALVANIZED-STEEL WIRE, 2-STRAND, TWISTED, 0.106 INCH DIAMETER.
3. STRAP CHAFING GUARD:  REINFORCED NYLON OR CANVAS AT LEAST 1-1/2 INCH WIDE, WITH GROMMETS TO PROTECT

TREE TRUNKS FROM DAMAGE.
I. STEEL EDGING:  PROFESSIONAL STEEL EDGING, 14 GAUGE THICK X 4 INCHES WIDE, FACTORY PAINTED DARK GREEN.

ACCEPTABLE MANUFACTURERS INCLUDE COL-MET OR APPROVED EQUAL.
J. PRE-EMERGENT HERBICIDES:  ANY GRANULAR, NON-STAINING PRE-EMERGENT HERBICIDE THAT IS LABELED FOR THE

SPECIFIC ORNAMENTALS OR TURF ON WHICH IT WILL BE UTILIZED.  PRE-EMERGENT HERBICIDES SHALL BE APPLIED PER THE
MANUFACTURER'S LABELED RATES.

METHODS

A. SOIL PREPARATION
1. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THAT THE GRADE OF ALL LANDSCAPE

AREAS ARE WITHIN +/-0.1' OF FINISH GRADE.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE OWNER IMMEDIATELY SHOULD
ANY DISCREPANCIES EXIST.

2. SOIL TESTING:
a. AFTER FINISH GRADES HAVE BEEN ESTABLISHED, CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE SOIL SAMPLES FROM THE

PROJECT'S LANDSCAPE AREAS TESTED BY AN ESTABLISHED SOIL TESTING LABORATORY.  EACH SAMPLE
SUBMITTED TO THE LAB SHALL CONTAIN NO LESS THAN ONE QUART OF SOIL, TAKEN FROM BETWEEN THE SOIL
SURFACE AND 6" DEPTH.  IF NO SAMPLE LOCATIONS ARE INDICATED ON THE PLANS, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
TAKE A MINIMUM OF THREE SAMPLES FROM VARIOUS REPRESENTATIVE LOCATIONS FOR TESTING.

b. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE THE SOIL TESTING LABORATORY PROVIDE RESULTS FOR THE FOLLOWING:  SOIL
TEXTURAL CLASS, GENERAL SOIL FERTILITY, pH, ORGANIC MATTER CONTENT, SALT (CEC), LIME, SODIUM
ADSORPTION RATIO (SAR) AND BORON CONTENT.

c. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO SUBMIT THE PROJECT'S PLANT LIST TO THE LABORATORY ALONG WITH THE SOIL
SAMPLES.

d. THE SOIL REPORT PRODUCED BY THE LABORATORY SHALL CONTAIN RECOMMENDATIONS FOR THE FOLLOWING
(AS APPROPRIATE):  SEPARATE SOIL PREPARATION AND BACKFILL MIX RECOMMENDATIONS FOR GENERAL
ORNAMENTAL PLANTS, XERIC PLANTS, TURF, AND NATIVE SEED, AS WELL AS PRE-PLANT FERTILIZER
APPLICATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ANY OTHER SOIL RELATED ISSUES.  THE REPORT SHALL ALSO
PROVIDE A FERTILIZER PROGRAM FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT PERIOD AND FOR LONG-TERM MAINTENANCE.

3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL SOIL AMENDMENTS AND FERTILIZERS PER THE SOILS REPORT
RECOMMENDATIONS.  ANY CHANGE IN COST DUE TO THE SOIL REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS, EITHER INCREASE OR
DECREASE, SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE OWNER WITH THE REPORT.

4. FOR BIDDING PURPOSES ONLY, THE SOIL PREPARATION SHALL CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING:
a. TURF:  INCORPORATE THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS INTO THE TOP 8" OF SOIL BY MEANS OF ROTOTILLING

AFTER CROSS-RIPPING:
i.  NITROGEN STABILIZED ORGANIC AMENDMENT - 4 CU. YDS. PER 1,000 S.F.

   ii.  PREPLANT TURF FERTILIZER (10-20-10 OR SIMILAR, SLOW RELEASE, ORGANIC) - 15 LBS PER 1,000 S.F.
   iii.  "CLAY BUSTER" OR EQUAL - USE MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDED RATE

b. TREES, SHRUBS, AND PERENNIALS:  INCORPORATE THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS INTO THE TOP 8" OF SOIL BY
MEANS OF ROTOTILLING AFTER CROSS-RIPPING:

   i.  NITROGEN STABILIZED ORGANIC AMENDMENT - 4 CU. YDS. PER 1,000 S.F.
   ii.  12-12-12 FERTILIZER (OR SIMILAR, ORGANIC, SLOW RELEASE) - 10 LBS. PER CU. YD.
   iii.  "CLAY BUSTER" OR EQUAL - USE MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDED RATE
   iv.  IRON SULPHATE - 2 LBS. PER CU. YD.

5. IN THE CONTEXT OF THESE PLANS, NOTES, AND SPECIFICATIONS, "FINISH GRADE" REFERS TO THE FINAL ELEVATION
OF THE SOIL SURFACE (NOT TOP OF MULCH) AS INDICATED ON THE GRADING PLANS.

a. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THAT THE ROUGH GRADES OF ALL
LANDSCAPE AREAS ARE WITHIN +/-0.1' OF FINISH GRADE.  SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR MORE DETAILED
INSTRUCTION ON TURF AREA AND PLANTING BED PREPARATION.

b. CONSTRUCT AND MAINTAIN FINISH GRADES AS SHOWN ON GRADING PLANS, AND CONSTRUCT AND MAINTAIN
SLOPES AS RECOMMENDED BY THE GEOTECHNICAL REPORT.  ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL HAVE POSITIVE
DRAINAGE AWAY FROM STRUCTURES AT THE MINIMUM SLOPE SPECIFIED IN THE REPORT AND ON THE GRADING
PLANS, AND AREAS OF POTENTIAL PONDING SHALL BE REGRADED TO BLEND IN WITH THE SURROUNDING
GRADES AND ELIMINATE PONDING POTENTIAL.

c. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE WHETHER OR NOT THE EXPORT OF ANY SOIL WILL BE
NEEDED, TAKING INTO ACCOUNT THE ROUGH GRADE PROVIDED, THE AMOUNT OF SOIL AMENDMENTS TO BE
ADDED (BASED ON A SOIL TEST, PER SPECIFICATIONS), AND THE FINISH GRADES TO BE ESTABLISHED.

d. ENSURE THAT THE FINISH GRADE IN SHRUB AREAS IMMEDIATELY ADJACENT TO WALKS AND OTHER WALKING
SURFACES, AFTER INSTALLING SOIL AMENDMENTS, IS 3" BELOW THE ADJACENT FINISH SURFACE, IN ORDER TO
ALLOW FOR PROPER MULCH DEPTH.  TAPER THE SOIL SURFACE TO MEET FINISH GRADE, AS SPECIFIED ON THE
GRADING PLANS, AT APPROXIMATELY 18" AWAY FROM THE WALKS.

e. ENSURE THAT THE FINISH GRADE IN TURF AREAS IMMEDIATELY ADJACENT TO WALKS AND OTHER WALKING
SURFACES, AFTER INSTALLING SOIL AMENDMENTS, IS 1" BELOW THE FINISH SURFACE OF THE WALKS.  TAPER
THE SOIL SURFACE TO MEET FINISH GRADE, AS SPECIFIED ON THE GRADING PLANS, AT APPROXIMATELY 18"
AWAY FROM THE WALKS.

f. SHOULD ANY CONFLICTS AND/OR DISCREPANCIES ARISE BETWEEN THE GRADING PLANS, GEOTECHNICAL
REPORT, THESE NOTES AND PLANS, AND ACTUAL CONDITIONS, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL IMMEDIATELY BRING
SUCH ITEMS TO THE ATTENTION OF THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR, OWNER, OR OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE.

6. ONCE SOIL PREPARATION IS COMPLETE, THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL ENSURE THAT THERE ARE NO DEBRIS,
TRASH, OR STONES LARGER THAN 1" REMAINING IN THE TOP 6" OF SOIL.

B. SUBMITTALS
1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE SUBMITTALS AND SAMPLES, IF REQUIRED, TO THE OWNER OR OWNER'S

REPRESENTATIVE, AND RECEIVE APPROVAL IN WRITING FOR SUCH SUBMITTALS BEFORE WORK COMMENCES.
2. SUBMITTALS SHALL INCLUDE PHOTOS OF PLANTS WITH A RULER OR MEASURING STICK FOR SCALE, PHOTOS OR

SAMPLES OF ANY REQUIRED MULCHES, AND SOIL TEST RESULTS AND PREPARATION RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE
TESTING LAB (INCLUDING COMPOST AND FERTILIZER RATES AND TYPES, AND OTHER AMENDMENTS FOR
TREE/SHRUB, TURF, AND SEED AREAS AS MAY BE APPROPRIATE).

3. SUBMITTALS SHALL ALSO INCLUDE MANUFACTURER CUT SHEETS FOR PLANTING ACCESSORIES SUCH AS TREE
STAKES AND TIES, EDGING, AND LANDSCAPE FABRICS (IF ANY).

4. WHERE MULTIPLE ITEMS ARE SHOWN ON A PAGE, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CLEARLY INDICATE THE ITEM BEING
CONSIDERED.

C. GENERAL PLANTING
1. REMOVE ALL NURSERY TAGS AND STAKES FROM PLANTS.
2. EXCEPT IN AREAS TO BE PLANTED WITH ORNAMENTAL GRASSES, APPLY PRE-EMERGENT HERBICIDES AT THE

MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDED RATE.
3. POSITION THE TREES AND SHRUBS IN THEIR INTENDED LOCATION AS PER THE PLAN. NOTIFY THE OWNER'S

REPRESENTATIVE FOR INSPECTION AND APPROVAL OF ALL POSITIONING OF PLANT MATERIALS.
4. TRENCHING NEAR EXISTING TREES:

a. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT DISTURB ROOTS 1-1/2" AND LARGER IN DIAMETER WITHIN THE CRITICAL ROOT ZONE
(CRZ) OF EXISTING TREES, AND SHALL EXERCISE ALL POSSIBLE CARE AND PRECAUTIONS TO AVOID INJURY TO
TREE ROOTS, TRUNKS, AND BRANCHES.  THE CRZ IS DEFINED AS A CIRCULAR AREA EXTENDING OUTWARD
FROM THE TREE TRUNK, WITH A RADIUS EQUAL TO 1' FOR EVERY 1" OF TRUNK DIAMETER-AT-BREAST-HEIGHT
(4.5' ABOVE THE AVERAGE GRADE AT THE TRUNK).

b. ALL EXCAVATION WITHIN THE CRZ SHALL BE PERFORMED USING HAND TOOLS.  NO MACHINE EXCAVATION OR
TRENCHING OF ANY KIND SHALL BE ALLOWED WITHIN THE CRZ.

c. ALTER ALIGNMENT OF PIPE TO AVOID TREE ROOTS 1-1/2" AND LARGER IN DIAMETER.  WHERE TREE ROOTS 1-1/2"
AND LARGER IN DIAMETER ARE ENCOUNTERED IN THE FIELD, TUNNEL UNDER SUCH ROOTS.  WRAP EXPOSED
ROOTS WITH SEVERAL LAYERS OF BURLAP AND KEEP MOIST.  CLOSE ALL TRENCHES WITHIN THE CANOPY DRIP
LINES WITHIN 24 HOURS.

d. ALL SEVERED ROOTS SHALL BE HAND PRUNED WITH SHARP TOOLS AND ALLOWED TO AIR-DRY.  DO NOT USE
ANY SORT OF SEALERS OR WOUND PAINTS.

D. TREE PLANTING
1. TREE PLANTING HOLES SHALL BE EXCAVATED TO MINIMUM WIDTH OF TWO TIMES THE WIDTH OF THE ROOTBALL, AND

TO A DEPTH EQUAL TO THE DEPTH OF THE ROOTBALL LESS TWO TO FOUR INCHES.
2. SCARIFY THE SIDES AND BOTTOM OF THE PLANTING HOLE PRIOR TO THE PLACEMENT OF THE TREE.  REMOVE ANY

GLAZING THAT MAY HAVE BEEN CAUSED DURING THE EXCAVATION OF THE HOLE.
3. FOR CONTAINER AND BOX TREES, TO REMOVE ANY POTENTIALLY GIRDLING ROOTS AND OTHER ROOT DEFECTS, THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL SHAVE A 1" LAYER OFF OF THE SIDES AND BOTTOM OF THE ROOTBALL OF ALL TREES JUST
BEFORE PLACING INTO THE PLANTING PIT.  DO NOT "TEASE" ROOTS OUT FROM THE ROOTBALL.

4. INSTALL THE TREE ON UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE SO THAT THE TOP OF THE ROOTBALL IS TWO TO FOUR INCHES
ABOVE THE SURROUNDING GRADE.

5. BACKFILL THE TREE HOLE UTILIZING THE EXISTING TOPSOIL FROM ON-SITE.  ROCKS LARGER THAN 1" DIA. AND ALL
OTHER DEBRIS SHALL BE REMOVED FROM THE SOIL PRIOR TO THE BACKFILL.  SHOULD ADDITIONAL SOIL BE
REQUIRED TO ACCOMPLISH THIS TASK, USE STORED TOPSOIL FROM ON-SITE OR IMPORT ADDITIONAL TOPSOIL FROM
OFF-SITE AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.  IMPORTED TOPSOIL SHALL BE OF SIMILAR TEXTURAL CLASS AND
COMPOSITION IN THE ON-SITE SOIL.

6. TREES SHALL NOT BE STAKED UNLESS THE JURISDICTION OR LOCAL CONDITIONS (SUCH AS HEAVY WINDS OR
SLOPES) REQUIRE STAKES TO KEEP TREES UPRIGHT.  SHOULD STAKING BE REQUIRED, THE TOTAL NUMBER OF TREE
STAKES (BEYOND THE MINIMUMS LISTED BELOW) WILL BE LEFT TO THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR'S DISCRETION.
SHOULD ANY TREES FALL OR LEAN, THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL STRAIGHTEN THE TREE, OR REPLACE IT
SHOULD IT BECOME DAMAGED.  TREE STAKING SHALL ADHERE TO THE FOLLOWING GUIDELINES:

a. 1"-2" TREES (OR #15 GAL - 24” BOX): TWO STAKES PER TREE
b. 2-1/2"-4" TREES (OR 36” - 48” BOX): THREE STAKES PER TREE
c. TREES OVER 4" CALIPER (OR >48” BOX): GUY AS NEEDED
d. MULTI-TRUNK TREES: THREE STAKES PER TREE MINIMUM, QUANTITY AND POSITIONS AS

NEEDED TO STABILIZE THE TREE
7. UPON COMPLETION OF PLANTING, CONSTRUCT AN EARTH WATERING BASIN AROUND THE TREE.  COVER THE

INTERIOR OF THE TREE RING WITH MULCH (TYPE AND DEPTH PER PLANS).
8. FOR TREES IN TURF AREAS, DO NOT PLANT GRASS ALL THE WAY TO THE TRUNK OF THE TREE. LEAVE THE AREA OVER

THE ROOT BALL AND INSTALL MULCH WITH AT LEAST 2” OF SPECIFIED MULCH. SEE MULCH SPECIFICATION FOR
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

D. PALM PLANTING
1. PALM PLANTING HOLES SHALL BE EXCAVATED TO MINIMUM WIDTH OF TWO TIMES THE WIDTH OF THE ROOTBALL, AND

TO A DEPTH EQUAL TO THE DEPTH OF THE ROOTBALL.
2. SCARIFY THE SIDES AND BOTTOM OF THE PLANTING HOLE PRIOR TO THE PLACEMENT OF THE PALM.  REMOVE ANY

GLAZING THAT MAY HAVE BEEN CAUSED DURING THE EXCAVATION OF THE HOLE.
3. USE BANK SAND MIXED WITH THE EXISTING SOIL (75% BANK SAND AND 25% EXISTING SOIL) AS THE BACKFILL.  ROCKS

LARGER THAN 1" DIA. AND ALL OTHER DEBRIS SHALL BE REMOVED FROM THE SOIL PRIOR TO THE BACKFILL.  SHOULD
ADDITIONAL SOIL BE REQUIRED TO ACCOMPLISH THIS TASK, IMPORT ADDITIONAL TOPSOIL FROM OFF-SITE AT NO
ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.

4. BACKFILL AROUND THE ROOTBALL WITH AMENDED SOIL TO TWO-THIRDS OF THE DEPTH OF THE ROOTBALL AND
APPLY THE PALM MAINTENANCE SPIKES PER MANUFACTURER'S DIRECTIONS.  BACKFILL THE REST OF THE PLANTING
HOLE, TAMPING FIRMLY TO REMOVE AIR POCKETS

5. BRACE THE PALMS USING PALM BRACES (PER PLANTING DETAILS).  DO NOT SECURE BRACES TO THE PALM ITSELF.
6. UPON COMPLETION OF PLANTING, CONSTRUCT AN EARTH WATERING BASIN AROUND THE TREE.  TOPDRESS WITH

MULCH (TYPE AND DEPTH PER PLANS).
E. SHRUB, PERENNIAL, AND GROUNDCOVER PLANTING

1. DIG THE PLANTING HOLES TWICE AS WIDE AND 2" LESS DEEP THAN EACH PLANT'S ROOTBALL.  INSTALL THE PLANT IN
THE HOLE.  BACKFILL AROUND THE PLANT WITH SOIL AMENDED PER SOIL TEST RECOMMENDATIONS.

2. INSTALL THE WEED BARRIER CLOTH, OVERLAPPING IT AT THE ENDS.  UTILIZE STEEL STAPLES TO KEEP THE WEED
BARRIER CLOTH IN PLACE.

3. WHEN PLANTING IS COMPLETE, INSTALL MULCH (TYPE AND DEPTH PER PLANS) OVER ALL PLANTING BEDS, COVERING
THE ENTIRE PLANTING AREA.

F. SODDING
1. SOD VARIETY TO BE AS SPECIFIED ON THE LANDSCAPE PLAN.
2. LAY SOD WITHIN 24 HOURS FROM THE TIME OF STRIPPING.  DO NOT LAY IF THE GROUND IS FROZEN.
3. LAY THE SOD TO FORM A SOLID MASS WITH TIGHTLY FITTED JOINTS.  BUTT ENDS AND SIDES OF SOD STRIPS - DO NOT

OVERLAP.  STAGGER STRIPS TO OFFSET JOINTS IN ADJACENT COURSES.
4. ROLL THE SOD TO ENSURE GOOD CONTACT OF THE SOD'S ROOT SYSTEM WITH THE SOIL UNDERNEATH.
5. WATER THE SOD THOROUGHLY WITH A FINE SPRAY IMMEDIATELY AFTER PLANTING TO OBTAIN AT LEAST SIX INCHES

OF PENETRATION INTO THE SOIL BELOW THE SOD.
G. HYDROMULCHING

1. TURF HYDROMULCH MIX (PER 1,000 SF) SHALL BE AS FOLLOWS:
a. WINTER MIX (OCTOBER 1 - MARCH 31)

i.   50# CELLULOSE FIBER MULCH
ii.  2# UNHULLED BERMUDA SEED
iii. 2# ANNUAL RYE SEED
iv. 15# 15-15-15 WATER SOLUBLE FERTILIZER

b. SUMMER MIX (APRIL 1 - SEPTEMBER 30)
i.   50# CELLULOSE FIBER MULCH
ii.  2# HULLED BERMUDA SEED
iii. 15# 15-15-15 WATER SOLUBLE FERTILIZER

2. SEED HYDROMULCH MIX (PER 1,000 SF) SHALL BE AS FOLLOWS:
a. GENERAL

i.   50# CELLULOSE FIBER MULCH
ii.  15# 15-15-15 WATER SOLUBLE FERTILIZER
iii.  SEED RATE PER LEGEND

3. ALL HARDSCAPE ELEMENTS ADJACENT TO HYDROMULCH APPLICATION SHALL BE PROTECTED FROM OVERSPRAY
DURING INSTALLATION

H. DRILL SEEDING
1. ALL SEED SHALL BE DRILL SEEDED AT THE RATES SHOWN ON THE PLANS, WITH A HYDROMULCH MIX APPLIED AFTER

SEEDING.
a. THE HYDROMULCH MIX (PER 1,000 SF) SHALL BE AS FOLLOWS:

i.   50# CELLULOSE FIBER MULCH
ii.  15# 15-15-15 WATER SOLUBLE FERTILIZER
iii. 4# ORGANIC BINDER

I. MULCH
1. INSTALL MULCH TOPDRESSING, TYPE AND DEPTH PER MULCH NOTE, IN ALL PLANTING AREAS AND TREE RINGS.
2. DO NOT INSTALL MULCH WITHIN 6" OF TREE ROOT FLARE.  MULCH AT THE BASE OF SHRUBS SHALL BE A MAXIMUM 1”

DEPTH OVER ROOT BALL
3. MULCH COVER WITHIN 6" OF CONCRETE WALKS AND CURBS SHALL NOT PROTRUDE ABOVE THE FINISH SURFACE OF

THE WALKS AND CURBS. FINISH GRADE OF MULCH AT CURBS AND SIDEWALKS SHALL BE 1” LOWER THAN THE
ADJACENT CURB OR SIDEWALK. MULCH COVER WITHIN 12" OF WALLS SHALL BE AT LEAST 3" LOWER THAN THE TOP OF
WALL.

J. CLEAN UP
1. DURING LANDSCAPE PREPARATION AND PLANTING, KEEP ALL PAVEMENT CLEAN AND ALL WORK AREAS IN A NEAT,

ORDERLY CONDITION.
2. DISPOSED LEGALLY OF ALL EXCAVATED MATERIALS OFF THE PROJECT SITE.

K. INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE
1. UPON COMPLETION OF THE WORK, THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE THE SITE CLEAN, FREE OF DEBRIS

AND TRASH, AND SUITABLE FOR USE AS INTENDED.  THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL THEN REQUEST AN
INSPECTION BY THE OWNER TO DETERMINE FINAL ACCEPTABILITY.

2. WHEN THE INSPECTED PLANTING WORK DOES NOT COMPLY WITH THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, THE LANDSCAPE
CONTRACTOR SHALL REPLACE AND/OR REPAIR THE REJECTED WORK TO THE OWNER'S SATISFACTION WITHIN 24
HOURS.

3. THE LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE PERIOD WILL NOT COMMENCE UNTIL THE LANDSCAPE WORK HAS BEEN
RE-INSPECTED BY THE OWNER AND FOUND TO BE ACCEPTABLE.  AT THAT TIME, A WRITTEN NOTICE OF FINAL
ACCEPTANCE WILL BE ISSUED BY THE OWNER, AND THE MAINTENANCE AND GUARANTEE PERIODS WILL COMMENCE.

L. LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE
1. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF ALL WORK SHOWN ON THESE

PLANS FOR 90 DAYS BEYOND FINAL ACCEPTANCE OF ALL LANDSCAPE WORK BY THE OWNER.  LANDSCAPE
MAINTENANCE SHALL INCLUDE WEEKLY SITE VISITS FOR THE FOLLOWING ACTIONS (AS APPROPRIATE):  PROPER
PRUNING, RESTAKING OF TREES, RESETTING OF PLANTS THAT HAVE SETTLED, MOWING AND AERATION OF LAWNS,
WEEDING, TREATING FOR INSECTS AND DISEASES, REPLACEMENT OF MULCH, REMOVAL OF LITTER, REPAIRS TO THE
IRRIGATION SYSTEM DUE TO FAULTY PARTS AND/OR WORKMANSHIP, AND THE APPROPRIATE WATERING OF ALL
PLANTINGS.  THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN THE IRRIGATION SYSTEM IN PROPER WORKING ORDER,
WITH SCHEDULING ADJUSTMENTS BY SEASON TO MAXIMIZE WATER CONSERVATION.

2. SHOULD SEEDED AND/OR SODDED AREAS NOT BE COVERED BY AN AUTOMATIC IRRIGATION SYSTEM, THE LANDSCAPE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR WATERING THESE AREAS AND OBTAINING A FULL, HEALTHY STAND OF
PLANTS AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.

3. TO ACHIEVE FINAL ACCEPTANCE AT THE END OF THE MAINTENANCE PERIOD, ALL OF THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS
MUST OCCUR:

i. THE LANDSCAPE SHALL SHOW ACTIVE, HEALTHY GROWTH (WITH EXCEPTIONS MADE FOR SEASONAL
DORMANCY).  ALL PLANTS NOT MEETING THIS CONDITION SHALL BE REJECTED AND REPLACED BY HEALTHY
PLANT MATERIAL PRIOR TO FINAL ACCEPTANCE.

j. ALL HARDSCAPE SHALL BE CLEANED PRIOR TO FINAL ACCEPTANCE.
k. SODDED AREAS MUST BE ACTIVELY GROWING AND MUST REACH A MINIMUM HEIGHT OF 1 1/2 INCHES BEFORE

FIRST MOWING.  BARE AREAS LARGER THAN TWELVE SQUARE INCHES MUST BE RESODDED (AS APPROPRIATE)
PRIOR TO FINAL ACCEPTANCE.  ALL SODDED TURF SHALL BE NEATLY MOWED.

M. WARRANTY PERIOD, PLANT GUARANTEE AND REPLACEMENTS
1. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL GUARANTEE ALL TREES, SHRUBS, PERENNIALS, SOD, AND IRRIGATION

SYSTEMS FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR FROM THE DATE OF THE OWNER'S FINAL ACCEPTANCE (90 DAYS FOR ANNUAL
PLANTS).  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REPLACE, AT HIS OWN EXPENSE AND TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE OWNER, ANY
PLANTS WHICH DIE IN THAT TIME, OR REPAIR ANY PORTIONS OF THE IRRIGATION SYSTEM WHICH OPERATE
IMPROPERLY.

2. AFTER THE INITIAL MAINTENANCE PERIOD AND DURING THE GUARANTEE PERIOD, THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR
SHALL ONLY BE RESPONSIBLE FOR REPLACEMENT OF PLANTS WHEN PLANT DEATH CANNOT BE ATTRIBUTED
DIRECTLY TO OVERWATERING OR OTHER DAMAGE BY HUMAN ACTIONS.

N. PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF (2) COPIES OF RECORD DRAWINGS TO THE OWNER UPON COMPLETION OF WORK.  A RECORD
DRAWING IS A RECORD OF ALL CHANGES THAT OCCURRED IN THE FIELD AND THAT ARE DOCUMENTED THROUGH CHANGE
ORDERS, ADDENDA, OR CONTRACTOR/CONSULTANT DRAWING MARKUPS.

TYPICAL CURB AND GUTTER

TYPICAL PLANTING AREA

LINEAR ROOT BARRIER MATERIAL. SEE
PLANTING NOTES FOR TYPE AND
MANUFACTURER.  INSTALL PER
MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS.

TREE CANOPY

TREE TRUNK

TYPICAL WALKWAY OR PAVING1

2

3

4

5

6

1

4

2

3

5

6

5'
5'

5'
5'

OPEN LANDSCAPE
TO 10'

PARKWAY
OR ISLAND

NOTES:
1) INSTALL ROOT BARRIERS NEAR ALL

NEWLY-PLANTED TREES THAT ARE LOCATED
WITHIN FIVE (5) FEET OF PAVING OR CURBS.

2) BARRIERS SHALL BE LOCATED IMMEDIATELY
ADJACENT TO HARDSCAPE.   UNDER NO
CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE CONTRACTOR
USE ROOT BARRIERS OF A TYPE THAT
COMPLETELY ENCIRCLE THE ROOTBALL.

PALM PLANTING 
SCALE: NOT TO SCALEA

5

6

7

4

8

9

10

NOTES:
1. SCARIFY SIDES OF PLANTING PIT PRIOR TO

SETTING PALM.
2. THE PLANTING HOLE DEPTH SHALL BE SUCH THAT

THE ROOTBALL RESTS ON UNDISTURBED SOIL, AND
THE ZONE OF ROOT INITIATION IS 3"-5" BELOW
FINISH GRADE.

3. DO NOT REMOVE ANY LIVE FRONDS PRIOR TO
DIGGING AT THE NURSERY.

4. AFTER PLANTING, LOOSEN THE TWINE SO THAT
THE FRONDS MAY MOVE, BUT THE TERMINAL BUD
IS PROTECTED.

1

2

3

BIODEGRADEABLE TWINE.

PALM BRACE SYSTEM.

2" X 4" SUPPORT, TOENAILED TO BRACE SYSTEM (3) -
DO NOT NAIL TO PALM.

ROOT BALL.

4" HIGH TEMPORARY WATERING BASIN.

MULCH PER PLANS.  DO NOT ALLOW MORE THAN 1" OF
MULCH WITHIN 12" OF TRUNK.

2" X 4" X 12" DEADMAN, BURIED 12" MIN. BELOW GRADE.

BACKFILL MIX PER SPECIFICATIONS AND SOIL TEST
RECOMMENDATIONS.

4" PERFORATED PVC WATER MONITORING TUBE
WRAPPED IN FILTER FABRIC (ANY APPROVED) - TWO
PLACES AROUND PALM.

UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE.

PREVAILING
WINDS

BRACING - PLAN VIEW

1

4

6'
 M

IN
.

ROOT BALL
2X DIA. OF

1

2

3

5

7

8

4

6

9

10

© COPYRIGHT 2022 HEIGHTS VENTURE

Project Phase:

Drawn By:

Date / Time Plotted:

Project Number:

Checked By:

HOUSTON
1111 North Loop West, Suite 800
Houston, Texas 77008
713 869 1103 V

DALLAS
5741 Legacy Drive, Suite 320

Plano, Texas 75024
972 490 7292 V

Sheet Size:

30 x 42

7/21/2022

3855 BELT LINE RD, ADDISON,
TX 75001

22007

LANDSCAPE
DETAILS &

SPECIFICATIONS

LA PASHA

SUBDIVISION NAME
BELTLINE MARSH BUSINESS PARK SUBDIVISION

BLOCK, LOT NUMBER
BLK 3 LOT B

CITY OF ADDISON PROJECT NUMBER
_______________________

PREPARATION DATE
06.17.2022

Δ DATE: ISSUE:

OWNER
FESS DFW HOLDINGS LLC
10190 KATY FRWY STE 350
HOUSTON, TX 77043
SAAD JAWAD
832.638.2305

APPLICANT
HEIGHTS VENTURE ARCHITECTS LLP
5741 LEGACY DR STE 320
PLANO, TX 75024
KENNY LAFOREST
281.854.6140

ARCHITECT
HEIGHTS VENTURE ARCHITECTS LLP
5741 LEGACY DR STE 320
PLANO, TX 75024

A.

B.

C.

D.

E.

NOTES:
THIS FACADE PLAN IS FOR CONCEPTUAL
PURPOSES ONLY. ALL BUILDING PLANS
REQUIRE REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

ALL MECHANICAL UNITS SHALL BE
SCREENED FROM PUBLIC VIEW AS
REQUIRED BY THE ZONING ORDINANCE

WHEN PERMITTED, EXPOSED UTILITY
BOXES AND CONDUITS SHALL BE PAINTED
TO MATCH THE BUILDING

ALL SIGNAGE AREAS AND LOCATIONS ARE
SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY DEVELOPMENT
SERVICES

ROOF ACCESS SHALL BE PROVIDED
INTERNALLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE
PERMITTED BY THE CHIEF BUILDING
OFFICIAL

EMS EMS

(800) 680-6630
15455 Dallas Pkwy., Ste 600

Addison, TX 75001
www.EvergreenDesignGroup.com

EVERGREEN
D E S I G N    G R O U P

LP-2

07.21.2022

. HIH

IC
S

ST
E

R

C
CT

TE

SA

E

ET

S
TA

I
RE
G

73

OF

5 3
ET
X

E

R

LD
RE

CAANDS

M

EP A

PLEY



FL
FL

FL
FL

FL
FL

FL

FL

FL

FLFLFLFLFLFLFL

FL

FL

FL
FL

FL
FL

FL

FLFLFLFLFLFLFLFL
FL

FL FL FL

FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL

FL
FL

FL

FL

FL FL FL FL FL FL

FL

FL
FL

FL

FLFLFLFLFL

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

D

D

SS SS SS SSS

W

W
W

W

W W W W W W W

FL

FL

FL

FL

FL

FL
FL

FL
FL

Mulch To Match
Existing Planting Beds

Existing Landscape
To Remain

Existing Landscape
To Remain

Existing Landscape
To Remain Existing Landscape

To Remain

Existing Landscape
To Remain

Existing Landscape
To RemainExisting Landscape

To Remain

Existing Light Pole
To Remain

Existing Light Pole
To Remain

Existing Light Pole
To Remain

Existing Light Pole
To Remain

Existing Light Pole
To Remain

Existing Light Pole
To Remain

Existing Light Pole
To Remain

Existing Light Pole
To Remain

Existing Transformer
To Remain

Existing Tree
To Be Removed, Typ

Existing Tree
To Be Removed, Typ

Existing Tree
To Remain, Typ

Existing Tree
To Remain, Typ

Existing Tree
To Be Removed, Typ

Existing Tree
To Be Removed, Typ

Existing Landscape
To Remain

Existing Landscape
To Remain

Existing Landscape
To Remain

Existing Landscape
To Remain

CO

TP

DP
CO

VAM Triangles

VAM Triangles

Mulch To Match
Existing Planting Beds

Mulch To Match
Existing Planting Beds

Mulch To Match
Existing Planting Beds

Existing Tree
To Remain, Typ

Existing Tree
To Be Removed, Typ

44 43 42

41

40 39 38 32

31
30

29

28

27

26

25

24

23

22
21

20

19

18

16

15

14

13
12

111098
76

5

4

3

21

48
47

46 45

49 50 51 52

SOD

SOD

SOD

33

31

35

36

37

Proposed Single
Story Building

Belt Line R
oad

SOD

SOD

17

Existing Fire HydrantAASHTO Triangles

AASHTO Triangles

Existing Sign To
Be Removed

© COPYRIGHT 2022 HEIGHTS VENTURE

Project Phase:

Drawn By:

Date / Time Plotted:

Project Number:

Checked By:

HOUSTON
1111 North Loop West, Suite 800
Houston, Texas 77008
713 869 1103 V

DALLAS
5741 Legacy Drive, Suite 320

Plano, Texas 75024
972 490 7292 V

Sheet Size:

30 x 42

7/21/2022

3855 BELT LINE RD, ADDISON,
TX 75001

22007

TREE
DISPOSITION

PLAN

LA PASHA

SUBDIVISION NAME
BELTLINE MARSH BUSINESS PARK SUBDIVISION

BLOCK, LOT NUMBER
BLK 3 LOT B

CITY OF ADDISON PROJECT NUMBER
_______________________

PREPARATION DATE
06.17.2022

Δ DATE: ISSUE:

OWNER
FESS DFW HOLDINGS LLC
10190 KATY FRWY STE 350
HOUSTON, TX 77043
SAAD JAWAD
832.638.2305

APPLICANT
HEIGHTS VENTURE ARCHITECTS LLP
5741 LEGACY DR STE 320
PLANO, TX 75024
KENNY LAFOREST
281.854.6140

ARCHITECT
HEIGHTS VENTURE ARCHITECTS LLP
5741 LEGACY DR STE 320
PLANO, TX 75024

EMS EMS

07.21.2022

(800) 680-6630
15455 Dallas Pkwy., Ste 600

Addison, TX 75001
www.EvergreenDesignGroup.com

EVERGREEN
D E S I G N    G R O U P

Scale 1" = 20'

10' 40'20'0'

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

. HIH

IC
S

ST
E

R

C
CT

TE

SA

E

ET

S
TA

I
RE
G

73

OF

5 3
ET
X

E

R

LD
RE

CAANDS

M

EP A

PLEY

TREE PROTECTION FENCE

MITIGATION FOR REMOVAL OF EXISTING TREES
MITIGATION FOR REMOVAL OF 78" OF TREES SHALL BE ACHIEVED AS FOLLOWS:

PROPOSED TREE MITIGATION PROVIDED: 12 MITIGATION TREES

6 - 8" TREES
2 - 6" TREES
3 - 5" TREES
1 - 3" TREE

SEE PLANTING PLANS (LP-1) FOR PROPOSED TREE LOCATIONS MARKED WITH MX(X INDICATES DBH AS LISTED ABOVE).

NOTE: TREE PROTECTION FOR ANY PRESERVED OR
RELOCATED TREES MUST BE PROVIDED PER DETAILS AND

SPECIFICATIONS ON SHEET TD-2. THESE MUST BE UP PRIOR
TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK AND MAINTAINED

THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION.

NOTE: ALL TREE TRIMMING MUST BE APPROVED BY THE
OWNER AND LOCAL JURISDICTION PRIOR TO

COMMENCEMENT OF WORK. ALL TREE TRIMMING MUST BE
DONE BY AN ISA CERTIFIED ARBORIST IN ACCORDANCE WITH

LOCAL TREE PRESERVATION ORDINANCE.

TREE INVENTORY

TD-1

EX. TREE TO REMAIN 42
-

EX. TREE TO BE REMOVED 10
-

EXISTING TREE LEGEND

TREE PROTECTION FENCE

XX

XX

TREE NUMBER

TREE NUMBER

TREE PROTECTION FENCE



TD-2

TREE
DISPOSITION

SPECS & DETAILS

TUNNEL TO MINIMIZE ROOT DAMAGE (TOP) AS OPPOSED TO SURFACE-DUG
TRENCHES IN ROOT PROTECTION ZONE WHEN THE 5' MINIMUM DISTANCE
FROM TRUNK CAN NOT BE ACHIEVED.

TREES THAT ARE MARKED TO BE PRESERVED ON A SITE PLAN AND FOR WHICH
UTILITIES MUST PASS TROUGH THEIR ROOT PROTECTION ZONES MAY REQUIRE
TUNNELING AS OPPOSED TO OPEN TRENCHES. THE DECISION TO TUNNEL WILL BE
DETERMINED ON A CASE BY CASE BASIS BY THE ENGINEER.

TUNNELS SHALL BE DUG THROUGH THE ROOT PROTECTION ZONE IN ORDER TO
MINIMIZE ROOT DAMAGE.

(RPZ)
ROOT PROTECTION ZONE

IF BARE DIRT

8" MULCH OUTSIDE RPZ 

ESTABLISH FENCE PROTECTION
MINIMUM 5' FROM TRUNK

6" MULCH INSIDE RPZ

DRIP LINE

OPEN TRENCHING MAY BE USED IF EXPOSED TREE ROOTS DO NOT
EXCEED 3" OR ROOTS CAN BE BENT BACK.

ROOT PROTECTION 
ZONE (RPZ)

PROPERTY LINE

TREE 
TRUNK

STREET

5'

CURB

NOTES:
1. THE FENCING LOCATION SHOWN ABOVE IS

DIAGRAMATIC ONLY AND WILL CONFORM TO THE
DRIP LINE AND BE LIMITED TO PROJECT
BOUNDARY.  WHERE MULTIPLE ADJACENT TREES
WILL BE ENCLOSED BY FENCING, THE FENCING
SHALL BE CONTINUOUS AROUND ALL TREES.

2. FOR ACCEPTABLE FENCING MATERIALS SEE
SPECIFICATIONS.

AND UNDER DRIP LINE AS MINIMAL
PROTECTION FOR ROOTS  FROM
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES

NOTES:
1. OPTION USED FOR TIGHT CONSTRUCTION

AREAS OR WHEN CONSTRUCTION
OCCURS IN ROOT  PROTECTION ZONE.

2. FOR ACCEPTABLE FENCING MATERIALS
SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

12" MIN & 48" MAX DEPTH 

TREE PROTECTION FENCE
SCALE: NOT TO SCALEA

B SCALE: NOT TO SCALE

TREE PROTECTION FENCE - TIGHT CONSTRUCTION

BORING THROUGH ROOT PROTECTION ZONE
SCALE: NOT TO SCALEC

ROOT PROTECTION ZONE (RPZ)

MULCH INSIDE RPZ

PROTECTION FENCE
(SEE SPECS)

MATERIALS

1. FABRIC:  4 FOOT HIGH ORANGE PLASTIC FENCING AS SHOWN ON THE
PLANS AND SHALL BE WOVEN WITH 2 INCH MESH OPENINGS SUCH THAT IN
A VERTICAL DIMENSION OF 23 INCHES ALONG THE DIAGONALS OF THE
OPENINGS THERE SHALL BE AT LEAST 7 MESHES.

2. POSTS:  POSTS SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 72 INCHES LONG AND STEEL 'T'
SHAPED WITH A MINIMUM WEIGHT OF 1.3 POUNDS PER LINEAR FOOT.

3. TIE WIRE:  WIRE FOR ATTACHING THE FABRIC TO THE T-POSTS SHALL BE
NOT LESS THAN NO. 12 GAUGE GALVANIZED WIRE.

4. USED MATERIALS:  PREVIOUSLY-USED MATERIALS, MEETING THE ABOVE
REQUIREMENTS AND WHEN APPROVED BY THE OWNER, MAY BE USED.

CONSTRUCTION METHODS

1. ALL TREES AND SHRUBS SHOWN TO REMAIN WITHIN THE PROXIMITY OF
THE CONSTRUCTION SITE SHALL BE PROTECTED PRIOR TO BEGINNING
ANY DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITY.

2. EMPLOY THE SERVICES OF AN ISA (INTERNATIONAL SOCIETY OF
ARBORICULTURE) CERTIFIED ARBORIST AND OBTAIN ALL REQUIRED
PERMITS TO PRUNE THE EXISTING TREES FOR CLEANING, RAISING AND
THINNING, AS MAY BE REQUIRED.

3. PROTECTIVE FENCING SHALL BE ERECTED OUTSIDE THE CRITICAL ROOT
ZONE (CRZ, EQUAL TO 1' FROM THE TRUNK FOR EVERY 1" OF DBH) AT
LOCATIONS SHOWN IN THE PLANS OR AS DIRECTED BY THE LANDSCAPE
CONSULTANT AND/OR CITY ARBORIST, AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
DETAILS SHOWN ON THE PLANS.  FENCING SHALL BE MAINTAINED AND
REPAIRED BY THE CONTRACTOR DURING SITE CONSTRUCTION.  TREES IN
CLOSE PROXIMITY SHALL BE FENCED TOGETHER, RATHER THAN
INDIVIDUALLY.

4. PROTECTIVE FENCE LOCATIONS IN CLOSE PROXIMITY TO STREET
INTERSECTIONS OR DRIVES SHALL ADHERE TO THE APPLICABLE
JURISDICTION'S SIGHT DISTANCE CRITERIA.

5. THE PROTECTIVE FENCING SHALL BE ERECTED BEFORE SITE WORK
COMMENCES AND SHALL REMAIN IN PLACE DURING THE ENTIRE
CONSTRUCTION PHASE.

6. THE INSTALLATION POSTS SHALL BE PLACED EVERY 6 FEET ON CENTER
AND EMBEDDED TO 18 INCHES DEEP.  MESH FABRIC SHALL BE ATTACHED
TO THE INSTALLATION POSTS BY THE USE OF SUFFICIENT WIRE TIES TO
SECURELY FASTEN THE FABRIC TO THE T-POSTS TO HOLD THE FABRIC IN A
STABLE AND UPRIGHT POSITION.

7. WITHIN THE CRZ:
a. DO NOT CLEAR, FILL OR GRADE IN THE CRZ OF ANY TREE.
b. DO NOT STORE, STOCKPILE OR DUMP ANY JOB MATERIAL, SOIL OR

RUBBISH UNDER THE SPREAD OF THE TREE BRANCHES.
c. DO NOT PARK OR STORE ANY EQUIPMENT OR SUPPLIES UNDER THE

TREE CANOPY.
d. DO NOT SET UP ANY CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS UNDER THE TREE

CANOPY (SUCH AS PIPE CUTTING AND THREADING, MORTAR MIXING,
PAINTING OR LUMBER CUTTING).

e. DO NOT NAIL OR ATTACH TEMPORARY SIGNS METERS, SWITCHES,
WIRES, BRACING OR ANY OTHER ITEM TO THE TREES.

f. DO NOT PERMIT RUNOFF FROM WASTE MATERIALS INCLUDING
SOLVENTS, CONCRETE WASHOUTS, ASPHALT TACK COATS (MC-30 OIL),
ETC. TO ENTER THE CRZ.  BARRIERS ARE TO BE PROVIDED TO
PREVENT SUCH RUNOFF SUBSTANCES FROM ENTERING THE CRZ
WHENEVER POSSIBLE, INCLUDING IN AN AREA WHERE RAIN OR
SURFACE WATER COULD CARRY SUCH MATERIALS TO THE ROOT
SYSTEM OF THE TREE.

8. ROUTE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES TO AVOID THE CRZ.  IF DIGGING IS
UNAVOIDABLE, BORE UNDER THE ROOTS, OR HAND DIG TO AVOID
SEVERING THEM.

9. WHERE EXCAVATION IN THE VICINITY OF TREES MUST OCCUR, SUCH AS
FOR IRRIGATION INSTALLATION, PROCEED WITH CAUTION, AND USING
HAND TOOLS ONLY.

10. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT CUT ROOTS LARGER THAN ONE INCH IN
DIAMETER WHEN EXCAVATION OCCURS NEAR EXISTING TREES.  ALL
ROOTS LARGER THAN ONE INCH IN DIAMETER ARE TO BE CUT CLEANLY.
FOR OAKS ONLY, ALL WOUNDS SHALL BE PAINTED WITH WOUND SEALER
WITHIN 30 MINUTES

11. REMOVE ALL TREES, SHRUBS OR BUSHES TO BE CLEARED FROM
PROTECTED ROOT ZONE AREAS BY HAND.

12. TREES DAMAGED OR KILLED DUE TO CONTRACTOR'S NEGLIGENCE DURING
CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE MITIGATED AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE
AND TO THE PROJECT OWNER'S AND LOCAL JURISDICTION'S
SATISFACTION.

13. ANY TREE REMOVAL SHALL BE APPROVED BY THE OWNER AND LOCAL
JURISDICTION PRIOR TO ITS REMOVAL, AND THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
HAVE ALL REQUIRED PERMITS FOR SUCH ACTIVITIES.

14. COVER EXPOSED ROOTS AT THE END OF EACH DAY WITH SOIL, MULCH OR
WET BURLAP.

15. IN CRITICAL ROOT ZONE AREAS THAT CANNOT BE PROTECTED DUING
CONSTRUCTION AND WHERE HEAVY TRAFFIC IS ANTICIPATED, COVER THE
SOIL WITH EIGHT INCHES OF ORGANIC MULCH TO MINIMIZE SOIL
COMPACTION.  THIS EIGHT INCH DEPTH OF MULCH SHALL BE MAINTAINED
THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION.

16. WATER ALL TREES IMPACTED BY CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES, DEEPLY
ONCE A WEEK DURING PERIODS OF HOT DRY WEATHER.  SPRAY TREE
CROWNS WITH WATER PERIODICALLY TO REDUCE DUST ACCUMULATION
ON THE LEAVES.

17. WHEN INSTALLING CONCRETE ADJACENT TO THE ROOT ZONE OF A TREE,
USE A PLASTIC VAPOR BARRIER BEHIND THE CONCRETE TO PROHIBIT
LEACHING OF LIME INTO THE SOIL.

18. CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE AND DISPOSE OF ALL TREE PROTECTION
FENCING WHEN ALL THREATS TO THE EXISTING TREES FROM
CONSTRUCTION-RELATED ACTIVITIES HAVE BEEN REMOVED.

D SCALE: NOT TO SCALE

ROOT PRUNING DETAIL

EXISTING GRADE

NOTES
1. RETENTION AREAS WILL BE SET AS PART OF THE REVIEW PROCESS AND

PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING.
2. BOUNDARIES OF RETENTION AREAS MUST BE STAKED AT THE PRE-CONSTRUCTION

MEETING AND FLAGGED PRIOR TO ROOT PRUNING.
3. EXACT LOCATION OF ROOT PRUNING SHALL BE DETERMINED IN THE FIELD IN

COORDINATION WITH THE FORESTRY INSPECTOR .
4. TRENCH SHOULD BE IMMEDIATELY BACKFILLED WITH EXCAVATED SOIL OR OTHER

ORGANIC SOIL AS SPECIFIED PER PLAN OR BY THE FORESTRY INSPECTOR.
5. ROOTS SHALL BE CLEANLY CUT USING VIBRATORY KNIFE OR OTHER ACCEPTABLE

EQUIPMENT. ROT PRUNING METHODS AND MEANS MUST BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
ANSI STANDARD A3000.

6. ALL PRUNING MUST BE EXECUTED AT LOD SHOWN ON PLANS OR AS AUTHORIZED
IN WRITING BY THE FORESTRY INSPECTOR.

7. SUPPLEMENTAL WATERING MAY BE REQUIRED FOR ROOT PRUNED TREES
THROUGHOUT THE GROWING SEASON DURING CONSTRUCTION AND SUBSEQUENT
WARRANTY AND MAINTENANCE PERIOD.

ROOT PRUNE VIA AIRSPACE OR
TRENCH (6" WIDE MAX.) 24" MIN.
DEPTH OR AS DETERMINED AT
PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING.

TREE PROTECTION FENCE TO
BE ERECTED IN LINE WITH
ROOT PRUNING LIMITS. SEE
DETAILS AND SPECIFICATIONS
FOR TREE PROTECTION
FENCE REQUIREMENTS.

(A) PRIOR TO THE LAND CLEARING STAGE OF DEVELOPMENT, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CLEARLY MARK ALL
PROTECTED TREES FOR WHICH A TREE REMOVAL PERMIT HAS NOT BEEN ISSUED AND SHALL ERECT BARRIERS
FOR THE PROTECTION OF THE TREES ACCORDING TO THE FOLLOWING:
(1)  AROUND AN AREA AT OR GREATER THAN A SIX-FOOT RADIUS OF ALL SPECIES OF MANGROVES AND
PROTECTED CABBAGE PALMS;
(2)  AROUND AN AREA AT OR GREATER THAN THE FULL DRIPLINE OF ALL PROTECTED NATIVE PINES;
(3)  AROUND AN AREA AT OR GREATER THAN TWO-THIRDS OF THE DRIPLINE OF ALL OTHER PROTECTED
SPECIES.

(B) NO PERSON SHALL ATTACH ANY SIGN, NOTICE OR OTHER OBJECT TO ANY PROTECTED TREE OR FASTEN ANY
WIRES, CABLES, NAILS OR SCREWS TO ANY PROTECTED TREE IN ANY MANNER THAT COULD PROVE HARMFUL TO
THE PROTECTED TREE, EXCEPT AS NECESSARY IN CONJUNCTION WITH ACTIVITIES IN THE PUBLIC INTEREST.

(C) DURING THE CONSTRUCTION STAGE OF DEVELOPMENT, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT CAUSE OR PERMIT THE
CLEANING OF EQUIPMENT OR MATERIAL WITHIN THE OUTSIDE PERIMETER OF THE CROWN (DRIPLINE) OR ON THE
NEARBY GROUND OF ANY TREE OR GROUP OF TREES WHICH IS TO BE PRESERVED. WITHIN THE OUTSIDE
PERIMETER OF THE CROWN (DRIPLINE) OF ANY TREE OR ON NEARBY GROUND, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT
CAUSE OR PERMIT STORAGE OF BUILDING MATERIAL AND/OR EQUIPMENT, OR DISPOSAL OF WASTE MATERIAL
SUCH AS PAINTS, OIL, SOLVENTS, ASPHALT, CONCRETE, MORTAR OR ANY OTHER MATERIAL HARMFUL TO THE LIFE
OF THE TREE.

(D) NO PERSON SHALL PERMIT ANY UNNECESSARY FIRE OR BURNING WITHIN 30 FEET OF THE DRIPLINE OF A
PROTECTED TREE.

(E) ANY LANDSCAPING ACTIVITIES WITHIN THE BARRIER AREA SHALL BE ACCOMPLISHED WITH HAND LABOR.
(F) PRIOR TO ISSUING A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY OR COMPLIANCE FOR ANY DEVELOPMENT, BUILDING OR

STRUCTURE, ALL TREES DESIGNATED TO BE PRESERVED THAT WERE DESTROYED DURING CONSTRUCTION
SHALL BE REPLACED BY THE CONTRACTOR WITH TREES OF EQUIVALENT DIAMETER AT BREAST HEIGHT TREE
CALIPER AND OF THE SAME SPECIES AS SPECIFIED BY THE CITY REPRESENTATIVE, BEFORE OCCUPANCY OR USE,
UNLESS APPROVAL FOR THEIR REMOVAL HAS BEEN GRANTED UNDER PERMIT.

(G) THE CITY REPRESENTATIVE MAY CONDUCT PERIODIC INSPECTIONS OF THE SITE DURING LAND CLEARANCE AND
CONSTRUCTION.

(H) IF, IN THE OPINION OF THE CITY REPRESENTATIVE, DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES WILL SO SEVERELY STRESS SLASH
PINES OR ANY OTHER PROTECTED TREE SUCH THAT THEY ARE MADE SUSCEPTIBLE TO INSECT ATTACK,
PREVENTATIVE SPRAYING OF THESE TREES BY THE CONTRACTOR MAY BE REQUIRED.

TREE PROTECTION GENERAL NOTES

TREE PROTECTION SPECIFICATIONS

© COPYRIGHT 2022 HEIGHTS VENTURE

Project Phase:

Drawn By:

Date / Time Plotted:

Project Number:

Checked By:

HOUSTON
1111 North Loop West, Suite 800
Houston, Texas 77008
713 869 1103 V

DALLAS
5741 Legacy Drive, Suite 320

Plano, Texas 75024
972 490 7292 V

Sheet Size:

30 x 42

07.21.2022

(800) 680-6630
15455 Dallas Pkwy., Ste 600

Addison, TX 75001
www.EvergreenDesignGroup.com

EVERGREEN
D E S I G N    G R O U P

. HIH

IC
S

ST
E

R

C
CT

TE

SA

E

ET

S
TA

I
RE
G

73

OF

5 3
ET
X

E

R

LD
RE

CAANDS

M

EP A

PLEY

SUBDIVISION NAME
BELTLINE MARSH BUSINESS PARK SUBDIVISION

BLOCK, LOT NUMBER
BLK 3 LOT B

CITY OF ADDISON PROJECT NUMBER
_______________________

PREPARATION DATE
06.17.2022

FESS DFW HOLDINGS LLC
10190 KATY FRWY STE 350
HOUSTON, TX 77043
SAAD JAWAD
832.638.2305

APPLICANT
HEIGHTS VENTURE ARCHITECTS LLP
5741 LEGACY DR STE 320
PLANO, TX 75024
KENNY LAFOREST
281.854.6140

ARCHITECT
HEIGHTS VENTURE ARCHITECTS LLP
5741 LEGACY DR STE 320
PLANO, TX 75024

7/21/2022

22007

EMS EMS



DN

DN

DN

UP

Space Area 

Circulation        891.58 

Dining     2,729.44 

Kitchen     2,379.25 

Patio     4,940.00 

Play Area        277.78 

Seating     4,662.22 

Restrooms        567.00 

Utility        286.60 

Waiting        134.13 

Total   11,928.00 

NEW DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE

1
6

' -
 0

"

11' - 6"

NEW GUARDRAIL AT EXIT

9
3

' -
 5

"

7
5

' -
 6

"
9

' -
 6

"
8

' -
 5

"

NEW RAMP AND RAIL AT EXIT

101' - 6"

EXISTING GAS METER

EXISTING TRANSFORMER 
TO REMAIN

NEW GUARDRAIL AT RAMP

EXTERIOR WAITING OVERFLOW

36' - 9" 101' - 6"

32' - 4" 17' - 5" 51' - 9"

NEW GUARDRAIL AT STAIRS

NEW RETRACTABLE AWNING SYSTEM

AREA OF PATIO USED 
FOR PLAY AREA. 
LIMITED EQUIPMENT

Use Legend

Circulation

Dining

Kitchen

Patio

Restroom

Utility

Waiting

KITCHEN

DINING

PATIO

CIRCULATION

UTILITY

RESTROOM

WAITING

N

Not for Regulatory Approval,
Permitting, or Construction.

© COPYRIGHT 2022 HEIGHTS VENTURE

Project Phase:

Drawn By:

Date / Time Plotted:

Project Number:

Checked By:

HOUSTON
1111 North Loop West, Suite 800
Houston, Texas 77008
713 869 1103 V

DALLAS
5741 Legacy Drive, Suite 320

Plano, Texas 75024
972 490 7292 V

Sheet Size:

30 x 42

Robert R. Holton, AIA
TX #14938

8/9/2022 8:38:22 AM

FP-02

3855 BELT LINE RD, ADDISON,
TX 75001

22007

BUILDING PLAN

CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

LA PASHA

Δ DATE: ISSUE:

1/8" = 1'-0"

BUILDING FLOOR PLAN 01



101' - 8"

RF-1 RF-1

BR-1 CN-1 WD-1

0' - 6"

22' - 11"

18' - 11"

16' - 6"

NEW ROOF ALIGNED TO EXTEND EXISTING, 
COLORED TO MATCH PAINTED/REPLACED EXISTING

NEW RETRACTABLE 
AWNING SYSTEM

EXISTING BRICK PAINTED WHITENEW CONCRETE RAMP AND LANDING WITH RAIL FROM KITCHEN

METAL DOOR 21 sqft
WEST ELEVATION

1%

CONCRETE 102 sqft 4%

METAL ROOF 547 sqft 22%

PAINTED BRICK 1855 sqft 73%

TOTAL 2525 sqft 100%

NEW DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE

9' - 6" 75' - 6"

93' - 7"

22' - 11"

19' - 8"

0' - 6"

MT-1 BR-1

RF-1 GL-1

BR-1

14' - 4"

6' - 0"

4' - 0"

EXISTING ROOF STRUCTURE, NEW DARK BRONZE FASCIA

NEW DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE, COMPOSITE 
FIBERON SYSTEM GATE TO MATCH FENCE

EXISTING BRICK PAINTED WHITENEW GUARDRAIL AT 
REAR EXIT

NEW WHITE METAL PANEL FINISH OVER EXISTING SHEATHING

GLASS 173 sqft
NORTH ELEVATION

10%

METAL ROOF 61 sqft 3.5%

METAL PANELING 162 sqft 9.5%

PAINTED BRICK 1350 sqft 77%

TOTAL 1746 sqft 100%

8' - 7"

WD-1 CN-1

RF-1 MT-1 GL-1

WD-1

17' - 5"32' - 6" 51' - 9"

0' - 0"

4' - 0"

22' - 11"

NEW ROOF ALIGNED TO EXTEND EXISTING, 
COLOR TO REPLACED/REPAINTED ROOF

PROPOSED SINAGE LOCATION
EXISTING ROOF STRUCTURE, 
PAINTED/REPLACED IN WHITE NEW WHITE METAL PANEL FINISH OVER EXISTING SHEATHING

NEW DUMPSTER ENCLOSUE, 
FINISHED WITH PAINTED BRICK TO 
MATCH BUILDING

NEW GLAZING AT OLD LOCATIONSNEW GUARDRAIL AT EXISTING RAMP

GLASS 619 sqft
EAST ELEVATION

24.5%

CONCRETE 237 sqft 9.5%

METAL ROOF 625 sqft 25%

METAL PANELING 1040 sqft 41%

TOTAL 2521 sqft 100%

101' - 8"

MT-1

CN-1
WD-1

75' - 6"

22' - 11"

18' - 11"

0' - 0"

GL-1 RF-2

11' - 0"

3' - 0"

EXISTING ROOF STRUCTURE

RF-1

NEW RETRACTABLE AWNING SYSTEM, WHITE

NEW METAL PANEL FINISH OVER EXISTING FINISH NEW PRIVACY SCREENING FENCE AT PATIO EDGE

GLASS 208 sqft
SOUTH ELEVATION (FRONT)

10.7%

CONCRETE 298 sqft 15.3 %

METAL ROOF 61 sqft 3%

METAL PANELING 1210 sqft 63%

TOTAL 1933 sqft 100%

SLIDING DOOR 148 sqft 7.5%

PAINTED BRICK 8 sqft 0.5%

93' - 6"

FP-01

03

FP-0102

FP-01

01

FP-01 04

B
E

L
T

L
IN

E

Al-Amir

Hawaiian Bros 

Island Grill

15' - 0"

19' - 9"

8
5

' -
 6

"

Not for Regulatory Approval,
Permitting, or Construction.

© COPYRIGHT 2022 HEIGHTS VENTURE

Project Phase:

Drawn By:

Date / Time Plotted:

Project Number:

Checked By:

HOUSTON
1111 North Loop West, Suite 800
Houston, Texas 77008
713 869 1103 V

DALLAS
5741 Legacy Drive, Suite 320

Plano, Texas 75024
972 490 7292 V

Sheet Size:

30 x 42

Robert R. Holton, AIA
TX #14938

7/21/2022 11:11:20 AM

FP-01

3855 BELT LINE RD, ADDISON,
TX 75001

22007

FACADE PLAN

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

LA PASHA

3/16" = 1'-0"

WEST ELEVATION 01

3/16" = 1'-0"

NORTH ELEVATION 02

3/16" = 1'-0"

EAST ELEVATION 03

3/16" = 1'-0"

SOUTH ELEVATION (FRONT) 04

SUBDIVISION NAME
BELTLINE MARSH BUSINESS PARK SUBDIVISION

BLOCK, LOT NUMBER
BLK 3 LOT B

CITY OF ADDISON PROJECT NUMBER
_______________________

PREPARATION DATE
06.17.2022

Δ DATE: ISSUE:

0' 3' 6' 12' 24'

OWNER
FESS DFW HOLDINGS LLC
10190 KATY FRWY STE 350
HOUSTON, TX 77043
SAAD JAWAD
832.638.2305

APPLICANT
HEIGHTS VENTURE ARCHITECTS LLP
5741 LEGACY DR STE 320
PLANO, TX 75024
KENNY LAFOREST
281.854.6140

ARCHITECT
HEIGHTS VENTURE ARCHITECTS LLP
5741 LEGACY DR STE 320
PLANO, TX 75024

NOTES:
A. THIS FACADE PLAN IS FOR CONCEPTUAL 

PURPOSES ONLY. ALL BUILDING PLANS 
REQUIRE REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

B. ALL MECHANICAL UNITS SHALL BE 
SCREENED FROM PUBLIC VIEW AS 
REQUIRED BY THE ZONING ORDINANCE

C. WHEN PERMITTED, EXPOSED UTILITY 
BOXES AND CONDUITS SHALL BE PAINTED 
TO MATCH THE BUILDING

D. ALL SIGNAGE AREAS AND LOCATIONS ARE 
SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY DEVELOPMENT 
SERVICES

E. ROOF ACCESS SHALL BE PROVIDED 
INTERNALLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE 
PERMITTED BY THE CHIEF BUILDING 
OFFICIAL

Note Block

Mark Material Manufacturer Name Remark

RF-1 EXISTING
ROOF

-existing- -existing roof
painted/replaced
in white-

PORTION OF NEW ROOF
EXTENSION AT PATIO TO MATCH
EXISTING

GL-1 GLAZING VITRO SOLARBAN 90 (2) CLEAR + CLEAR INSTALLED
WITH COLONIAL-STYLE MUNTINS

RF-2 NEW ROOF SUNART
OUTDOOR

-custom- PREMANUFACTURED
RETRACTABLE AWNING SYSTEM
BY MANUFACTURER

CN-1 CONCRETE -none- -none- CAST-IN-PLACE CONCRETE SLAB
FOR NEW PATIO SURFACE

BR-1 PAINTED
BRICK

-existing- -existing- EXISTING BRICK TO BE PAINTED

MT-1 METAL
PANEL

BERRIDGE BR-12 PANEL EXTERIOR GRADE RIBBED WALL
PANEL SYSTEM INSTALLED IN A
VERTICAL ORIENTATION

WD-1 WOOD FIBERON SYMMETRY
WARM SIENNA

COMPOSITE DECKING SYSTEM
INSTALLED AS PRIVACY FENCE AT
PATIO, USED AS GUARDRAILS AT
RAMPS AND STEPS



 

 
 

NARRATIVE LETTER  
 

To: Town of Addison 

Infrastructure & Development Services 

16801 Westgrove Drive 
Addison, TX 75001 

 
From: Stephanie Tutt, E.I.T (TX) 

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. 

 

Date: June 17, 2022 

 
Subject: Special Use Permit – La Pasha Restaurant 
 3855 Belt Line Road Addison, Texas 

 
Dear sir or madam: 

 
The subject property is located at 3855 Belt Line Road in Addison, TX. The site is known as Lot B, 

Block 3, Beltline Marsh Business Park and is 1.925 acres.  

 

The site is currently used as a restaurant. The proposed use of the site is a restaurant, with 6,987.6 SF 

of interior building area and 4.940 SF of exterior, unconditioned patio area.  

 

The existing site currently has drainage and utility infrastructure to serve the site and the building. The 

proposed site and building have no expected changes to the current drainage patterns or overall flow 

on site. Existing utility infrastructure that is currently serving the existing building is planned to be utilized 

in the proposed building as well.  

 

Please feel free to reach out with any questions.  

 

Sincerely, 

Stephanie Tutt, E.I.T (TX)  

Project Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

 

JULY 21, 2022 

 

TO: CITY OF ADDISON 

FROM: SAAD JAWAD, FESS DFW HOLDINGS, LLC 

SUBJECT: LA PASHA ADDISON SUP SUBMITTAL, LETTER OF INTENT 

  

To whom it may concern: 

LaPasha Lounge and Grill is a Mediterranean inspired full-service restaurant specializing in Mediterranean cuisine with 
a twist of our local flavors. In addition to our traditional menu, we serve American sliders, handmade pizzas, sandwiches 
and wraps. We also specialize and serve handcrafted drinks, smoothies, coffees, teas, and fountain drinks. Alcohol is 
not served. Hookah is available. 

LaPasha Lounge and Grill’s first location opened in Houston, Texas in May of 2020. After immense success in Houston, 
we decided to expand in DFW market and making Addison our number one choice to cater to our target audience. We 
start our operations at 11am and closing hours vary by weekday: Mon-Wed at 1am, Thursday at 2am, Fri-Sat at 3am 
and Sunday at 2am. 

The experience includes an upscale indoor/outdoor dining area. Our outdoor patio allows for additional seating with a 
retractable awning and chic lighting. A complementary play area for children is included to promote a family-friendly 
experience. 

 

Regards, 

 

 

Saad Jawad 
Owner/Operator 
FESS DFW Holdings, LLC 
 


	Agenda
	AI_4438_Minutes from July 19, 2022 P&Z Meeting
	    Minutes of the July 19, 2022 Planning and Zonign Commission Meeting
	AI_4440_SP2022-05 - Sky Harbour SP
	    SP2022-05 Staff Report
	SP2022-05 Map
	SP2022-05 Staff Report

	    SP2022-05 Plans
	Sheets and Views
	SITE PLAN


	AI_4442_1850-Z - Salad & Go
	    1850-Z Staff Report
	1850-SUP Map
	1850-Z Staff Report

	    1850-Z Plans
	Sheets and Views
	C-1 COVER
	C-2 FINAL PLAT - PRINTEMPS ADDITION NO.2, LOT 1-R, BLOCK A
	C-3 GENERAL CONSTRUCTION NOTES
	C-4 CONCEPT PLAN
	C-5 EXISTING CONDITIONS AND DEMOLITION PLAN
	C-6 EROSION CONTROL PLAN
	C-7 EROSION CONTROL DETAILS
	C-8 DIMENSION CONTROL AND PAVING PLAN
	C-9 UTILITY PLAN
	C-10 EXISTING DRAINAGE AREA MAP
	C-11 PROPOSED DRAINAGE AREA MAP
	C-12 GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN
	C-13 MISCELLANEOUS DETAILS
	C-14 CITY OF ADDISON STANDARD CONSTRUCTION DETAILS
	L1.01 TREE PRESERVATION PLAN


	    1850-Z Letter of Intent
	    1850-Z Public Comment
	AI_4439_1853-SUP - Toasted Yolk Cafe SUP
	    1853-SUP Staff Report
	1853-SUP Map
	1853-SUP Staff Report

	    1853-SUP Plans
	    1853-SUP Letter of Intent
	AI_4441_1854-SUP - La Pasha
	    1854-SUP Staff Report
	1854-SUP Map
	1854-SUP Staff Report

	    1854-SUP Plans
	Sheets and Views
	2234


	    1854-SUP Letter of Intent

